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MUXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of MAS Financial Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of MAS Financial Services Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss {including Other Com#8\ensive Income), the standalone Statement of cash flows and the standalone
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (“the Standalone Financial
Statements”}.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’) in the manner
s0 required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
saction 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {‘Ind AS’)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2024, and its profit, total comprehensive income, cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’)
specified under section 143(10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditar's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the standalone financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

1 Impairment of Loans: Principal Audit Procedures
Charge: INR 25.98 Crores for the year ended 31% | Procedures performed by us have been
March, 2024 enumerated herein below:

Provision: INR 129.44 Crores as at 31% March, 2024 | We performed end to end process walkthroughs
Under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, allowance | t0 identify the key systems, applications and
for loan losses is determined using expected credit | controls used in ECL processes. We tested the
loss (‘ECL’} estimation model. The estimation of ECL refevant manual (including spreadsheet controls),
on financial instruments involves significant | Beneral IT and application controls over key
judgement and estimates. The key areas where we systems used in ECL process.
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identified greater levels of management judgement
and therefore increased levels of audit focus in the
Company’s estimation of ECLs are:

Data inputs - The application of ECL model
requires several data inputs. This increases the
risk of completeness and accuracy of the data
that has been used to create assumptions in the
model,

Model estimations - Inherently judgmental
models are used to estimate ECL which involves
determining Probabilities of Default (“PD”), Loss
Given Default (“LGD"), and Exposures at Default
{(“EAD"). The PD and the LGD are the key drivers
of estimation complexity in the ECL and as a result
are considered the most significant judgmental
aspect of the Company’s modelling approach.
Economic scenarios — Ind AS 109 requires the
Company to measure ECLs on an unbiased
forward-looking basis reflecting a range of future
economic conditions. Significant management
judgement is applied in determining the
economic scenarios used and the probability
weights applied to them especially when
considering the current uncertain economic
environment.

Qualitative adjustments — Adjustments to the
model-driven ECL results are recorded by
management to address known impairment
model limitations or emerging trends as well as
risks not captured by models. They represent
approximately 14.52% of ECL balances as at 31
March 2024. These adjustments are inherently

uncertain and  significant management
judgement is involved considering internal
assessment of emerging forward looking

economic factors and related uncertainties. The
underlying forecasts and assumptions used in the
estimates of impairment loss allowance are
subject to uncertainties which are often outside
the control of the Company. Given the size of loan
portfolio relative to the balance sheet and the
impact of impairment allowance on the
standalone financial statements, we have
considered this as a key audit matter.

Disclosures:
The disclosures regarding the Company’s application
of Ind AS 109 are key to explaining the key
judgements and material inputs to the Ind AS 109
ECL resulits.

Key aspects of our controls testing involved
following:

Test of Details:
Key aspects of our testing included:

Testing the design and operating effectiveness
of the key controls over the completeness and
accuracy of the key inputs, data and
assumptions into the Ind AS 109 impairment
models.

Testing the ‘Governance Framework’ controls
over validation, implementation and model
monitoring in line with Reserve Bank of india
guidance.

Testing the design and operating effectiveness
of the key controls over the application of the
staging criteria.

Testing key controls relating to selection and
implementation of material macro-economic
variables and the controls over the scenaric
selection and application of probability
weights.

Testing management’s  controls  over
authorisation and calculation of post model
adjustments and management overlays.
Testing management’s  controls on
compliance with Ind AS 109 disclosures
related to ECL.

Testing key controls operating over the
information technology system in refation to
loan impairment including system access and
system change management, program
development and computer operations.

Sample testing over key inputs, data and
assumptions impacting ECL calculations to
assess completeness, accuracy and relevance
of data and reasonableness of economic
forecasts, weights, and model assumptions
applied.

Model calculations testing through
performance, where possible.

Test of details of post model adjustments,
considering the size and complexity of
management overlays, to assess the
reasonableness of the adjustments by
challenging key assumptions, inspecting the
calculation methodology and tracing a sample
of the data used back to source data.
Assessing disclosures - We assessed whether
the disclosures appropriately disclose and

re-
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address the uncertainty which exists when
determining ECL. In addition, we assessed
whether the disclosure of the key judgements
and assumptions made was sufficiently clear.

Information Technology:

IT Systems and controls

The Company’s key financial accounting and
reporting processes are highly dependent on the
automated controls in information systems, such
that there exists a risk that gaps in the IT control
environment could result in the financial accounting
and reporting records being materially misstated.

IT general and application controls are critical to
ensure that changes to applications and underlying
data are made in an appropriate manner. Adequate
controls contribute to mitigating the risk of potential
fraud or errors as a result of changes to the
applications and data.

Due to the pervasive nature of role of information
technology systems in financial reporting, in our
preliminary risk assessment, we planned our audit by
assessing the risk of a material misstatement arising
from the technology as significant for the audit,
hence the Key Audit Matter.

In course of audit, our focus was on user access

management, change management, segregation

of duties, system reconciliation controls and
system application controls over key financial
accounting and reporting systems. We performed

a range of audit procedures, which included:

e Review of the report of IS Audit carried during
the year by an independent firm of Chartered
Accountants pertaining to IT systems general
controls  including access rights over
appfications, operating systems and
databases relied upon for financial reporting.

=  Our other processes include:

c selectively recomputing interest
calculations and maturity dates;
o Selectively re-evaluating masters

updation, interface with resultant reports;

o Testing of the system generated reports
and accounting entries manually for core
financial reporting matters (i.e. verification
around the computer system)

o Evaluating the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the significant
accounts-related IT automated controls
which are relevant to the accuracy of
system calculation, and the consistency of
data transmission

© Other areas that were independently
assessed included password policies,
system configurations, system interface
controls, controls over changes to
applications and databases.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements-and our audit reports thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the

date of auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
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materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in eguity of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 5As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financiai statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s  Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3}{i} of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Page 4]14

7" Floor, Heritage Chambers, Behind Bikanerwala Sweets, Near Azad Society, Nehru Nagar, Ahmedabad-380015



MUXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i} to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all reiationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefare the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books. The backup of the books of account and other books and papers
maintained in electronic mode, has been maintained on a daily basis on servers physically located in India during
the year.

¢} The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the standalone Cash Flow Statement and standalone Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account.
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In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133
of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164{2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2024 on its financial position in
its Standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persans or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities {“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations given under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. As stated in Note no. 21.2 of the standalone financial statements

{a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid during the year by the company is
in compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Theinterim dividend declared and paid by the company during the year and until the date of this report
is in compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

{c) The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the
approval of the members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount of proposed dividend is
in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013,

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in
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vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all the relevant transactions
recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature was not enabled at database level for accounting
software to log any direct data changes. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tempered with in respect of such accounting software where such
feature is enabled,

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is applicable from April 1,
2023, reporting under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit
trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.,,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

CSShad

Chandresh S. Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 042132

Place: Ahmedabad
Date:  April 24, 2024
UDIN: 24042132BJZWZF6117
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Standalone
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and ather records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

(i) (a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b)  The Company has a program of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment and right of
use assets so as to cover all the items of Property, Plant and Equipment in a phased manner. In our
opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment and right
of use assets were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of the
registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds,
comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name
of the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of the immovable properties taken on lease
and disclosed under “Right of use asset” in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the
name of the Company, where the Company is lessee in the agreement.

{d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based
on the examination, the Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including
Right of Use assets} and intangible assets during the year.

{e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based
on the examination, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Refer Note 46 to the
standalone financial statements.

{ii) (a) The Company is a non-banking finance company (‘NBFC') and does not hold any inventories.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii){a) of the Order is not applicable.

{b) During the year, the company has availed sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 Crores from
banks on the basis of security of current assets. Based on our examination of the records of the
company, the quarterly returns/ statements filed by the company with the said bank are materially in
agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the company.

Page 8|14
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(a)  Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(iii)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to it.

{b) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made,
guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
advances in the nature of loans and guarantees, provided during the year are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

{c) The company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company {'NBFC’), registered under provisions of RBI
Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said
Act/Rules, particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms, monitors
repayments of principal and payment of interest by its borrowers as stipulated. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans and advances in the
nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipuiated
and in cases where repayment of principal and payment of interest is not received as stipulated, the
cognizance thereof is taken by the Company in course of its periodic regulatory reporting. Refer note
8.1 to the Standalone Financial Statements for summarised details of such loans/advances which are
not repaid by borrowers as per stipulations. According to the information and explanations given to
us, reascnable steps are taken by the Company far recovery thereof.

(d) The company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC’}, registered under provisions of RBI
Act, 1934 and rules made thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said
Act/Rules, particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms, monitors
and report total amount overdue including principal and /or payment of interest by its customers for
more than 90 days. In cases where repayment of principal and payment of interest is not received as
stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by the Company in course of its periodic regulatory
reporting. Refer note 8.1 and note 43.1 to the Standalone Financial Statements for summarised details
of such loans/advances which are not repaid by borrowers as per stipulations for more than ninety
days under the title “stage 3” loans.. According to the information and explanations given to us,
reasonable steps are taken by the Company for recovery thereof.

{e)  Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans, the reporting under clause 3{iii}{e) of the Order
are not applicable to it.

{f) Based on our audit procedures and the information and explanation made available to us, the
Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of the records,
the Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees in contravention of the
provisions of Section 185 of the Act and has complied with the applicable provisions of Section 186 (1) of the
Act.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the
Act or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. Further, according to the
information and explanations given to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal, in this regard.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) section
148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{vi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in
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{a)

{b)

(c)

The Company has been generally regular in depositing the amounts deducted / accrued in the books
of account, in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to the
company.

There were no material undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues in arrears
as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no statutory dues referred in above sub-clause, which have not been deposited with the
appropriate autherities on account of any disputes except for the following:

Sr. Name of Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where
No. Statute Dues [¥in the amount dispute is pending
Crores] relates
1 | Income tax Act, | Income Tax 0.12(*) AY 2017-2018 Deputy Commission
1961 of Income Tax (A)

[*] after adjusting the amount of refund claimed by the company amounting Rs. 0.33 Crore.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded
income that were surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961) during the year.

{ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books
of account, we report that

{a)

(b}

(c)

{d)
(e)

(b)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or interest thereon from any
financial institution, banks, government or due to debenture holders during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
iender.

The Company has utilised the money obtained by way of term loans from banks and other financial
institutions during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained. Unutilised funds are held
by the Company in the form of deposits or in current accounts till the time of subsequent utilisation.

The funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for the long-term purpose.

The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries.

The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary
company,

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including
debt instruments) and hence reporting under clause 3{x){a) of the Order is not applicabie to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{x](b} of the Order is not
applicable to the company.
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MUXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(xi)

{xii)

{xiii)

{xiv)

{xv)

{xvi)

{xvii}

{xviii)

{xix)

{a} To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are
10 instances of fraud by customers relating to availment of loans by falsifying the records and
documents. The total amount of such frauds amounts to Rs, 0.87 Crore.

(b}  According to the information and explanations given to us, no repert under sub-section (12) of section
143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditars in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Campanies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by management/Audit Committee, there were
no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.,

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable
1o the Company.

According to the information and explanations given te us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all the
transactions with the related parties and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit systerm commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, during the course of our audit, the reports of the internal auditor issued till date for
the period under audit in accordance with the guidance provided in SA 610 “Using the work of Internal
Auditors”.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence provisions
of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of the records of
the Company, we report that

(a) The Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934
and the Company has obtained the reguired registration.

(b}  The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company ('CIC’) as defined under the Regulations by the
Reserve Bank of india.

(d)  Asperinformation provided in course of gur audit, the group to which the Company belongs does not
have CIC.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3{xviii) of the
Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit repert indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
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existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (&) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amount towards
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in respect of other than ongoing projects that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Act.

(b} According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has transferred the amount remaining unspent in respect of
ongoing projects, to a Special Account (as required) till the date of our report in compliance with
provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of the Act. Relevant disclosures are made in Note 34 (c) of
the Standalone financial statement of the Company.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Place: Ahmedabad
Date:  April 24, 2024
UDIN: 24042132BIZWZF6117

C & tha)

Chandresh S. Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 042132
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MUXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

“ANNEXURE B” TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Control clause {i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MAS Financial Service Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended con that date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial control based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal contro! stated in the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [“ICAI”]. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India and the $tandards on Auditing prescribed under section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;
2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
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MUXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March
31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 106625W

Ce Shaad
Chandresh S. Shah
Partner

Membership No.: 042132

Place: Ahmedabad
Date:  April 24, 2024
UDIN:  24042132BJZWZF6117
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MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

{T in Crores}

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Leans
Investments
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Non-financial assets
Income 1ax assels (net)
Deferred tax agsets (net)
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Right-of-use asset
Intangible assets under development
Cther intangible assets
Other non-financial assets

Total non-financial assets

Total assets
UIABILITIES AND EQUITY
UABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
() Trade payables
{i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enlerprises
{11} Other payables .
(i} total outstanding dues of micro enlerprises and small enterprises
() total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt securities
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Subordinated labiities
Other financial Kabilities
Total financial liabilities
Non-financial liablities
Current tax Eabilities (net)
Provisions
Cther non-financial Kabilities
Total non-financial labilities
Total liabilities
EQLATY
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity
The notes refermed o above form an integral part of these financiaf statements
In terms of our report of even date attached

For Mukesh M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 106625W

C_ &S.\ILI‘-\ PP
Chandresh S. Shah Darshana S. Pandya
Partner (Director & Chief Executive Officer)

Membership No: 042132 {DIN - 07610402)

*

Riddhi B. Bhayani
(Company Secrefary & Compkance Gfficer)
(Membership No: A41208)

Ahmedabad

24 April 2024

Ahmedabad
24 Agril 2024

Note
no.

0w e ~No

30
30
11(a}
1(c}
11(d}
11(e}
14(b)
12

13

303

19

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
178.02 237.88
664,27 533.77
.52 427
7.264.83 5910.1¢
787.71 8268.12
75.80 60.24
8.977.15 7.572.42
2,52 2.52
997 18,22
18.62 13.95
69.80 57.68
282 1.08
0.24 0.33
1.1 1.03
27.10 10.79
132.09 105.56
9,108.24 7.677.98
- 013
15.74 11.5¢
114 1.54
626.86 827.2¢
6.120.36 4,957 56
aoz.11 252,70
253.25 305,65
7.319.46 6,156.65
4.29 1.86
10.09 8,48
6.44 4.28
20.82 15.60
7.340.28 8,172.25
163.99 54.66
1,604 97 1.451.07
1,768.96 1,505.73
8.109.24 71.677.98




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(¥ in Crores)
Note Year ended Year ended
no. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
I. Revenue from operations
Interest income 22 1,022.28 797.33
Gain on assignment of financial assets 116.97 68.04
Fees and commission income 85,33 49.99
Net gain on fair value changes 23 12.57 21.49
Total revenue from operations 1,217.15 936.85
Other income 24 T42 3.00
Total income 1.224.57 939.85
. Expenses
Finance costs 25 614.16 474.82
Fees and commission expense 48.80 48.00
Impainment on financial assets 26 89.55 53.00
Empioyee benefits expenses 27 87.05 62.49
Deprecdiation, amortization and impaimrment 28 s Z.40
Others expenses 29 49,78 34,44
Total expenses 893.15 §75.15
Profit before exceptional items and tax (1- ) 331.42 264.70
Exceptional items - -
. Profit before tax 331.42 264,70
V. Tax expanse:
Current tax 30 80.89 65.10
Short / (Excess) provision for tax retating to prior years e} QA7) (2.47)
Net current tax expense 80.72 62.83
Deferred tax expense / (credit) 39 295 1.11
Net tax expense 83.87 63.74
V. Profit for the year (lll - 1V) 247.75 200.96
V1. Other comprehensive income
{A) tems that will not be redassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurement of the defined benefit kabilities {0.52) 0.08
income tax impact on above 0.13 {0.02)
Total (A) (0.39) 0.04
{B) Hems that will be redassified to profit or loss:
Loans and advances through other comprehensive Income 21.57 {26.05)
Income tax impact on above {5.43) 6.58
Total {B) 16,14 (19.49)
Cther comprehensive income (A+B) 15.75 (19.45)
VI. Total comprehensive Income for the year (V + Vi) 263.50 181.51
VIll. Earnings per equity share (of T 10 each): 31
Basic (T} 1511 12.25
Diluted () 15.11 12.25

The notes refermed to above form an integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached
For Mukesh M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 106525W p
.(-

C S8l
Chandresh S. Shah
Partner

Membership No: 042132

o

.

{Company Secretary & Cornplance Officer)
(Membership No: Ad1206)

Ahmedabad Ahmedabad
24 April 2024 24 April 2024



MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024
X in Crores)

(A) Equity share capital

Equity Share of T 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Balance at 1 April 2022 54,65
Changes in Equity Share Capital due o prior period errors -
Restatod balance at 1 April 2022 54.66
Changes in equity share capital during the yaar -
Balance at 31 March 2023 54.66
Changes in Equity Share Cagital due to prior period emors -
|Restated balance at 31 March 2023 54,65
Changes in equity share capital during the year 109.32
Balance at 31 March 2024 163.99
{B) Other equity
Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive income Total
Reserve ujs. 45- Securities Retained Equity Loans and
IC of the RB! prémium eamings instruments advances
Act, 1934 through 0C1 through OC1
Restated balance at 31 March 2022 211191 426.87 533.21 B 113.94 1,285.93
Profit for the year - - T R00.66 - . 200,56 |
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (nel of taxes) - - 0.04 - - 0.04
Other comprehensive incoma (net of taxes) - - - - (16.45) (16.45)]
Final dividend on equity shares - - (9.57) - - (9.57)
Interim dividend on equity shares. - - (9.84) - - {9.84}
Transfor to reserve ws. 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 4019 - {40.19) . - .
Balance at 31 March 2023 25210 426.87 674.61 * aT.4% 1,451.07
Profit for the year n - 347,75 . . 24775 |
Re-measuremant of defined benefit plans (net of taxes) - - (0.39) - - {0.39)
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes) - - - 4237 4237
Final dividend on equity shares - - (10.11) - - (10.11)
Interim dividend on equity shares - - {16.40) - - {16.40)
Transfer to reserve ufs. 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 48.55 - (49.55) - - -
On issue of bonus shares - {109.32) - - - (109.32)
Balance at 31 March 2024 301.65 755 845.91 . 139.88 1,604.97
* Reprasents amourt less than 2 50,000

In terms of our report of even date attached
For Mukesh M Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 106625W

&L 25
Chandresh §. Shah "-:-\7__@ o
Partner T

Membership No: 042132

24 Apri 2024

Darshana 8. Pandya
(Director & Chief Executive Officer}
{DIN - 07610402)

A

(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer)
{Membership No: A41206)

Ahmedabad
24 Aprit 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
MAS Financlal Services Limitad

{DIN - 00044852)

o 8>

Ankit Jain

{Chief Financial Officer)



MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

{Z in Crores}
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVMITIES

Net profit before tax 331.42 26470
Adiustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation 3.81 240
Finance cost 814.1% 47482
Impakment on financial assets 89.55 53.00
(Profit) / loss on sale of property, piant and equipment - (0.10)
Interest income {1,022.28) (797.3%)
Gan on assignment of financial assets {116.97) {68.04)
Net gain on fair value changes (2.48) (2.74)
Net gain on sale of investments measured at amortized cost (4.84) (1.35)
Financial guaranteg COMIMISSION income - 0.01)
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange {0.08) -
Dwidend income [1.26) 112}
Gain on derscognition of leased assets (0.02) .

{440.39) {340 47)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES {108.97) {758.77)
Changes in working capital;
Adjusiments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Loans (1.264 .89} {1.340.37)

Trade recetvables {2.26) (3.26)

Advances received against loan agreements 048 (6.38)

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents {130.52) 26 46

Cther financial asset 9.76 {7.44)

Other non-financial asset (3231) {14.49)

Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabdibes:

Trade payable and other payable 338 (2.19)

Other financial liabiities {16.24) (172.84)

Other non-financial kabilities 219 (4.71)

Provisions 0.54 (1,429.87) 2.01 (1,523.31)
CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATIONS (1,538.84) {1,599.08}
Interest income received 921,45 730.31
Dividend received 1.26 112
Interest ncome on Irvestment measurad al amortised cost 76.48 4861
Finance cost paid (664.90) 33429 {483.37) 3168.87

{1,204.55) {1,282.41)

Income tax paid (net} {78.29) {59.31)

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) (1,282 84) (1.341.72)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTMITIES

Acquisiton of property, plant and equipments and intangible assats, including capital (19.95) (10.51)

advances

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments and intangible assels - 024

Purchase of investments (2,583.49) {2,824.51)

Redarmgption of investrnents 262933 2.542 51

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B} 25.89 (292.27)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from debt securities and bormowings 363717 307348

Repayments of debt securities and borrowings {2,22317) {1,236.21)

Short term koans {Net) {189.93) (216.37)

Repayment of lease fiabilities {0.45) (0.22)

Dividends paid {26.51) (19.41)

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / {USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES [C) $,197.11 1,601.27

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) {59.84) {32.72}

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginring of the year 237.86 270.58

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 1 below) 178.02 237.86
—————— ———




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

{¥in Crores)
Notes:

1 Cash and bank balances at the end of the year comprises:

(a) Cashonhand

{b) Balances with barks

Total

(c} Bark deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less
Cash and cash eq as per the bal sheet

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
0.12 0.14
10284 67.64
10296 87.78
75.08 170.08
178.02 237.86

2 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “indirect method”™ as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on statement of cash fiows specified under saction 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013,

3 The Comparty as at 31 Mal'd'\zozdtmsumrawnborrwmgfaciiﬁesmurﬁngio?1192.1?Crwesmmaybeavaiauerumnperaﬂ\gacﬁwmwmsmwpnal

commitments.

4 Change in Babilities arising from financing activities

31 March 2023  Cash flows Non-cash changes* 31 March 2024
Debt sacunities 62726 - {0.40) 626.86
Bomowings (other than debt securities) 4,957 56 1.174.06 {1126} 812036
Subordinated liabilites 25270 50.00 {0.59) 302.11
Total labiities from financing activities 5.837.52 1,224.06 (12.25) 7.048.33

31 March 2022  Cash fiows MNon-cash changes® 31 March 2023
Debt securities 362,03 266.25 (1.02) 62726
Borrowings (cther than debt secuntias) 73273 1,234.65 (9.62) 495756
Subordinated labilities 137.22 120.00 (4.52) 252.70
Total abiities from financing activities 4,231.98 1,620.90 {15.38) 5837.62

* Non-cash changes represents the effect of amortization of transaciion cost.
The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements
in terms of our report of even date attached
For Mukesh M Shah & Co.

Chartered Avpcountants
Firm's Registration No: 106625W

e
L &bu_r-\ . ) 4{ -
Chandresh S. Shah : '-\ arshana §. P a
Partner @_ CCU&g\ (Diroctor & cm:.:z‘::;m Officen)

Membership No: 42132 (DIN - 07610402)

*Z

(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer)
{Membership No: A41206)

Ahmedabad Ahwnedabad
24 April 2024 24 April 2024

Formdonbehnlofﬂnsoardolnim:tomof

Ankit Jain
[Chief Financial Officer)




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

21

22

23

24

A) CORPORATE INFORMATION

g;\,thamalSemeesLiniﬁed(&ne'Companr)SamCMmmﬂednlndawimwatedm&eprmmdme
Comparies Act, 1956. It ts registered as a systematically important non deposd taking non-banking finance Company ("NBFC") with Reserve
Bank of India {"RBI"). The Comparty is engaged in the business of providing Micro Erterprise loans ("MEL™), Small and Medium Enterprise
loans ["SME™), Twa Wheeler loans ("TV™), Salaned Personal loans {*SPL™), Commercial Vehicle loans {“CV") and icans to NBFCs - to
creale the underlying assets of MEL, SME, TW, SPL ang CV Its shares are kisted on two recognised stock exchanges i India i.e. BSE
Limited ("BSE™) and the National Stock Exchange of india Limited ("NSE™).

The Company's registered office is at 6, Ground Floor, Narayan Chambers, Behind Patang Hatel, Astwvam Road, Ahmedabad-380009,
Gujarat, India.

B} RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS:

The following Indian Accounting Standarads have been modified on miscetianeous issues with effect from Apnil 1, 2023 Such changes include
clarification'gudance on:

{i} Ind AS 101 — First time adoption of Ind AS — Deferred tax assets and defarrad tax liabilities to be recognized for ol temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets. lease kabilities, decommissioning / restoration / similar kabilities.

ii} Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Information about the measurement basis for financial instruments shall be disclosad as
part of material accounting policy information.

() Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements & Ind AS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting — Material accounting policy information
{including focus on how an entity applhed the requirements of Ind AS) shall be disclosed instead of significant accounting policies as pat of
financiat statements.

{iv} Ind AS B — Accouwling policies, changes in acoounting estimate and emors — Clanfication on whal constifites an accounting estmate
provided.

(v) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes — In case of a transaction which give rise lo equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, the initial
recognition exemption from defermed tax is ro longer applicable and defermed tax kabiity & deferred tax asset shall be racognized o Gross
basis for such cases.

None of the above arnendiments had any matenial effect on the company's financial statements, except for disdosure of Material Accounting
Policies instead of Significart Accounting Policies. in the Financial Statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compllance

Thaese dalone financial us of the Comparty have been prepared n accordance with the Indian Accounting standards (*ind AS™)
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under section 133 of the Companias Acl, 2013
{"the Act”), and in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in Inckia and other relevant provisions of the Act. Further, the
Company has complied with all the directions related to implementation of Indian Accourting Standards prescribed for Non-Banking Financial
Companies (NBFCs) in accordance with the RBI nofification no. RBL2019-20/170 DOR NBFC).CC PD.No.109/22. 10.106/2018-20 dated 13
March 2020.

Any application guidance/ clanfications/ diwections issued by RBI or other regulators are impkamented as and when they are issued/
appicabile.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and prasented in the format
prescribed in the Division 11l of Schedule Il to the Act. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the
requirements of Ind AS 7 *Siatement of Cash Flows".

Basis of measurement

The slandalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for certain financial
instruments which are measwed at fair values as required by relevant Ind AS.

Functional and p tion currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (T} whith is the cusmency of the primary economic efvironment in which
the Company operates (the “functional curmency”). Amounts in the standalone financial stalements are presented in crores rounded off to two
decimal places as permitted by Schedulz 11l to the Act, except when otherwisa indicated.

Use of estimates, judg orts and pli

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in cordormity with Ind AS requires management 10 make judgements, estimates and
assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (nciuding contingent kabiliies) and the reporied income and
expensas dunng the year. Estimates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continved)

Use of jud and ptions (Continued)

Judgements

lnthapromsaufappﬂyhgﬂ'le(:u'npaw‘smni\gpoids,muaguneﬁhasmaﬂejtﬂgmﬁs,vtﬁhaveamﬁskdm
matenal adiustment to the camying amounts of assets ang kabiities within the next finarcal year

Business model assessment

Classifnationandmeasremaﬂnffnam:ia!asse!sMSmMMSdemmmmWﬂmdwm
nterest ("SPPI% test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particuiar business objective This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence Including how
the performance of the assets is evaluzted and their performance meaasunad, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how
these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company moniors financial assets measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason
for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the cbjective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is
part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the businass model for which the remaining financial assets ara held continues
to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether thers has been a change in business model and $0 a prospective change to the
dlassification of those assets.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumplions concerming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing @ material adjustment to the carying amounts of assets and labilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company based s assumptions and estimates on parameters avadable when the standalone financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstancas arising that are
beyond the control of the Comparnty. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oocur.

U]

iti)

Fair value of financial instruments

The far value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a kabilty n an orderly
transaction in the prncipal (of most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price}
regardiess of whether that price is direcily observatie or estimated using another valuation techniqua. When the far values of financial
amwwmmmhmmmmmmmaﬁemmm,mmmmmam
of valuation techniques that inchude the use of valuation modeis. The inputs 1o these models are taken from obsarvable markets whene
possible, bul where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. For further details about determination of fax
value refer note 3 8 and nate 41

Effective interest rate {("EJIR") method

The Company's EIR methodology, as explained in Note 3.1{A), recognises imMerest income ! expensa usiy) & rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of retum over the expected behavioural ife of loans given / taken and recogrises the
effect of potentially different irterest rates al varicus stages and other characteristics of the product iife cycle (inchuiing prepayments and
penalty interast and charges).

This gstimation, by natura, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cyde of the instrumaenits, as well
as expacted chanqges to interest rates and other fee income/ expense that are integral pants of the instrument.

Impairment of financlal asset

The measurement of impaiment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
ncrease in Credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can resuft n clifferont levels of alowances.

The Company's expected credit loss ("ECL") caiculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of vanable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL modeis that are considered accounting
judgements and estimates ncude:

a) The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets
shaould be measured on a life time expected credit loss ("LTECL™ basis.

b) Developrent of ECL models, inchuding the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

c) Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenaros and BCONDMIC iNpuls, such as gross domastic products, lending
interest rates and codlateral values, and the effect on probability of default ("PD"), exposure at default ("EAD™ and loss given default
("LGD™).

d) Selection of forward-ooking Macroeconomic scenarvs and their probability weightings, 1o derive the economic inputs into ECL
rmadels.

) Management overlay is used in circumstances where management in its objective review and internal assessment of amerging
forward looking economic factors and related uncertainties.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.4  Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions (Continued)

G iv) Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation risk inherent to its
operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course
of the Company's business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such outflows ‘o
be probabie, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the outflow is considered to be probable, but a reliable estimate
! cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into account a number of
factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to
conclude on these estimates,

For turther details on provisions and other contingencies refer note 3.17.

‘ v) Provision for income tax and deferred tax assets

; : The Company uses estimates and judgements based on the relevant rulings in the areas of allocation of revenue, costs, allowances and
% disallowances which is exercised while determining the provisicn for income tax, including the amount expected to be paid / recovered
for uncertain tax positions. A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be availabis

§ against which the deductible tlemporary ditferences and tax losses can be utilized. Accordingly, the Company exercises its judgement to

M reassess the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting pericd.

% vi) Defined Benefit Plans

' The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the graluity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complaxities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

These estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and cther factors, including expectations of future events that may have

a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes thal the
estimates used in preparation of the standalone financial statements are prudent and reasonabie.

2.5 Presentation of the standalone financlal statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the
reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—cument} is presented in note 39.

Financial assels and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only oftset and reported net when, in
: addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right 10 offset the recognised amounts without baing contingent on a future event, the
parties also intend o settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

i} The normal course of business
iy The event of default

3. SUMMARY OF MATERSAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Sr No. Material Accounting Policies Reference In Balance Sheet & Profit And Loss Notes

1 Recognilion of interest income 22
2  Impairment of financial assets 8.1, 26, 53
3  Property, plant and equipment 11(a)
4 Financial instrument 41
5  Intangible assels 11{e), 11(b)
6 Leases 11{d), 44

: 7  Retirement and other employee 27,40

i 8  Finance cost 25

31  Recognition of interest income
A EIR method

Under Ind AS 109, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate method for all financial instruments measured at amortised
cost and financial instrument measured at FYOCI. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipls through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financia!l asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees
and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of retum that represents the best
estimate of a constant rate of return cver the expected life of the financial instrument.

positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an in;lﬁ@\dﬂr
adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest income in the statement of profit and Ioss/."’\ :3‘,’ T
L

[
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Recognition of interest Income (Continued)

interest income

The Comparny cakadates interest ncome by applying EIR 10 the gross camying amourt of financial assets other than credit impaired assets.

Whanaﬁswﬂalasselbeoomwcrediﬂnpa’redandis,More,reoaﬂedasstagea,uwCompawcﬂwatesneredrwnaonunet
basis,Iftheﬁnamialasselcu'esmdsmmmmm.mCmmmWNMHMMnemamm.

Financial instrument - initial recognition

Data of recognition

Nlﬁnanu‘alassetsandﬁnamialIiabilitiesareHﬁdwwmmmmmmmamtommwmdm
instrument.

Inltial measurement of financial instruments
mmdmmmsmmammmmmmwmsmmmmodelfurmarmm
instruments (Refer note 3.3(A)). Financial nstruments are intially measwrad at their fair value (as defined in Note 3 8}, transaction costs are
added ta or subtracted from this amount, except m the case of financial assets and financiai abilities recorded at FVTPL.

Measurement categories of financlal assets and Nabilities

- The Company cassifies afl of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset's contractual lems,

measured at either.

i) Amortised cost

W) FVOCI

i} FYTPL

Financlal assets and liabilities
Financiat assets

Busl moded

The Compary teternines its business model at the level that best refiects how it manages groups of financial assets 1o achieve its business

The Compary's business model is not assessed on an instnument-try-instrrment basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is

based on observable factors such as:

a) How the performance of the business model and the financial assets hekd within that business model are evaluated and reported to the
Compary’s key management parsonngl.

b) The risks thal affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets heid within that business model) and, in particular,
the way thosa risks are managed.

c} How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or on the contractual cash fiows collected).

d) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are alsc imporiant aspects of the Company’s assessment

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or ‘stress case’ scenanos into
account.

SPP1 test

As a second step of its classification process. the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial asset to identify whether thay meet
SPPI test.

‘Principal’ fof the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the ke of
financiad asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/ discount).
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3.5

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)

Financial assets and lisbllities (Continued)

Financial assets {Continuad)
SPP test {Continved)

meostsurmdemmdﬂmmninammmmwmm;mfummvmummmm
risk. TomaketheSPF'Iassassmm.mﬁmpwappﬁesjmgmmwmmmdmmasmwbdlamu
interest rate is set.

In coritrast, cortractual lerms that introduce @ mom than de minhis exposurs (o risks o volatiity in the contractial cash fows that are
wrelated 1o & basic lending arangement do POt give s to contractual cash fiows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required {o be measured at FVTPL.

Accordingly, financial assets are measured as follows:
i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is hekd within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
contracilial cash fiows and the contrachual terms of the financial asset give nise on spadified dates to cash flows that are sokly payments
of pancipal and interest on the principal amount outsiandng.

iy Financlal assets measured at FVOC!
A financial asset is measured at FYOC! if it is hedd within 2 business model whosa objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and sefing financial assets and the contraciual terms of the financial asset give nise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and inferest on the principal amount cutstanding

lil) Financlal assets at FVTPL
A financial asset which is not dlassified in any of the above categonies ane measured at FYTPL

Iv} Equity In n subsidiarl
The Company has accounted for its equity investments m subsidiaries at cost.

Financiat liability
i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabifities are initially recognized at feir vahse. Transaction costs that are direcily attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial liabilty, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair valkue on initial recognition.

i) Subsequent measurement
Financial kabities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Compary does not reclassify its financial assets subseguent to their initial recognition, agant fram the circumstances in which the
Company changes in its business model for managing those financial assets.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions
The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, whern tha terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the

exiert that, substantialty, t becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognéion gain of loss, to the extent that an
impamment l6ss has not alreadty been recorded.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

D gnitlon of assets and Habilities (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification
Financial assets

Afnanu‘alasse((of.\merem.amdawmdeagmdmka)bmmm
contractual nghts to the cash flows from the fnancial asset expires or it transfers the rights Lo receive the contractual cash flows in a
kasadionththiaﬂyaﬂMm&kswmdmﬁpmmﬁmﬁdmmmﬂmhmhwm
neither transfers nor retains substantialty all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does nol retain control of the financial asset.

Ondereoogﬁﬁmdaﬂwnaiasseﬂnnserﬁety.m&ﬂmmmmmm[mmw@edmﬁw}m
ﬁ'necom:demu'onrecewecl(inducingwmwassetobtamdlessmynawliabihtyasstmed)isramgnsedi\mastalemmdpmﬁtambsa

Accondngly, gain on sake or derecognition of assigned portfolio are recorded upfront in the statement of profit and loss as per Ind AS 109.

AsperthegljdalinesﬂlRBl.ﬂwCompamrisrequradtoreia'noeﬂainpurﬁonafheloanaasignedmpmashilsbooksas“rimun
Retention Requirement ("MRR"). Therefore, it continue ta recognise the portion retained by it as MRR.

Financial llability

A financial kability is derecognised when the obligation under the dabikty is discharged, cancelled of expires. Where an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing kabikty are substantiaky
modﬁed‘sa.dtmexdwngeurmodﬁeaﬁonmmaamﬁﬁmdhmmwwmmmdamm.m
dfference between the camying vakue of the onginal financial kabilty and the consideration paid is récogrised in the statement of profit and
loss.

Impairment of financial assets
Owverview of ECL principles

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ECL modal, for evaluating impairment of financial assets together with loan commitments
other than those measured at FVYTPL

Expected credit iosses are measured through a loss aliowance at an amount equal to:

i) The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are
possibie within 12 months afler the reporting date); or

i) Lifetime expected credit losses (expected credt losses thal resut from al possible defaull events over the We of the fmancial

Both LTECLS and 12 months ECLs are calculated on collective basis for retad loans.
Based on the above, the Compary categorises its loans mto Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, a3 describad below:

Stage 1: When icans are first recognised, the Company recognises an allowance based on 12 months ECL. Stage 1
keans includes those loans where there is no significant increase in credit nsk observed and also includes
facilities where the credit risk has been improved and the ioan has been redlassified from stage 2.

Stage 2: When a lcan has shown a significant increase in tredit risk since origination, the Company records an
allowanca for the ife time ECL.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit mpaired are the loans which are past due for more than 90 days. Borrowers are
also dassified under stage 3 bucket under instances like fraud identification and legal proceeding Further,
stage 3 loan accounts are identified at customer level (i.e. a Stage 1 or 2 cuslomer having other oans
which are in Stage 3). The Company records an aliowance for kfe time ECL.

There is a curing period with Stage 3 loan, where even if the DPD days are reduced by 90 days tha same
wil not be upqraded to Stage 1 until the loan is 0 DPD,

Loan commitments: When astimating LTECLS for undrawn loan commitmants, the Company estimates the expected portion of
the loan commitment that will be drawn down over iis expecied kfe. The ECL is then based on the present
value of tha axpected shortfalls in cash flows if the foan is drawn down.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairmest of inanclal assets (Continwed)

Galculation of ECLs

. For retail loans

The mechanics of ECL calculations are outined bekow and the key alements are, as follows:

PD Probability of Default {"PD"} is an estimate of the kkelihood of default over & given time honizon. A default may only happen at a
certan time over the assessed period, ¥ the faclity has not been previously deracognised and is st in the portfolko.

EAD  Exposure at Defaull ("EAD") is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in tha
exposure after the reporting cats, including repayments of principal and nterest, expected drawdowns on committed faciliies and
acerued nterest. Further, the EAD for stage 3 retall oan is the outstanding exposure at the time loan is cassified as Stage 3 for the
first ime,

LGD LGD is an estimate of the loss from & transaction given that a default occurs. Under Ind AS 109, lifetime LGD's arg defined as a
cobection of LGD's estimates applicable to different future periods.

% Recovery rate = (discounted recovery amount + security amount + discounted estimated recovery) / (otal outstanding)
% LGD = 1 = recovery rate

For retail asset channel {"RAC™} loan portfolio

For RAC loan portfolio, the Company has developed intemal rating based appmach for the purpose of ECL. The credit rating framework of
the Company consists of various parameters based on which RAC loan porifoiio is evaluated and credit rating is assigned.

The Company has developed its PD matrix based on the benchmarking of various external reports, ratings and Basel norms. This PD matrix
is cakibrated with its historical data and major events al a regular time inferval in accordance with its ECL policy.

The LGD has been considered based on Base-ll Framework for all the level of RAC credit ratieyy portfolio.

The Company cakculates PD, EAD and LGD to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of loans and discounted at an approximaticn to the
EIR. At every reporting dalte, the above calculated EADs are reviewed. Yhile at every year end, LGDs and PDs are reviewad and changas in
the forward looking estimates are analysed.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1: The 12 months ECL is caludated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default svents on a
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months afler the reporting date. The Company calculates the 12 months
ECL atiowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These
expected 12-months default probabilities are appiied to a forecast EAD and mutiplied by the expected LGD and discounted
by an approximation to the onginal EIR.

Stage 2: ‘When a loan has shown a significant incraase n credit risk since origination, the Company records an alowance for the
LTEGLs. The mechanics ara simiar o thosa axplained above, bul PDs and LGDs are estimated over the Metime of the
instrument. The expected cash shortfails are discounted by an approximation to the onginal EIR.

Stage 3: For oans considered credit-mpaired, the Company recognises the ifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The
method is similar to that for stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%. Credit impaimment loans are determined at bomower
fevel.

Loan When estimating ECL for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the amount sanctioned thal will be disbursed

commitments after the reporting date. The ECL is then calculated using PD and LGD-

Management overlay is used to adjust the ECL allowance in cir tances where gement judges that the existing inpuls, assumptions
and mode! techniques do not capture ak the risk factors rolevamt to the Company's kending portfolios. Emerging local or giobal
MaEECoNomic, MICIe 8conomic of political events, and nabural disasters thal are not incorporated indo the current parameters, risk ratings,
or forwand looking information are examples of such crcumstances. The use of management overilay may impact the amount of ECL
recopnized.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impalrment of financia! ausets (Continued)

Cal of ECLs {Continued])
Significant Increass In credit risk

The Company monitors all financial assets, inchuxding loan commitments issued thal are subject to impainTnent requirements, to assess
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since intial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial

'mnMsmmmmmmmmmmmmmuammmmm

nstnamert at tha repoiting date based on the remaining matunty of the Nstrument with the risk of a dafault ooLrTing that was anticipated for
tha remairing maturity at the curment reporting date when the financial instrument was first recognised, In making this assessment, the
Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonabla and supportable, inchuding historical experience that is
available without undue cost or effort. However, when a financial asset becomes 30 days past due, the Company considers that a significant
increase in cradit sk has occumed and the asset is classified in Stage 2 of the imparment madel, 6. the loss allowance is measwred as the
ifetime ECL. Further, a stage 2 customer having other loans which are in stage 1 are considered 10 have significant increase in credit risk.

Definition of default

The definition of default is used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whather the loss allowance s based on 12-
month or ifetime ECL.

Financial assels in default reprasent those that are at feast 90 DPD in respect of pancipal or interest and/or where the assets are otherwise
considered 1o be uniikely to pay, including these that are credit-impaired.

Loans and advances measured at FYOC!

The ECLs for loans and advances measwed at FVOCI do not reduce the carryng amourt of thesa financial assets in the balance sheet,
which remains at far value. Instead, an amount equal {0 the allowance that would arisa if the assets were measured at amortised cost is
recognised in OCI as an accumulated impaimment amount, with a comesponding charge to profit of loss. The accumulated bss recognised in
CCl is recydled ta the statement of profit and koss upon derecognition of the assels.

Forward looking Information

In its ECL models, the Company relles on a broad range of forward looking macro parameders and estimated the impact on the default at a
given point of time. For this purpose, the Company has used the data source of Economist intefigence Unit.

Write-offs

The gross camying amount of a financial asset is written off when the chances of recoveries are remota. This is generally the case when the
Company determines that the borower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows 1o repay the
amounts subtect to the write-off. However, financial assets that are writien off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where approgriate. Any recoverias made are recognised in Statement of
prefit and koss

Determination of fair value

Far vale is the price that would be received to sefl an asset or paid to transfer a #ability in an onderly transaction between market
participarts at tho measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is directly cbservable or estimated using another valuation technique.
in estimating the fair value of an asset or a iability, the Company has taken info account the characteristics of the asset or Kability if market
participants would take those charactevistics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financia reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 basad on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are dascribed as follows:

+ Level 1 financial instruments: Those where the inpuls used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical
assets or kabilties thal the Company has access 1o at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only ¥ there are
sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assels or kabiliies and when there are binding and
exercisable prica quotes avalable on the balance sheat date;

+ Leved 2 financial insingments: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are denived from direclly o indrectly
observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument's fife. Such npuls include quoted prices for similar assets or
kabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable nputs other than quoted prices such
as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads; and

' + Level 3 financial instruments: Thosa that include ong or more uncbservabie input that is significant to the measurement as whole.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

(1) Recognition of other income

Revenue {other than for thase items to which Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments are applicable) is measurad at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 - Revenue from coniracts with customers oulines 2 single comprehensive model of
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with cusiomers.

The Compary recognises revenue from coniracts with customers based on a five step model a5 set out in Ind AS 115

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable
rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every conract that must be met.

Step 2. Identify performance obdigations in the contract A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a
good or seqvice fo the customer.

Step 3 Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amourt of consideration ko which the Company expects to be entited in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behall of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price 10 the parformance obligations in the contract; For a contract that has more than one performance
cbligabon, the Company alocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration
1o which the Company expects 1o be entiled in exchange for satisfying each performance obiigation.

Step 5. Recognise nevenue when {or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation

Dividend income

Dividend income {including from FVOCI investments) is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is estabiished, # is
probabie that the economic benefits associaled with the dividend will fiow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured
refiably. This is genarally whan the sharehokders approve the dividend.

Rental Incoma

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-tine basis over the lease terms and s included in rental income in
the statement of profit and loss, unless the increase is in ine with expected general inflation, in which case lease income is racognised based
on contractual terms.

Other interest income

Other interast mcomae is recognisext on a time proportionate basis.

Fees and commission income

Fees and commission incoma such as stamp and document charges, guarantee commission, sefvice income, due diigence & evaluation
charges and portfolio monitoring fees etc. are recognised on point in time basis.

(1) Recognition of other axpense
Finance cost

Finance costs are the interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. interest expensas are
computed based on effective interest rate method.

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the ive i rate on respective financial ir ris measured at
Amortized cost. Financial instruments include bank term loans, non-convertible debentures, commercial papers, subordinated debts,
perpetual debts and exchange differences arising from foreign cumency bormowings lo the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the
interest cost.

Finance costs that are directly attributabie 1o the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such
assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

All other finance costs are charged to the statement of profit and koss for the period for which they are mcurred.
Cash and cash squivalents
Cash comprises cash onhand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalonts ane short-term balances (with an orginal maturity of three

months or less from the date of acquisition), highly iquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subjed to insignificant risk of changes in vaiue.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Froperty, plant and equipment ("PPE") are camed at cost, less accumulated depreciation and imparment losses, if any. The cost of PPE
comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebales, any import dulies and other laxes (other than thosa subsaquently
recoverable from the tax authorilies), any dicectly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for #s intended use and other incidental
expenses. Changas in the expected usefid We are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and
treated as changes in accounting estimates. Subsequent expenditure on PPE afier its purchase is capitalized only if it is probable that the
future aconomic banefits will fiow to the Company and the cost of the itern can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculaled using the straight line method to write down the cost of property, plant and equipment Lo their residual values over
their estimated useful ives as specified under schedule |l of the Act Land is not depreciated. Al assets ndividually costing less than Rs.
5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

The estimated useful vas are, as fokows:

i) Buikdings - 60 years
i) Office equipments - 3 t¢ 10 years
#i) Furniture and fictures - 10 years
W) Vehicles - B years

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis from the gate on which such asset is ready for its intended use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at #ach financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, f approprate.

PPE is derecognised on dispasal or when no fulure economic benefits are expecied from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecogestion of
the assel (cakadated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset) is recognised in other
income { axpense in the staterment of profit and loss in the year the asset is darecognised,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed separately under other nor-financial
assets. Capital work in progress comprises the cost of PPE that are not ready for its intended use at the reporting date. Capial work-in-
progress is stated at cost, net of impairment loss, if any.

Intangible assets

The Company’s inlangible assets inciude the value of software. An ntangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured
refiably and it is probable that the expecied future aconomic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets aoquired separately are measured on inifial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumuated impaiment losses.

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual vaiues over their estimated useful lives (three
years) using the straight-ine methed, and is included in depreciation and amortisation in the siatement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet ana disclosed as ‘Intangible assets under development'.
impairment of non financial assets - property, plant and equipments and Intangible assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at the each balance sheet date are reviewed for impaiment If ary indication of
impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimatad and if the camying amount of these assels exceeds their recoverable
amount, impairment i0ss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as an expense, for such excess amount. The recoverable amount
is the greater of tha net seling price and valse in use. Value in use is amived at by discounting the fulure cash fows to their present value
based on an appropriate discount factor When there is indication that an impaiment loss recognised for an asset in earkier accountng
periods no longer exists of may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the statemnent of profit and loss.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Leases

A contract is, or conlains, a lease if the contract conveys the right o control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration,

All leases are accounted for by racognising a right-of-use asset and a lease liabity except for:
- Leases of low vaiue assets; and
- Leases with a duration of 12 months or less

Lease paymerts associated with short term leases of kw value leases are recognised 8s an expenss on a straight-ine basis over the lease
e,

At the commencemert date of the lease, the Company recognises lease kabilities measurad at the present value of lease payments 10 be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any kease incantives
feceivable and amounts axpected to be pakd under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of loase payments, the Company uses the incremental bormowing rate at the leasa commencement date if

' the interest rate implicit in the leasa is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lsasa kabilites is increased to

reflect the actretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease kabilibes is remeasured
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to
purchasa the undartying asset

The Comparny recognises right-of-use assals at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the undertying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are moasured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease §abilities. The cost of night-of-use assets includes the amount of lease labilities recognised, inibal direct costs ncured, and leasa
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incontives received. Unjess the Company is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the ieased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised rght-of-use assets are depreciated on 3 straight-ine basis
over the shorter of s astimated useful life and the lease term_

The Company determines the leasae term as the non-cancellable pericd of a lease, logether with both paniods covered by an option 1o extend
the loase if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to lerminale the leasa if the
Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to axercise an option to
exiend a lease, or not (o exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and drcumstances that creats an economic
incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, of not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company
revises the leasa term if there is a change in tha non-cancellable pericd of a lease.

Cotporate guarantses

Corporate guarantees are nitiatly recognisad in the standalone financial statements (within "other non-financial kabilties™) af fair value, being
the notional commisson. Subsequently, the ability s maasured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Any increase in the kability relating to financial guarantees is recorded in the statement of profit and loss. The notional commission is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss under the head fees and commission income on a straight #ne basis over the ie of the
auarantee.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans
The Compary’s contribution to provident fund and empioyee state nsurance scheme are considened as defined contribution plans and are
charged as an axpense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employses

Defined benefit plans

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoaver has completed five years of servica with the Company at the ime of resignation /
retiremert. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1872,

The gratuity kabikity amount is coniributed by the Company lo the Life insurance corporation of India who administers the fund of the
Company.

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Linit Credit Method and spread over
the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services.

As per Ind AS 19, tha service cost and the net interest cost ars charged to the siatement of profit and loss. Remeasurement of the net
definad benafit fability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the retum on plan assets {exchuding interest) and the effect of the asset
ceiling (if any, exciluding interast), are recognised in OCI.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Retirement and other employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payabie wholly within tweive months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits
such as salaries, wagas elc. and the eopected cost of exgratia are recognised i the period in which the employes renders the related
service. A kability is recognisad for the amount expected to be paid when there is a presenl legal or consbructive cbligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be esti d rediably.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under
{a) in case of accumulaied compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitement of future
compensated absences; and

{b} n casa of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences ocour.
Provisions, contingent liabilitles and contingent assets
Provisions

Provisians are recognised when the Company has a present obiigation (legal or constnuctive) as a result of past events, and it is probable
that an outfiow of resources embodying econormic benefits will be requirad Lo settle the obligation, and a rekable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time vahw of money is material, the Company detemmines the level of provision by
discounting the expected cash fiows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liabikity. The expense relating lo any provision
is presaried in the statement of profit and loss net of any resmbursement.

Contingent lability

A possible obligation that anses from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the 0CCUTeNcse of NON-occUTence of
one of more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or, preserdt obligation that anises from past events where it
is nol probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obtigation; or the amount of the
obligation cannct be measured with sufficient reliabilty are disclosed as contingent kability and not provided for.

Contingent asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset that anises from pasi events and whose exisience will be confirmed only by the occurmence or non-
occurence of one or more uncertain future events not whoity within the control of the Company. Contingent assels are neither recognised not
disciosed in the financial statements.

Taxes

Current tax

Current tax compiises amount of tax payable in respect of the taxable ncome or loss for the year determined in accordance with Income Tax

Adl, 1961 and ary adjustrnent to the 1ax payable or recetvable in respact of previous years. Curment tax is the amount of tax payable on the
taxable income for the period as deterrnined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1561,

Current income tax redating to items recognisad outside profit or loss is recognised cutside profit or loss (either in OC| or in equity). Current
tax terns are racognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC| or equity.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the camyng amourds of assets and kabidies in the standalone financal
statements and the comresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax Sabikties and assels are measured at the tax rates that are sxpecied to apply in the period in which the Eability is settled or the
asset reaksed, based on tax rates (and lax laws) that have been enacted or subslantively enacted by the end of the reporting pencd. The
canying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewsd at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or less (either in OCI or in equity). Deferred tax
tems are recognised in cormelation to the undertying transaction either in OCE or equity.

Deferred tax assets and kabilties are offset if such tems relate 1o taxes on income levied by the same goveming tax laws and the Company
has a legally enforceabla right for such set off, .




M2AS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

3

318

C.

319

3.20

3.

122

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxes (Continued)
Goods and services tax pald on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets ane fecognised net of the goods and servicas lax paid, except when the tax incumed on a purchiase of assets or
availing of services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax pald is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expensa ilem, as applicable.

The net amount of lax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation suthority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balarce
sheet,

Earnings per share

Basic earmnings per share ("EFST) is computed by dividing the profit after tax {i.e. profit attribulabla to ordinary equity hotders) by the weighted
average number of equity shares cutstanding during the year.

Dised EPS is computed by dividing the profit after tax (i.e. profit attributable to ordinary equity holders) as adjusted for after-tax amount of
dividends and interest recognised in the period in respect of the diutive potential ordinary shares and is adjusted for any other changes in
income or expense that would result from the conversion of the dilutive potential ondinary shares, by the weighled average number of equity
shargs considered for denving basic eamings per share as increased by the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all diktive potential ordinary shares.

Potential equity shares are daemed to be dilutive onfy if their conversion 1o equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from
contimaing ondinary operations. Potertial diutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unkess they
have basen issued af a later date Dihkive potertial equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of
equity shares and potertially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share spits, nght issue and borus shares, as

" appropriate.

Dividends on ordinary shares

The Comparny recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity hoiders of the Company when the distribution is
authorised and the distnbution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per tha Act, final dividend is authorised when if is approved
by the sharehciders and interim dividend is authonsed when the it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Compary. A comasponding
amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distribubions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measurement recognised directly in
equity

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any differonce between the camying amount of the liability and the carrying amount of the assets
distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Repossessed asset

In the normal course of business whenaver default ocours, the Company may take possession of properties or other assets in its retal
portfolio and generally disposes such assets through auction, to settle the outstanding debt

{l) Forsign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign cumencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transacton.

Monetary assets and Labilities denominated i forsign cumencies are transiated at the functional curmency at rates of exchange on the

reporting date.

Exchange difference on restatement of all other monetary items is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(I Derivatives

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with afl three of the following characteristics:
i) lts value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign axchange
rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other vanable, provided that, in the case of a non-fimancial variable, it is not
specific to a party to the contract (i.e., the 'underlying’}.

i) It requires no initial net investment or an initial net nvestment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts expected
to have a similar response to changes in market factors.

iif) I is settled at a future date.

The Company emers mtc derivative transactions with vancus counterparties i0 hedge its foreign currency exchange rate risks. Derivative
transaction consists of hedging of foreign exchange ransactions, which includes forward contracts.

Derivativas are recorded at fair value and cammied as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabikties when their fair value is negative.
The noticnal amount and fair value of such denivatives are disclosed separately. Changes in the fair value of denivatives are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Ministry of Corporate Aftairs ("MCA”") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (indian Accounting
Standards} Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments
o the existing standards appicable to the Company




MAAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuved)

AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
(T In Crores)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
5 Cash and cash squivalents
Cash on hand 012 0.14
Balances with banks:
in curent / cash credit accounts 10284 67.64
Bank ceposits with onginal maturty of 3 months or less 75.06 170.08
Total cash and cash equivalents 178.02 237.86
[ Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
In current accounts (refer note 1 below) oM 0.12
Earmarked balances with banks:
Unclairad dividend bank balances. 0.02 0.02
Unspert CSR bank balances 572 5.3
in fixed deposit accourds:
Deposts given as secuiity against borrowings and other commitments 23.45 274
Bank deposits with orkjinal maturity of more than 3 months (refer note 2 below) 634.97 505.55
Total bank balance other than cash and cash equivilents 564.27 533.77
Notes;

1. Balance represents balance with banks in earmarked account i.e. "coRection and pay-out account”™.
2. Represents bank deposits against overdraft facility except batance amounting fo 7 0.10 crore as regular deposit.

7 Trade recetvables

Trade receivables considered good-secured - -
Trade receivables considerad good-unsecured 6.52 4.27
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired - -

Total trade receivables 6.52 427

Notes:
1. Impairment allowance recogrised on trade receivables is T Ni {(Previous years: T Nil).
2. Thera is nc due by directors or gther officers of the Company or any frm or private company in which any directar is a partner, a director or a member.

Trada Recei ! hedule as at 31 March 2024
Particutars Outstanding for following periods from dus date of payment

Lessthan6 & months -1 1-2 years 2-dyears Mors than 3 ysars Total

months year

Undisputed Trade receivables -~ considered 509 128 .15 - - B6.52
gUDd
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - - -
significant incroase in credit risk
Undispited Trade Receivables ~ credit - - - - . -
impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - - -

Disputed Trade Recewvables — which have - - - - - -
significard incraase n credit nisk
Dispuled Trade Raceivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
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@ In Croces)
7 Trade receivables {Continued)

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than &
months

& months -1

yoar

1-2 years

2-) years

More than 3 years Total

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered 4.00
good

Lindisputed Trade Receivablas — which have

significart ncrease i credi risk

Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit -
o

Disputed Trade Recervables—considered good -
Disputed Trade Receivables — which have -
significant ncrease N cradd risk

Disputed Trade Receivables - cradit impaired -

0.15

a12

427
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AS AT 3t MARCH 2024

(T In Crores)
8 Loans
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
At amortised At fair value Total At amortised At falr value Total
cost through QC| cost through QCJ
(A) () Bills Receivables 121.07 - 121.07 82.38 - 82.38
(Il Term loans - 7,144.04 7,144.04 - 5,828.31 5,828.31
Total (A)-Gross 121.07 7.,144.04 7,265.11 82.38 5,828.31 5,810.69
Less: Impairment lass allowance (0.28) - {0.28) (0.53) - (0.53)
Total (A)-Net 120.79 7.144.04 7,254.83 81.85 5,828.31 5910.18
{B) (i) Secured by tangible assets 121.07 4,840.78 496185 §2.38 4,300.77 4,383.15
(il Unsecured - 2,303.28 2,303,268 - 1,527.54 1,527.54

Total (B)-Gross 121.07 7,144.04 7,265,111 B2.38 5.828.31 5,910.68
Less: Impairment loss allowance (0.28) - (0.28) (0.53) - (0.53)
Total (B)-Net 120.78 7,144,04 7.264.83 81.85 §,828.31 5810.16
{C) (I} Loans in India

(1) Public sector - - - - - -

(ily Private sector 121.07 7.144.04 7.285.11 82.38 5,828.31 5,910.69
Total (C)-Gross 121.07 7,144.04 7.285,11 B82.38 582831 5910869
Less: Impairment loss allowance (0.28) - {0.28) (0.53) - (0.53)
Total (C) (I} -Net 120.79 7.144.04 7.284.83 81.85 5,828.31 5,810.16
{C) (!I) Loans outside India - . B - - -
Less: Impairment loss allowance - - - - - -
Total {C} {1[)- Net - - - - - -
Total C(1} and C(ll) 120.79 7,144.04 7,264,83 81.85 5,828,31 5,810.18
Loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs, and the related parties, either serverally or JoIntly with any other person
Particulars As at % to the total As at % to the total

31 March 2024 Loans and 31 March 2023 Leans and
Advances in the Advances In the
nature of loans nature of loans

Promoter NI Nil NIl Nil
Directors NI Nil 1] Nil
KMPs NI Nil Nil Nil
Related parties NIl Nil Nil Nil
Notes: LT
1. There are no loans outstanding to Companies in which directors are interested, Ve " e e \\\
2. The Impairment on loans measured at FVOCI da not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equalicthe ' . N
allowance that would arise if the astets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in OCI as an accumulated impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. Ff ! " \
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T In Crores)

8.1  Ananalysis of changes in the gross carrying amount of loans Is given below#

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Qross carrying amount opaning balance 6,708,058 111,34 13270 5,852.08 4,401,863 90.53 104,89 4,897.08
Changes in upaning credit exposiures (net of repayment and exckuding write (4,230.83) (61.29) (48.97) (4,341.09) 13,193.32) (31.31} (39.35) (3,282.68)
::)w assets anginated (net of repayment)* 5635.68 7871 54,18 5,788.57 457447 66.89 20.28 4,681.84
Transters from Stage 1 (91,11) 3272 58.39 - {84.81) 33.04 5157 B
Transters from Stage 2 333 (45.47) 4214 . 267 (47.84) 3817 -
Transters from Stage 3 1.20 - (1.20) - £.38 - {0.38) -
Amounts written off (nat of recoverias) 0113 (1.38) {46,66) (48.13) €17 . (42.48) {42.65)
Gross camrying amount closlng balance 7.028.21 114.82 180.88 7,331.41 8,708.08 11431 132,70 5,952.08

# The above classification also includes balance of spread raceivable on assigned portfolio. (Refer note 10)
* Represents amount less than ¥ 50,000
** New assets originated are those assets which have either remained In stage 1 or have become stage 2 or 3 at the year end,

8.2 Reconclliation of EGL balance Is given below

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allewancs - opsning bajance 30.M 1977 53.38 103,48 48.20 10,29 44.70 100.20
Changes in opening credit expesures {net of repaymant and excluding write 1.70 a79 (13.99) (8.51) (11.69) 5.06 (10.21) (16.04)
:J‘Bw assets originated (net of repayment) 2374 7.7 19.13 80.58 2471 12.93 6.75 44.39
Transters from Stage 1 (26,65) 7.78 18.88 - (27.82) 8.62 2230 -
Transters from Stage 2 007 (22.74) 22,87 - 0.05 {14.91) 14.86 -
Transfers from Stage 3 0.00 - {0.00) - 0.00 - {0.00) -
Amounts written off (0.00) 0.25) (25.85) (26.10) (0.00) (0.04) (25.0%) (25.08)
ECL allowanca - closing balance 29.21 24.08 T41T 129.44 3.4 19.77 83,38 103.46

The contractual amount outstanding on fcans that have been written ff during the year, but were still subjsct to erforcement activity is € 48.13 crores at 31 March 2024 {31 March 2023 : ¥ 42.65 crores).

The increase In ECL was driven by an incresse in the gross amount of the portfollo, movements betwaen stages as a result of increase In credit risk, change in probabllity of default, macro economic factors and
management overlays due to estimated macro-economic factors. The extent ta which macro-economic factors will impact current sstimates of ECL Is uncertain at this point of time, The Company has coriducted a
qualitative @ssessment and has considered forecasted macro economic factors and a higher probability of default 1o factor on impairment alkowanices, For further detalls, refer nate 43,




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

¥ In Croras)

8.3 Credit quality of loan assets

The table below shows the gross carrying amount of loans based on the Company’s intemal grades and year-end stage classification of loans. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of
the Company's internal grades are explained In note 43.1.

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Stage 1 Stege 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Irternal grades
Performing

High quality assets 7.028.2% - - 7.02621 5,708.05 - - §,708.05

Quality assels - 49.04 - 59.04 - 79.23 - 79.23

Standard aszets - 65.58 - 55.58 - 32.08 - 32.08
Non- pertorming

Sub standard assats - - 96,61 #6681 - - 4490 44.99

Low quality assets - - 23.97 23,97 - - 87.71 87.71
Total 7,028,21 114.62 150.58 7,334.41 5,708.08 111,31 132.70 5,962.08




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
& In Crores)

9 Investments

Investments in
Alternative investrment funds

Pass through certificates under
securitization transactions

Market linked debentures
Nan - convertible debentures
Mutual fund units
Subsidiaries #

Total - Gross (A)

{1 Investments outside India
(il Investments in India
Total (B)

Total = Net D= {A)-(C)

As at 31 March 2024

As at 3t March 2023

Less: Allowance for Impairment Loss (C)

. At fair value At amortised At fair value
At amortised cost through PAL Others Total cost through P&L Others Total

- 2.36 - 236 - 38.97 - 38.97
507.81 - - 507.81 527.76 - - 527.76

- 50.95 - 50.95 - 176.78 - 176.78
169.08 - - 159.08 31.62 - - 31.62

- 6.14 - 6.14 - 468 - 468

- - 61.55 61.55 - - 46.55 46.55
666,89 59,45 61.55 787.89 559.38 220.43 46.55 826,36
666.89 59.45 61.55 787.89 559.38 220.43 46.55 826.36
666.89 59.45 61.55 787.89 559.38 220.43 45.55 826.36
{0.18) - - {0.18} (0.24) - - {0.24)
666.71 59.45 61.55 787.71 559.14 220.43 46.55 826.12

# Investments in subsidiaries

Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries [Refer note below]
Investment in optionally convertible preference shares of subsidiary
Deemed investment in optionally convertible preference shares of subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary on account of.

Corporate financial guarantee given to bank on behalf of subsidiary
Issuance of equity shares to the employees of subsidiary at discount

Total

Note : During the F.Y 2023-24, the Company has invested an amount of T 15 crore in # A% Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited, a subsidiary of the Com|

of equity shares of face value of T 10 each for cash at T 121,79 (including premium of ¥ 111.79 ) per share.

“Equity investment in subsidiary” is measured at cost.

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

35.09 20.09
20.00 20.00
4.00 4.00
239 239
0.07 0.07
81.55 46.55

subscribing to 12,31,628 no.

0

;



M AS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

(¥ i Crores)

10  Other financlal assets

Asat As al

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Sacurity deposits 139 1.02
Spread receivable on assigned portiolio 66.30 41.37
Wnerast accrued but not due on invesiments 275 243
Advances to dealers 345 783
Dertvative financial instrurments 1.91 -
Other Recievable - 71
Total other financial assets 75.80 60.24

1 Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets
Naturs of assety Praperty, plant and sqi {a) Intangible assats (b)
Buildings Office Fumniture and Vehicles Total Software Total
squipmwnt fixtures

Cost
At 31 March 2022 6.68 4.45 136 288 1734 0.60 0.60
Additions - 1.44 120 095 3.59 104 1.04
Disposals - - - 0.42 0.42 - -
At 31 March 2023 B.6% 5.09 4.58 3.39 20.51 1.84 1.64
| Additions: - 26t 188 EAL 740 0.50 0.5¢
Disposais - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2024 668 8.50 624 6.50 294 214 214
Depreciation/Amortisation
At 31 March 2022 054 222 1.08 1.11 4.95 038 0.38
Depraciation/amortization charge 0.1 0.87 0.50 041 1.89 023 023
Disposal - - . 028 028 - -
At 39 March 2023 0.65 3.09 158 1.24 .56 0.61 0.6
Depreciation/amortization charge 012 1.26 076 058 272 1373 052
Disposal - - - - - - -
AL 31 March 2024 or7 4.35 23 1.02 .28 1143 113
Net biock value:
|AL 31 March 2023 6.03 289 298 215 1395 1.03 1.03
At 31 March 2024 591 413 90 455 18.63 1.1 101

Now: No revaluation of any class of asset is camed out dunng the year.
{c) Capital work in progress

Capital work in pregress includes borrowing cosls related to development of building amounied to T 1.01 crores (31 March 2023: T 1.24 crores). Finance costs are capitakised al
MCLR + 1,15% p.a. - presentty 10.30% p.a. for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Capital work-in-progress

At M Mareh 2022 52.04

Additions 582

Disposals L
At M March 2023 57.66

| Additions 1214

Disposals -1
At 31 ddarch 2024 59,30
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

{Z In Croves)

1

Property, plant and equipments and Intanglble agsets (Continued)
(c) Capital work in progreas (Continued)

Capital work in progresa aging schadule

(Capital work in prograss Amcunt in CWAP for a period of Toal
Lass than 1 1-2 years 23 ywars More than 3 years

—Yuar
As at 31 March 2024
Projects in progress 12.14 5.72 1.91 50.03 659.80
As at 31 March 2023
Projects in progress 6.72 191 181 4821 57.68
Projects lemporarily suspended -
Capital work in prog pleti heduls for projects whers completion bs overdue
Capital work in progress To be compieted in Total

Less than 1 1-2 years 2.3 yoars More than 3 years

—tRT
As =t 31 March 2024
MAS headquariers 69.80 §9.80
As at 31 March 2021
MAS headquarters 57.68 5766
{d) Right-of-use asset
The detais of the right-of-use asset hekd by the Company is as follows:
Office Pramises
At 31 March 2022 24
| Audcitions 0.80
Disposals. -
[At 31 March 2023 32
| Addtions 2862
Disposals 034
At 31 March 2024 5.5¢
‘Depreciation
At 31 March 2022 185
Additions 027
Disposals -
At 31 March 2023 n
Additions 0.57
Disposals 0.04
At 31 March 2024 a7s
Net Block Value:
At 31 March 2023 1.08
At 31 March 2024 282




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A3 AT 31 MARCH 2024

T In Crores)
11 Property, plant and equipments and Intangible assets (Continued)

{e) Intangible assets under development

Iintangible assets under devwlopment
At 31 March 2022 0.04
” o3
Disposals 0.04
At 31 March 2023 o3|
Adiditions 024
Dispesals 0.33
At 31 March 2024 0|

ible assets under de P aging

Intangible assets under development Amount in intangible assets under deveiopment for a period of Total
Lass than 1 1-2 years 2-3 yoars WMore than 3 ysars.
——tAE

As at 31 March 2024

Projects in progress 024 - - - 0.24
Projects temporarily suspeandec - - - - .
As at 31 March 2023

Projacts in progress .33 - - - 0.33
|Projects temporarily suspendad - - - - -

12  Other non-financial assets

Asat Asa
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Prepaid expenses 1424 444
Ardvances o employees 0.18 on
Re-possessed assets B.16 354
Balanca with Goreersrent Authorities. 223 1.48
Capital advances 0.03 002
Gratuity fund [Refer note 40(b)] 123 0.54
{Other advances. 103 088

Total 27.10 10.79
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

(T In Crores)

13

As at
31 March 2024

Payables

{a} Trade payables
(i) total oulsianding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpnses -
{s) tolal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 15.74
anlerprises

{b) Other payables
(i} tofal outstanding dues of micro ererprises and small enterprises -
() total outstanding cdues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small 1.14
enterprises

As at
31 March 2023

013
11.51

1.84

Total 16.88

13.48

Trade Payabies aging schedule

Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Lessthan1 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 ysars
year

As at 31 March 2024

() MSME - - - -
(i} Others 15.74 - - -
(i) Disputed dues — MSME - - - -
{~v) Disputed dues - Dthers - - - -
As at 31 March 2023

() MSME 013 - - -
(W) Others 11.50 - 0.01 -
(W) Disputed dues — MSME - - - -

{iv) Disputed dues - Others - . - .

Total

1674

013
11.51

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:

Based on and 1o the extent of the information recesved by the Company from the suppliers during the year regarding their status under the Micro, Small and
Meﬁ.rnEnsrprisesDevabpmer!Act,ZOOG(MSMEDAd),mtﬁmmmdmw&nﬂmw.Mnmmhmmm
stiputated period and other disclosuras as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprisas Developmant Act, 2006 (hersinafter refermed o as "the MSMED Act)

are given balow:

As at
3 March 2024

(a) Pues remaining unpaid o any suppher at the year and

- Principal -

- Interast on above .
(b} Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along with the amount of

payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

« Principal paid beyond the appoinied date -

- Irterest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act -
(c) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay on payrents made beyond

the appointed day during the year
(d) Amount of interest accnued and remaining unpaid -
(e) Further interest due and payable even n the sucteeding years, until such date when -

the interast due as above are actually paid to the small enterprises

As at
31 March 2023

Q.13

-




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
@ In Crores)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
14 Debt securities (at amortised cost) {refer note 14.1)
Sacured non-convertible debentures 531.25 3125
Secured Market Linked debenture 100.00 600.00
Less: Unamortised bomowing costs {4.39) (3.99)
Total 526.86 627.26
Debt securities in India 526.96 627.26
Debt securibes outside India - .
Total 626.86 £27.26
15 Borrowings (Other than debt securities) (at amortised cost}
(a} Term loans {refer note 15.1)
{1} from banks.
-In Indian Rupeas 3,324.96 3.001.82
-In Foreign Currency [refer note 43.3(b)} B577.04 -
{ii) from other parties (finencial institutions) 1.142.02 €78.40
() Loans repayable on demend from banks-cash cradit/overdraft (Refer note beiow) - 0.01
[c} Short term loans from banks (Refer note below) 1,114 50 1,304.43
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs {38.16) (2690}
Total 6,120.36 4957 .56
Secured 6,095.45 493269
Unsecured 24 91 24.87
Total 6,120.36 4,957 56
Borrowings in India §,120.38 4,957 56
Borrowings outside India - -
Total 6,120.38 4,857.56
Note:
For Cash credit / Overdraft and short term loans
(2) Cash credit / short term loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of movable assels of the Company and goods covered under hypothecation (HP”)
agreements / Loan cum HP agreements and book debts, receivables, loans and advances and antire portfolic ¢ y (except specific portfolio
generated from vanous term loans sanctionad by vanious banks/Mnancial instituions on an exclusive basis) and equitable mortgage/negative ben by deposit
of title deads on some of the Cormpany's immovable properties, as cotateral security. The iloans are also guaranteed by Mr. Kambesh Chimanial Gandhi,
Mrs. Shwela Kamiesh Ganghi. Overdraft loans ane secured against fixed deposits placed.
(b} Interest rate range
Interest rate ranges from 8.75 % p.a. to 8.40 % p.a. as at 31 March 2024,
Interest rate ranges from 7 45 % p.a. to 11.55 % pa. as at 31 March 2023.
The Company has not defautied in repayment of borrowings and intecest.
The Company has avaled borrowings from banks or financial nstitulions on the basis of security of curent assets and the quarterty returns or statements of
cmmassacsﬂsdwucmmmawm“mwmmmmsumdmmm,
mmmmmWMMEwwmamwmmammgh requirement ranging from 1.10 times to 1.25
times is amounting to T 7,512.28 crores (31 March 2023: T 6,261.38 crores).
16 Subordinated Bablilities {at amortised cost)

Unsecured debentures {refer note 16.1} 310.00 260.00
Less: Unamortised bommowing costs (7.89) {7.30}
Total oz 25270
Subordinated kabilities in India 302.11 252.76
Subordinated kabilities oulside India . -

Total o n 252.70
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® In Crores)

14
141

Debt securities (at amortised cost): (Continued)

Details of terms of redemption/repayment in respect of debt securities:

Debentures
500 rated. Nsted, redeemable,
debentures of T 10,00,000 each

10,000, sacured, listed, rated,
unsubordinated, redeemable,
transferable, non-convertitie
debentures T1,00,000 each

10000, rated, ksted, sanior,

transferable, non-convertible
debantures of T1,00,000 each

12,500, fully paid, senior, secured,
lsted, rated, taxable, redeemabia,
transferable, non-convertible
debentures 71,00,000 sach

20,000 rated, ksted, senior,

Market Linked Debentures

Market Linked Debentures

Market Linkad Debentures

As at
31 March 2024

625

100.00

100.60

125.00

200.00

As at
31 March 2023

325

100.00

100.00

100.00

Terms of redemption/
repayment

Coupon Rate: Benchmark Rata
+173 bps

Tenor : 2 years

Coupon Rate:Benchmark Rate
+271bps

Coupon Payment frequancy |
Quarterty and on Maturity
Principal Payment frequerncy:
Buiet Payment at the erxt of the
tenor

Tenor: 3 years

tenor

Tenor : 1 year 6 months
Coupon Rate:Benchmark Rate
+266 bps

Coupon Payment frequency -
Yearty and on Maturity
Principal Payment frequency.
Bullet Payment at the end of the
tenor

Tenor : t year 6 months
Coupon Rate: Benchmark rate
Coupon Payment frequency :
Monthly and on Maturity
Principal Payment frequency.
Semi annualy

Tonor : 4 years

Coupon Rate: Market Linked

Coupon Payment frequency : on exclusive Hypothecation

Maturity

Prancipal Payment frequency:
Bullet Payment at the end of the

tenor
Tenor : 2 Year and & Month
Coupon Rate: Market Linked

Coupon Payment frequency © on exciusive Hypothecation

Maturity

Prncipal  Payment  frequency:
Butlet Payment ot the end of the

toror
Tenor: 2 Year and 1 day
Coupon Rate: Markst Linked

Coupon Payment frequency . on extlusive Hypothecation

Maturity

Principal Payment frequency:
Bullet Payment at the end of the

tencr
Teawor : 2 Year and 2 months

Security

Seure_dbyaﬁ'gza-h\g

over Assets

Secwa_dbyaﬁrstmdmg

aver Assats

Secured by a firsl
exclusiva Hypothecation
over Assets

ranking|

Secund by a fwst ranking

over Assets

Secuod by a fist ranking

over Assets

Secured by a first rankng

over Assats
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

X In Crores)

14  Debt securities (at amortised cost): (Continued)

14.1 Details of terms of redemption/repayment In respect of debt securities:

As at As at Terms of redemption/ Security
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 repayment

Market Linked Debentures - 100.00 Coupon Rate: Market Linked Secured by a first ranking
CotponPaymtfre'mmcy on exclusive Hypothecation charge

over Assets
qu:d Paymont  frequency.
Butiot Payment at the end of the
tenor
Tenor: 1 Year and 6 months
Markst Linked Debeniures - 100.00 Coupon Rate: Market Linked Secured by a fl'sl ranking

Principal  Payment  frequency:
Budiot Payment at the end of the
tenor
Tenor : 1 Year and 5 manths
Markat Linked Debentures 100.00 190.00 Coupon Rate: Market Linked Secusd by a fist ranking
Co-.ponPaymernrreql.nency on exclusive Hypothecation charge|

over Assets
Pmcq.\d Payment frequancy:
Butiet Payment at the end of the
tenor
Tenor: 2 Year and 2 days
Total debentures 631.25 63125
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T In Croves)

15

151

Detalls of terms of repayment in respect of term loans:;

Borrowings {other than debt securities) {at amortised cost): (Continued)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Term loans from banks (Refer note i)

In indian Rupees

Term Loan - 1 - 800
Term Loan - 2 25.00 5833
Term Loan - 3 27.95 43.95
Term Loan - 4 74,99 105.00
Term Loan - 5 66.67 133.33
Term Loan -8 41.67 B83.33
Torm Loan -7 50.09 7003
Term Loan - 8 - 2727
Terrn Loan - & 18.18 38.36

Terms of redemption/ Security
repayment
Repayabie i 12 Quarerly Exclusive charge by way of

instaliments from 30 June 2021 hypothecation of on  standarg
receivables of the Borrower
Repayable in 12 Quarery Exclusive charge by way o

installments from 31 March 2022 hypothecation of on  standand
recoivabies of the Bomower

Repayable in 20 anedySaundbyaﬁ-slmm
instaiments from 30 June 2021

Repayable in 20 QuarlariyExdt.lswemwbywayd

nstaiments from 05 November hypothecation of standard book|

2021, delbts/ receivables which ane to be
financed by the company out of
the bank finance. Personal
Guarantee of Mr. Kamigsh Ganohi
and Mrs. Shweta Gandhi.

Repayable in 12 Quarterly Exclusive fist charge on the

nstadmerts from 30 June 2022.  specific loan portfolio of  the|
Borrower by way of hypothecation
on the loan  installments|
receivables. Personal Guaranioe
of Mr. Kamiesh Gandhi and Mrs.
Shweta Gandhi.

Repayable in 36 monthly First Exclusive Mypothecation|
instakments from 01 May 2022,  charpe on book debts created outl
of Bank Loan.
Repayable in 20 Quarterty Exchusive charge by way of]
instaliments from 31 March 2022.  hypothecation of standard book]|
debis/ recoivables which are,
financed/ to be financed by the|
company ol of the proposed term
ioan to the Company.
33  monthly Secured by a first and exclusive|
charge on specific receivables of|
the Company created out of the
loan availed .

Repayable in 33  monthly Secured by a first and exclusivel

instaliments from 30 July 2022 charge on specific receivables of|
the Comparny created out of the
loan avaied .

Repayable in
instaliments from 30 July 2021,
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

@ In Croves)

15 Borrowings {other than debt securities) (at amortised cost): (Continued)
15.1 Details of terms of repayment in respact of term loans: {Continued)

As at As at Terms of redemption/ Security
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 repayment
Term Loans from Banks (Continwed)
Term Loan - 10 8.45 1224 Repayable in 96  monthly First and exciusive charge on land,
instaliments from 7 April 2018. property and commertial property|
under cornstruction.
Term Loan - 11 0.34 259 Repayable 0 36 monthly Secured by a first and excusive
installments from 7 Apiil 2021 charge on specific receivables of|
the Company created out of the
ioan avaled .
Tesm Loan - 12 138 1032 Repayable in 35 monthly Secured by a first and exciusive,
nstallments from 7 Aprit 2021 charge on specfic receivables of]
the Company created out of the|
loan avaled
Term Loan - 13 0.56 430 Repayable in 36 monthly Secured by a first and exclusivel
instafiments from 7 April 2021. charge on specific receivables of|
the Company created out of the
ioan avaded .
Term Loan - 14 1.14 340 Repayable n 35 monthly Secured by a fiest and exchsive
mstallments from 7 August 2021, charge on specific receivables of|
the Company created oul of the
loan availed
Temn Loan - 16 4.55 13680 Repayable in 36 monthly Secured by a first and exchusive
instaliments from 7 August 2021, charge on spacific receivables of]
the Compary ceated out of the
loan availed .
Term Loan - 16 1.80 567 Repayable in 36 monthly Securad by a first and exciusive
instaliments from 7 August 2021, charge on specific feceivabies. of]
the Company created out of the
loan availed .
TermLoan - 17 213 445 Repayable in 36 monthly Secured by a first and exciusivel
instaliments from 7 January 2022. charge on specific receivables of]
the Company created out of thel
loan availed .
Term Loan - 18 8.583 17.80 Repayable in 36 monthly Secured by a first and exciusive
instaliments from 7 January 2022 charga on specific receivables of
the Company creatad out of the|
loan avalled .
Term Loan - 18 3.58 742 Repayable in 36 monthly Secred by a first and exchusive
instaliments from 7 January 2022 charge on specific receivables of|
the Company created out of thel
loan availed _
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15 Borrowings {other than debt securities) (at amortised cost): (Continued)

15.1 Details of terms of repayment in respect of term Joans: (Corrtinwed)

As at As at Terms of redemption/ Security
M March 2024 31 March 2023 repayment
Term Loans from Banks {Continued}
Term Loan - 20 - 13.33 Repayable in 38 monthly Secured by a first and exchusive)
nstaliments from 30 Apnl 2021, charge on specific book dett and|
future receivables of the Company|
createdfo he created out of the
laan avaled .
Term Loan - 21 27.94 5011 Repayable in 18 Quarterdy Exclusive charge by way of]
nstafiments from 30 December hypothecation of such of the book,
2021, dabts, which are financed / to be|

Term Loan - 22 55.64 77.70 Repayable in 18 Quartery Exclusive charge by way of|
nsialiments from 24 September hypothecation of such of the book|
2022, debts, which are financed / to bej

financed by the Company owt off
the bank fnance Personal
Guarantee of Mr. Kamiesh Gandhi
and Mrs. Shweta Gandhi,

Term Loan - 23 20.00 4000 Repayable in 10 Quarterty Exclusive charge by way of
nslaiments from 14 December hypothecation of on  standard

i 2022 recaivables of the Borrower
Term Loan - 24 8.30 2498 Repayable in 12 CQuarterly Exclusive charge by way of]
instaliments from 16 December Hypothecation of book
2021 debtreceivables ansing out o]

bank fnancia! assets of the
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151

Details of terms of repayment In respect of term loans: {Continuved)

Borrowings (other than debt securities) (at amortised cost): (Continued)

As at As &t
M March 2024 31 March 2023

Term Loans from Banks (Continued}

Term Loan - 25 - 6.50
TermLoan - 26 2550
Term Loan - 27 5.00 10.00
Term Loan - 28 21.53 6599
Term Loan - 29 42,09 83.16
Termn Loan - 30 184.93 22500
Term Loan - 31 53.85 84,62
Term Loan - 32 97.50 127.50

Terms of redemption/ Secunty
repayment
Repayable in 16 Quanerly Secured by Hypothecation of]

instaliments from 30 Septamber portfolio of the Company crealed

2018, out of the term loan. Personal
Guaraniee of Mr.  Kamlesh
Gandhi, Mrs. Shweta Ganchi.

Repayable in 168 Quarterly Secured by Hypothecation of

instalments from 29 February portfolic of the Compary created

2020. ok of the term loan Personal
Guarantee of MNr Kamigsh
Gandhi, Mrs. Shweta Gandhi.

18 Quanerly Exclusive charge by way off
hypothecaton on  book  debts|
under standard assets portfolio of|
the borrower ekgible for Bank
finance.

Repayable n 18 wmmmnmd
nsizliments from 31 Decamber hypothecation on

Repayable  in
instalments from 26 June 2021,

2020. receivables of the Company.
Personal Guaraniee of Mr
Kamigsh Gandhi and Mrs. Shweta
Gandhi.

Repayable in 18 Quarery Exclusive chame by the way of

instaiments from 30 Seplember hypothecation on specific

2021. receivables

Repayable in 20 QuarlenyExctaved-nargebthayd

installments from 31 March 2022.  hypothecation on speciic
recetvables of the Company.
Persoral Guararntea of Mr.
Kamiesh Gandhi and Mrs. Shweta
Gandhi.

Ropayable in 13 Quarerly Exclusive charge on  specific

wstalments fom 29 December standard book debls and

2022 receivables which are financed / 1o
be financed by the Compary oul]
of the bank finance.

Repayable 20 Quaterly Exclusive chaige by way of

instaimenis from 30 Seplember hypothecaton of standard book]

2022, debis/ recedvables which are 1o be|
financed by the company out of]
e bank fnance. Personal
Guarantee of Mr. Kamiesh Gandhi
and Mrs. Shweta Gandhi,
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
{® In Crores)

15
151

Borrowings (other than debt securities) (at amortised cost): {Continued)
Details of terms of repayment in respect of term loans: (Continued)

As at As al
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Term Loans from Banks {Continued)

Term Loar - 33 13333 200.00
Terrn Loan - 34 24.96 41.66
Term Loan - 35 15.00 2500
Term Loan - 36 54.55 75.00
TermLoan- 37 19.07 3360
Term Loan - 38 $1.08 83.55
Term Loan - 39 34.72 50.00
Term Loan - 40 8250 87.50
Term Loan - 41 112.50 142.50
Term Loan - 42 68.75 93.75
Tesm Loan - 43 120.00 150.00
TermLoan - 44 41.64 75.00

Terms of redemption/
repayment

Security

Repayable in 12 Cuarterly Exclusive fist charge on the
instaliments from 30 June 2023, specific loan porfolic of the
Bomower by way of hypothecation|
on he loan nstaliments
raceivables. Personal Guarantee
of Mr. Kamigsh Gandhi and Mrs.

Shweta Gandhi.
Repayable in 36 monihly Exclusive charge on the specific
instaliments from 30 October stardand baok debisfoan
2022, receivables of company
Repayable in 12 Quarterly Exclusive first tharge by way of]

nstatiments from 23 December hypothecation of  recefvables

2022, created out of bank finance.

Repayable 0 33 monthly Secured by a first and exclusive

nstaliments from 31 July 2023, charge on spedific receivables of|
the Company croated out of the
ican avaled .

Repayable n 36 morthly Secred by a first and exciusive

instatiments from 7 Jure 2022 change on specific receivables of
the Company created ot of the|
loan avaded .

Repayable 0 36 monthly Secwred by a first and exclusive

instalments from 7 October 2022, charge on specic receivables of|
the Company created out of the
loan avaled .

Repayable in 36 monthly Secured by a first and exciusive

instakments from 7 May 2023, charge on specific meeivables of]
the Comparry created out of the
loan avaded .

Repayable in 16 Quarnedy Secured by excusive charge on

installments from 31 December the book debt and receivables of|

2022, the company

Repayable in 20 Cuantery Exclusive chage by way of

instaiments from 29 March 2023.  hypothecation of such of the book|
debls, which are financad / o be|

Repayabls in 16 Quarterty Secured by exclusive champe on|
nstalments from 31 March 2023.  the book debt and receivables of]
the company

Repayable in 20 Quaredy Exclusive charge by way of
instaliments from 31 May 2023, hypothecation of such of the book|

Repayable i 12 Quartedy First & Exckisive charge by way of|
insialiments from 29 September hypothecation on the Bomower's|




A1AS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 3t MARCH 2024

{ In Crores)

15
15.2

Borrowings (other than debt securities) (at amortised cost): (Continued)
Details of terms of repayment in respect of term loans: (Continued)

As at As at Terms of redemption/ Security
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 repayment
Term Loans from Banks (Continued)
Term Loan - 45 {refer note below) 300.33 38000 Repayable in 20 Quartery Secured by Hypothecation of|
instalments from 31 January portfolio of the Company created
2023. ot of the term loan. Personal

Guarantee of Mr.  Kamlesh
Gandhi, Mrs, Shweta Gandhi

Note : Out of the Abave T 30033 crore outstanding as on 31 March 2024, ¥ 23.29 crore is i Indian Rupees and remaining amount of T 277.04 crore is,

in foraign currency
Tenm Loan - 46 25.00 30.00 Repayable in 30 monithly Exclusive charge by way of
nstalments from € November hypothecation of te specific)
2023 recaivables/book  debt of  thel
comparny
Term Loan - 47 16.00 2971 Repayable in 36 monthly Secured by a frst and exciusive
instaliments from 26 July 2022, charge on specific book debt and
fulture recervables of the Compary|
createdho be created ot of the)
Joan aveided .
Termn Loan - 48 11.68 18.33 Repayable in 12 Cuarery Secured by exclusive charge on
instalments from 31 March 2023.  the book debt and receivables of}
the compary.
Term Loan - 49 14.17 2417 Repayable in 3 monrthly Secured by first and exclusive,
instaliments from 25 September charge on Book Deits/ Loan
2022 assets of the Company.
Term Loan - 50 126.92 - Repayable in 13 Quaredy Exclusive charge on  specific
instaiments from 20 Decomber standard bood  debts  and
2023 receivables which are financed / to
be financed by the Company out|
of the bank finance.
Term Loan - 51 23.08 - Repayable i 13 Quarterdy Exclusive charge on specific
instaliments from 16 March 2024 . standard book  debis and
rocaivables which are financed / 10
be financed by the Compery o]
of the bank finance.
Term Loan - 52 170.60 - Repayabla in 20 Quarterly Exclusive charge by way of]
instalments from 30 September hypothecation of standard book]
2023, debts/ receivables which ans to bel
financad by the company ot off
tha bank finence. Personal
Guaraniee of Mr. Kamiesh Gandhi
and Mrs. Shweta Gandhi
Term Loan - 53 18.10 - Repayable in 36 monthly First and Exclusive charge by
instaiiments from 01 June 2023  Hypothecation of Book Debts
Termn Loan - 54 88.97 - Repayable in 20 Quarery Exclusive charge by way off
instalments from 31 Decemmber hypothecation of standard book
financed! to be financed by the)
company out of the proposed #erm
loan to the Company.
Term Loan - 55 n9 - Repayable in 12 Quarery Exclusive chamge on book debts by
Instaliments from 26 March, 2024 way of hypothecation on specific
siandard receivables of the|
compary
Term Loan - 56 £0.00 - Repayable in 38 monthly Exclusive charge on the specific

instaliments from 23 Apnil 2024.  standard book dettsAoan)




#AAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

(T In Crores)

15

15.2

Borrowings (cther than debt securities) (at amortised cost): (Continuved)

Detalis of terms of repayment in MM ofterm loans: (Continued)

As at
M M.m:h 2024 31 March 2023
Term Loans from Banks (Continved)

Term Loan - 57 44.00 -
Term Loan - 58 84.86 -
Tesm Loan - 59 8286 -
Term Loan - 60 135.00 -
Term Loan - 61 67.50 -
Term Loan - 62 T1.25

Term Loan - 63 37.50 -
Term Loan - 64 41.87 -
Tern Loan -85 75.00

Termn Loan - 66 (refer note below) 451.52

foreign cumency.

Terms of redemption/ Security
repayment

Repayable mn 36 monthly Secured by a first and exclusivel

instaiments from 7 May 2024, charga on specific receivables of|
the Company created out of the
loan availed .

Repayable in 36 monthly Secured by a first and exclusive

instaliments from 7 February 2024. charge on specific receivables off
the Company created out of the
ioan availed .

Repayable in 36 monthly Secumd by a first and exchusive

instalments from 7 October 2023. charge on specific recevables of|
the Compary created out of the
loan availed .

Repayable i 20 Quarterly Exclusive chamge by way of|

nstaiments from 30 November hypothecation of such of the book]

2023 debts, which are financed / to be
finanwed by the Company oul of]
the bank fmance. Personal
Guarantee of Mr. Kamiesh Gandhi|
and Mrs. Shweta Gandhi.

Repayable in 20 Quarterdy Exchsive charge by way of

nstalments from 28 December hypothecation of such of the book]|

2023 dabts, which are financed / 1o be|
financed by the Company out of
the bank finance. Personal
Guarantee of Mr. Kamiesh Gandhi
and Mrs. Shweta Gandhi.

Repayable in 20 Quarterdy Exclusive charge by way of

nstaliments from 05 February hypothecation of such of the book]

2024 debts, which are firancad / 10 be
financed by the Company out of
the bank finance. Peorsonal
Guaraniee of Mr. Kamiesh Gandh
and Mrs. Shweta Gandhi.

Repayable n 12 Quarterty First & Exclusive charge by way of|
installments from 30 September hypothecation on the Bomower's,

Repayable i 12 Quarerly Hypothecation on the Specific

Instattments from 31 Cctober 2023 unencunbered secured  standard|
loan receivales and book debls off
the company arising from loans|
and advances,

Repayable in 36 monthly Secured by a first and exclusive

instalirments from 30 July 2023, tharge on specific book debt and
future recaivables of the Comparty|
created be created out of the
loan avaied .

Repayable in 20 Quaredy Secured by Hypothecation o]
instaliments from 25 December portfclio of the Company craated
2023, ot of the term loan Personal

Guarartes of Mr.  Kamiesh




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

& In Crores)

15 Borrowings (other than debt securities) (at amortised cost): (Continued)
15.2 Detalls of terms of repaymant In respect of term loans: (Continued)

As at Asat Terms of redemption/ Security
M March 2024 31 March 2023 repayment
Term Loans from Banks (Continued}
Tesm Loan - 67 100,00 - Repayable in 36 monthly Secured by a first and axchusive
instaliments from 30 Aprd 2024.  charge on specific book debt and
futune receivables of the Company
createdfic be created out of they
loan availed .
Term Loan - 68 8330 - Repayable in 12 Mﬂy&mmmmwayror

nstalments from 31 December hypothecation on spacific

Interest rate ranges from 6.76% p.a. 1o 10.40% p.a. as at 31 March 2024,
Interest rate ranges from 8.65% p.a. 1o 10.35% p.a. as at 31 March 2023,

2023, recoivables of the Company
Personal Guarantee of Mr
Kamiesh Gandhs and Mrs. Shweta
Gandhi.
Term Loan - 69 187.50 - Repayable in 16 Quartedy Exclusive First charge by way of
Instaliments from 31 march, 2024 hypothecation over ic
Standard receivables.
Total term loans from banks 3,902.00 3,00162
— -
Mote {i):




#12% FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AS AT 31 MARCH 20124
& In Crores)

15
15.1

Borrowings (other than debt securities) (at amortised cost): {Continued)
Detals of terms of repayment in respect of term loans: (Continued)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Term loans from others {Refer note T}

Term Loans from a Financial - 850
Institution - 1

Term Loans from a Financial - 533
Institution - 2

Term Loans from a Financial 2500 25.00
Institution - 3

Term Loans from a Financial 8.33 25.00
Inatitution - 4

Term Loans from a Financial 20.00 33.33
Institution - §

Termn Loans from a Financial 3725 62.08
Institition - 6

Term Loans from a Financial 36.35 50.00
Institution - 7

Termn Loans from a Financial 80.00 120.00
institution - 8

Terms of redemption/
repayment

Repeyable in

instaliments  from 31 January by way of hypothecation of specific.

2021. book debts of the Compary,
created out of the joan availed.

Repayable in 36 momthly Secured by exciusive first change!

instalments from 30 Aprd 2021. by way of hypothecation of specific]
book debls of the Company|
created out of the loan availed.

Bullet Repayment on 17 August NA

2026,

Repayable in 36 monthly Secured by exclusive first chamge;

instaliments from 31  Oclober by way of hypothecation of specific

2021 book debts of the Compary]

Repayable in 12 GQuarterty
instaktments from & October 2022,

Repayabia in 36 monthly
instaiments from 5 October 2022.

Repayabie in 11 Quarterdy
instaliments from 10 July 2023.

Repaysble in 20 Quartery Exclusive charge by way of|
fhypothecation of the specific

instabments from 30 June 2021.

36 monthly Secured by exciusive first charge

Security

creaiad out of the loan avaled.

Secured by exchusive charge on
the: book debt and recorvabies of
the company

Secured by exclusive first chame
on the loan portiolio of the
bormower by way of hypothecation
on the loan instaliments
receivables created from of the
proceeds of the facility.

Secured by Exclusive first change




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

(2 In Crores)

15 Borrowings (other than debt securities) (at amortised cost): (Continued}
151 Details of terms of repayment in respect of term loans: (Continued)

As at As at Terms of redemption/ Security
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 repayment
Term loans from others (Continued)
Term Loans from o Financial T5.00 13500 Repayable in 30 monthly Secured by exclusive charge by
Insditution - 9 nstalments from 10 January way of hypothecation on book
2023. debis and recaivables of the
Company. Personal Guaramee of
Mr. Kamiesh Gandhi, Mrs. Shweta
Gandhi,
Term Loans from a Financial 75.70 129.10 Repayable in 31 monthty Secured by exclusive charge by
Institution - 10 instalments from 10 February way of hypothecation on book
2023 debts and recervables of the
Company. Personal Guarantoe of
Mr. Kamiesh Gandhi, Mrs. Shweta
Gandhi
Term Loans from a Financial £3.53 8505 Repayable in 36 morthly Secured by hypothecation of
Instition - 11 instalimerts from 10 October specific ook debts created out of
Term Loans from a Financial Has - Repayable in 8 Quarterdy Secured by exdusive charge on
Instibubion - 12 instaltments from 31 March 2024  the book debt and receivables of
. the cormpary.
Term Loans from a Financial 66.67 Repayable in 36  monthly Secured by oxclusive first charge
Institution - 13 installments from 5 October 2023. on the kan portfoio of the
borrower by way of hypothecation
on the ljoan  insiakments
receivables created from of the
proceads of the facility.
Term Loans from a Financial 175.00 - Bulet Repayment on 11 Secuned by Exclusive first charge
Institubion - 14 December 2026. by way of hypothecation of book|
debis and receivabies charged
extlusive for the ‘oan. Personal
Guarantee of Mr.  Kamiesh
Gandhi, Mrs. Shweta Gandhi
Term Loans from a Financial T272 Repayable in 11 quarterdy First and exglusive charge by way
Institution - 15 insialiments from 01 April, 2024  of Hypothecation on standardg)
book debts
i Term Leans from a Financial 52.00 - Repayable in 33 Monthly First and exclusive chane Dy way|
Institution - 16 instaliments from 31 May 2024 of Hypothecaton on standand,
book debts.
Teom Loans from a Financial 45.09 - Repayable i 36  Monthly First and exclusive chame by way|
Institution - 17 nstaliments from 05 Decemnber of  Hypothecation over  the]
2023 standard loan receivables
Tenm Loans from a Financial 79.51 - Repayabls in 33 Secxad by exclusive charge byl
Institution - 18 instalments from 10 March 2024. way of hypothecation on  book]
debts and receivables of the|
Comparty. Personal Guarantee of|
Mr. Kamiesh Gandhi, Mrs. Shwela
Gandhi.
Term Loans from a Financial 100.00 Repayable in 33 monthly Secured by exclusive chame by|
Institution - 19 instaiments from 10 June 2024.  way of hypothecation on Dok
debts and receivables of the
Company. Personal Guaraniee of|
Mr. Kamiesh Gandhi, Mrs. Shweta
Gandhi.
Tarm Loans from a Finanial 118.00 Repayable in 33 monthly Secured by exciusive charge by
institution - 20 instaliments from 10 June 2024. way of hypothecaton on DOOK]
debts and meceivables of the
Compeny. Personal Guarantes o]
Mr. Kamiesh Gandhi, Mrs. Shweta
Gandhi.
Total term loans from others 1,14]2=.02 678.40
Note ():
Irterest rale ranges from 7.50% p.a. to 11.50% p.a. as at 31 March 2024,
Interest rata ranges from 7.50% p.a. to 11.50% p.a. as at 31 March 2023.




MAAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

R In Crores)

16 Subordinated liabilities (at amortised cost): (Continued)

18.1 Details of terms of repayment in respect of subordinated labilities:

As at As al
31 March 2024

Terms of redemption/ Security
31 March 2023 repayment
Subordinated liabilitles

50, 10.75% unsecured, rated, listed, 50.00 50.00 Coupon Rate: 10.75%pa
redeemable, suborinated, taxabie, Coupon Payment frequency
transferable, non-convertible Monthly and on Maturity
debentures of T 100 lakhs each Principal Payment frequency: NA.
Bullet Payment at the end of the
tenor
Tenor - & years and 7 months
500, 10.75% unlisted, subondinated, 5000 5000 Coupon Rate: 10.75% p.a.
unsacured, redeemable, Non- Coupon  Payment  frequency
convertible debentures of T 10 lakhs Monthly and on Maturity
each Principal  Payment  frequency: NA.
Bultet Payment at the end of the
tenor
Tenor: & yoars
250, 10.75% unfisted, subordinated. 25.00 25.00 Coupon Rate: 10.75% p.a.
unsecured, redeemabie, non- Coupon  Payment frequency
convertible debenturas of T 10 lakhs Monthly and on Maturity
each Principal  Payment  frequency: N.A,
Bullet Payment at the erd of the
enor
Tenor : & years and 7 monihs
3500, 10.75% uniisted, a5.00 35.00 CouponRate: 10.75% p.a.
subordinated, unsecured, Coupont  Payment  frequency
Iredeemable, non-convertible Monihty and on Maturity
debentures of T 1 lakhs each Principal Payment frequency: NA.
Bullgt Payment at the end of the
tenor
Tenor : 6 yoars
5000, 10.75% unsecured, rated. £0.00 50.00 Coupon Rate: 10.75% p.a.
isted, radeemable, subordinated, Coupon Paymert frequency
taxable, transferable, non- Monthly and on Maturity
convertiblg debentures of T 1 lakhs Principal Payment frequency: NA
each Bullet Payment at the end of the
tenor
Tenor : 5 years and 7 months
5000, 10.75% unsecured, rated. 50.00 5000 Coupon Rate: 10.75% p.a.
usted, regeemabie, subordinated, Coupon  Payment  frequency
taxable, transferable, non- Monthly and on Malurity
convertible debentures of T 1 lakhs Principal  Payment  frequency. NA.
each Bullet Payment at the end of the
tenor
Tenor . 5 years and 7 months
5000, 10.75% rated, listed, 50.00 Coupon Rate: 10.75% p.a.
subordinaled, unsecured Coupon  Payment  frequency
redeamable, taxable, ransiorable Monthly and on Maturity
non-convertible debentures of € 1 Poncipal  Paymert  frequency: NA.
lakhs each Bullet Payment at the end of the
teror
Tenor : 5 years and 7 months
Total subordinated Kabiiittes 310.00 260.00




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

® In Crores)

17

18

19

Other financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Dues to the assignees towards collections from assigned receivables
Advances received against loan agreements

Unpaid dividend on equity shares (Refer note below)

Dealer advances

Lease liability

Liabilities for expenses

Other payable

Total other financial liabilities

Note :

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

31.87 70.36
178.97 211.29

210 1.62

0.02 0.02

712 513

299 1.14

8.13 1.43

2205 14.66
253.25 305.65

There are no amounts that are due and remain unpaid to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at the close of the year.

Provisions

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 40)
Compensated absences

Provision for unspent CSR liability
Total provisions

Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory remittances

Financial guarantee liability

Income received in advance

Total other non-financial liabilities

0.27 0.16
9.82 9.32
10.09 9.48
463 324
- 0.01
1.81 1.01
6.44 4.26




fAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

{¥ In Crores)

20  Equity share capital
Autharized shares:

200,000,000 Equity Shares o1 ¥ 10 each
{As at 31 March 2G23: 6,40,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each}

- 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumuiative Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each
{As at 31 March 2023: 2,20,00,000 §.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each)

- 13.31% Compulsorily Cenvertible Cumulative Praferanca Sharea of T 10 each
(As et 31 March 2023: 2,20,00,000 13.31% Compulsorily Corvertible Cumulative Praference Shares of ¥ 10 each)

- 9.75% Compulscrily Convertible Curnulative Preference Shares of € 1,00,000 each
(As at 31 March 2023: 400 8.75% Compulsarily Corvertible Cumulative Preferance Shares of € 1,00,000 each)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares:
183,888,129 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 sach fully paid-up
(As at 31 March 2023: § 48 62 043 Equity Shares of T 10 each)

Note

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

200.00 84.00
- 22.00
- 22.00
- 4.00
200.00 112.00
183.99 54.66
163,69 £4.66

1. During the current year, pursuant to the approval of shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on February 08, 2024, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company comprising of Rs.
142,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred and Twelve Croras Only) divided into 6,40,00,000 (Six Crores and Forly Lakh} Equity Shares of Rs.10 {Rupeas Ten Only) each, 400 {Fouwr Hundred) - 9.75%
Compulsorily Convertinie Cumuiative Preference Shares of Rs.1,00,000 {Rupees One Lakh Ondy) each, 2,20,00,000 (Twa Crors Twenty Lakh) 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference
Shares of Rs.10 {Rupses Ten Only) each and 2,20,00,000 (Two Crore Twerty Lakh) - 13,31% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.10 (Rupees Ten Only) each was
raciassified into Rs. 112,00,00,000/- {Rupees One Hundred and Twelve Crores Qnly) divided into 11,20,00,00¢ (Efeven Crores and Twenty Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs.10 (Rupees Tan Only} each.

2. During the currant year, pursuant to the approval of shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Mesting held on February 08, 2024, tha Authorised share capital of the Company haa been increased
from Rs. 112,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred and Twelve Crores Only) divided into 11,20,00,000 (Eleven Crores and Twanty Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Oniy) sach to Rs.

200,00,00,000/- {Rupses Two Hundred Croras Only) divided imo 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crores) Equity Shares of Rs.10 (Rupees Ten Only) aach,

20.1  Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the raporting year:

As at 3 March 2024

As 8t 31 March 2023

No, of Shares ¥ In Crores) No, of Shares {€in Crores)
Equity Shares
Oulstanding at the beginning of the year 54,442,043 54,88 54,882 043 54,08
Add: Bonus shares Issued during the year 109,324,088 109.32 - -
Outstanding at the end of e yedr 163,988,129 183.99 54 882,043 54.80




20

20.2

20.3
204

20.5

Equity share capltal (Continued)

Detalle of shares held by each shareholder holding more than £% shares:

As at 31 March 2024 As 8t 37 March 2023
Glans of shares | Name of sharsholder Nurmber of ahares % halding in Nummber of shares % holding in
hald that class of hald that class of
shams shares
Equity sharas
Shwata Karmiesh Gandhi 49,015,350 20.89% 18,338,450 29.80%
Mukesh C. Gandhi {Refer nete below) 48,470,442 20.56% 16,156,814 28.56%
Karmiash C. Gandhi 18,021,524 11.80% 6,340,508 11,60%
Vistra [TCL | Ltd Business Excellence Trust Ill Indin Business 12,133,737 T.40% 4,044 578 7.40%

Nete: Mr. Mukesh C, Gandhi has passed away on 19 January 2021

The Company has neither allctted any share pursuant to contracts without paymant being raceived in cash nor has it bought back any shares during the preceding period of 5 financial years.
Terms / rights attached to equity sharas

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of T 10 par share. Each shareholder is aligible for one vote per shara held, The dividend propoesed by the Board of Diractors Is subject to
the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Maeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be ertitled to receive
the remaining assets of the Company after gistribution of all preferential amaurits, in proportion to their sharehlding.

Detalis of shares held by promoters (Including promoter group) of the Company:

Shares hald by promoters at 31 March  Shares heid by promoters at 31 March 2023 % Change during the

Promoter and promater group name 2024 current year (23.24) #
No, of Bhares % of total sharas No. of Shares % of total shares

Equity shares
Shwe!a Kamiesh Gandhi 49,015,350 20.89% 16,330,450 20.85% 200.00%|
WMukesh C. Gandhl (Refer note below) 43,470,442 28.38% 16,156,814 29.56% 200.00%
Kamiesh C. Gandhi 18,021,524 11.60% 8,340,508 11.80% 200.00%,|
Prarthana Marketing Privats Limited 1,952,8T1 2.41% 1,317,557 241% 200,00%,
Anamaya Capital Lip 299,982 0.10% 99,994 0.18% 200.00%
Dhvanil K, Gandbi 105,831 0.08% 35277 0.08% 200.00%
Dhriti K. Gandhl 38,182 0.02% 12,054 2.02% 200.00%

Note: Mr. Mukesh C, Gandhi has passsd away on 12 January 2021.

# During the currant year, pursuant to the approval of sharehaidars at the Extra Qrdinary General Meating hald on February 09, 2024, the Company has issusd 10,83,24,088 (Ten Grore Ninsty Thras Lakh Twenty Four
Thousand and Eighty Six) fuly paid up Equity Shares of Rs, 10/ sach as Bonus Shares in the ratio of 2:1 (2 Bonus shares for evary 1 squity shares held on February 22, 2024) by utilizing Securities Premium Account,
Thase Equity shares have been slloted on February 24, 2024.




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

 In Crores)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
21 Other equity (Refer note 21.1)
Reserve ws. 45.1C of RBI Act, 1934
Quitstanding at the beginning of the year 252.10 211.91
Additions during the year 49.55 40,19
Outstanding at the end of the year 301.65 252.10
Securities premium
Quitstanding at the beginning of the year 426.87 426.87
Additiens during the year - -
Deductions during the year (On issue of bonus shares) {109.32) -
Qutstanding at the end cof the year 317.55 426.87
Retained eamings
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 674.61 533.21
Profit for the year 247.75 200.96
item of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earmings
On defined benefit plan {0.39) 0.04
921.97 734.21
Appropriations:
Transfer o reserve u/s. 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934 (49.55) {40.19)
Einal dividend on equity shares (Refer note 21.2) {10.11) (9.67)
Interim dividend on equity shares {Refer note 21.2) {16.40) (5.84)
Total appropriations {76.06) {59.60)
Retained eamings 845.91 674.61
QOther comprehensive income
Quistanding at the beginning of the year 97.49 113.984
Loans and advances fair valued through other comprehensive Income 21.57 (26.085)
Impairment on koans and advances through CCl 26.23 3.04
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (5.43) £.56
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 139.86 97.49
Total other equity 1,604.97 1,451.07




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)}
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

T In Crores)
21 Qther equity (Continued)

21.1 Nature and purpose of reserve

1 Reserve ws. 45-C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the "RBI Act, 1934")
Reserve u/s. 45-1C of RBI Act, 1934 is created in accordance with section 45 IC(1) of the RBI Act, 1934. As per Section 45
I1C{2) of the RBI Act, 1934, no appropriation of any sum from this reserve fund shall be rmade by the NBFC except for the
purpose as may be specified by RE|

2 Securities premium
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited
purposes in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Act.

3 Retained eamings
Retained eamings is the accumulated available profit of the Company carried forward from earlier years. These reserve are
free reserves which can be utilised for any purpose as may be required.

The Company recognises change on account of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset) as part of retained
eamings with separate disciosure, which comprises of:

i) actuarial gains and losses,

ii} return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset); and

iii) any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
(asset).

4 Other comprehensive income

On equity investments

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of investments in equity securities (other than investment in
subsidiary) in other comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the FVYOCI equity investments reserve
within equity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to retained eamings when the relevant equity securities are
derecognised.

On loans
The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of loans and advances in other comprehensive income. These

changes are accumulated within the FVOCI - ioans and advances reserve within equity. The Company transfers amounts from
this reserve to the statement of profit and loss when the loans and advances are sold. Further, impairment loss allowances on
the loans are recognised in OCI.

21.2 Equity dividend paid and proposed

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Declared and paid during the year (Pre Bonus)
Dividends on equity shares:
Final dividend for 31 March 2023:  1.85 per share (31 March 2022: T 1.75 per share) 10.11 9.57
Interim dividend for 31 March 2024: 7 3 per share (31 March 2023 : T 1.80 per share} 16.40 9.84
Total dividends paid 26.51 19.41
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Proposed for approval &t Annual General Meeting (not recognised as a liability}
Dividend on equity shares:
Final dividend for 31 March 2024: T 0.51 per share (31 March 2023: T 1.85 per share) B.38 10.11

Note ; During the F.¥ 2023-24 Company has paid the interim dividend of ¥ 3 per share - pre bonus - (T 1 ex-bonus). Additionally,
the Board has proposed the final dividend @ 5.10% i.e. T 0.51 per share subject to the approval of the Members in the ensuing
Annual Generai Meeting.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(T In Crores)

22  Interest Income

Year ended 31 March 2024 Year ended 31 March 2023
On Financial assats On Financial Assets - . On Financial assets On Financial Assets
f:l:::::;':: ;\‘I:é‘l measured at classified at fair value Total g:sm:tl :\s‘%eés' measured al Amonised classified at I_’air value Tetal

Amortised Cost through profit or loss Cost through profit or Joss
Intarest on icana 47293 11.92 - 884.85 682.01 553 - 687.54
irterest income from investments - 76.80 - 78,80 - 5037 1.35 51.72
Interest on depoaits with banks - 55.08 - 55.08 - 37.84 - 37.84
Other interast income 5,55 - - 5.65 3.69 18,54 - 20.23
Total B78.48 143,80 - 1,022.28 685,70 110.28 1.35 797.33

-
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

T In Crores)

23

24

25

26

Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss - investments
Fair value changes:

- Realised

- Unrealised

Total
Other income

Rental income

Net gairv(loss} cn derecognition of property, plant and equipment
Dividend income

Net gain on sale of investments measured at amoriized cost
Gain on derecognition of leased asset

Gain on foreign currency transactions

Inceme from non-financing activity

Total

Finance cost
{On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost})

Interest on debt securities
Interest on borrowings

interest on subordinated liabilities
Other interest expense

Other borrowing cost

Lease liabifity interest obligation

Total
Impairment on financial assets

Loans

- Expected credit loss (On financial instruments measured at FvoChH

- Expected credit loss (On financial instrumenis measured at amortised cost)
- Write off (net of recoveries)

- Loss on repossessed assels

Investments
- Expected credit loss (On financial instruments measured at amortised cosl)

Total

NCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

12.57 21.49
10.09 18.75
2.48 2.74
12.57 21.45
0.10 0.10
. 0.10
1.26 1.12
4.84 1.35
0.02 -
0.06 -
1.14 0.33
742 3.00
52.29 51.76
502.38 348.21
29.55 14.70
0.01 35.84
29.74 2422
0.19 0.09
614.16 474 82
26.23 3.04
(0.25) 0.22
48.13 4265
15.50 7.40
(0.06) {0.31)
89.55 53.00
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

% In Crores)

27 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident fund and other funds (Refer note 40(a))

Gratuity expense (Refer note 40(b))
Staff welfare expenses

Total

28 Depreciation, amortization and impalrment

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation on Right-of-use asset

Total

29 Other expenses

Rent

Rates and laxes
Stationery and printing
Telephone

Electricity

Postage and courier
Insurance

Conveyance

Travelling

Repairs and maintenance :
Building

Others

Professional fees

Payment to auditors {Refer note below)
Directors' sitting fees
Legal expenses

Bank charges
Advertisement expenses
Sales promotion expenses
Recovery contract charges
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer note 33)
Credit guarantee fees
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Note: Payment to auditors

As auditor:
Statutory audit
Limited review of quarterly results
Other services

* Represents amount kess than T 50,000

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
81.83 57.74
246 1.87
0.65 0.66
211 2.22
87.05 62.49
2.72 1.80
0.52 0.23
0.57 0.27
3.81 240
3.97 3.25
0.22 0.19
1.28 0.90
0.75 0.60
1.35 097
1.35 0.97
1.15 0.89
1.75 1.25
3.68 2.90
0.31 0.58
0.99 1.15
9.35 6.50
0.57 0.46
0.37 0.10
219 1.86
2.85 1.46
1.63 0.99
0.35 0.44
0.06 0.11
4.46 426
6.76 2,13
4.39 2.48
49.78 34.44
0.24 0.20
0.3 0.26
0.03 *
0.58 0.46
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

 In Crores)

30

30.1

302

Tax expenses

The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are:

Current tax

Short / (Excess) provision for tax relating to prior years
Deferred tax

Total tax charge

Current tax
Deferred tax

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
80.89 65.10
{0.17) (247
2.95 1.11
83.67 63.74
80.72 62.63
295 1.1

Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had been charged
at India corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by india’s domestic tax rate

for the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 is, as follows:

Year endad Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Accourting profit before tax 33142 26470
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Computed tax expense 83.42 66.62
Tax effect of :
Exempted income {0.32) {0.30)
Non deductible items 1.12 1.24
Short / (Excess) provision for tax relating o prior years (0.17) (2.47)
Others (0.38) (1.35
Tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss B367 6374
Effective tax rale 25.25% 24.08%
Deferred tax
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax asset / liabllity {net}
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:
At the start of the year DTA / (DTL) (net) 18.22 12.79
Credit / {charge) for loans and advances through OCI (5.43) B.56
Credit / (charge) for remeasurement of the defined benefit liabilities 0.13 (0.02)
Credit / {(charge) to the statement of profit and loss {2.95) (1.11)
At the end of year DTA [ {DTL} (net) 9.97 18%
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

{¥ In Croves)
30 Tax expenses (Continued)

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the income tax expense:

As at Statement of ocl As at
31 March 2023 profit and loss 31 March 2024
Component of defarred tax asset / (liability)
Deferred tax asset / (liability) in relation to:
Difference between written down value of fixed assels as per books of (0.51) (0.12) - (0.63}
accounts and income tax
Deferred tax on fair valse of invesiments {0.02) (0.62) - (0.64)
Impact of fair value of assats 5.50 0.00 (5.43) 007
Income taxabie on realised basis (8.68) {3.95) - {1283
Deferred tax on prepaid finance charges (4.00) (5.18) - (9.27)
impairment on financial assets 26.10 6.52 - 3262
Recognition of lease liability and right to use asset 0.02 002 - 0.04
Expenses allowable on payment basis (0.10) 0.38 0.13 o4
Total 18.22 (2.95} {5.30) 9.97
As at Statement of ocl As at
31 March 2022 profitand loss 31 March 2023
Component of deferred tax asset / (liability}
Deferred 1ax asset / (liabslity) in relation to:
Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per books of (D.44) (0.07) - {0.51)
accounts and income tax
Deferred tax on fair value of invesiments (0.02} - - {0.02)
Impact of fair vaiue of assets (1.06) - 6.56 5.50
Income taxable on realised basis (10.82) 2.14 - (8.68)
Defered tax on prepaid finance charges (0.29) {3.80) - (4.09)
Impairmentt on financial assets 2535 075 - 26.10
Recognition of lease fiability and right to use asset 0.01 .01 - 0.02
Expenses allowable or payment basis 0.06 0.14) (0.02) {0.10)
Total 12,79 {1.11) 6.54 18.22
46,3 |Current tax liabilities As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Pravision for tax [net of advance tax of T 76.59 crores (31 March 2023: T 63.24 crores)) 4.29 186
30.4 lincome tax assets As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income tax assets [net of provision for tax of T 2.52 crores {31 March 2023: ¥ 2.52 2.52
2.52 crores)]
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

 In Crores)

31 Earnings per share
(A) Basic earnings per share
Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders (basic)
Weighted average number of equity shares of ¥ 10 each (Refer note below}
Basic eamings per share of face value of T 10 each (in T)
(B) Diluted earnings per share
Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders {diluted)

Weighted average number of equity shares of ¥ 10 each (Refer note beiow)
Diluted eamings per share of face value of T 10 each (in )

Year ended
31 March 2024

247.75
163,986,129
15.11

24175
163,986,129
15.11

Year ended
31 March 2023

200.96
163,986,129
12.25

200.96
163,986,129
12.25

Note : The basic and diluted earnings per share have been computed for previous year on the basis of the adjusted number of

equity shares in accordance with bonus issue of shares.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

¥ In Crores)

32

33

Contlagent liabilitles and commitments {to the extent not provided for)

Asat As at
31 March 2024 I March 2023
[A) Contingent Labilities
1) in respect of disputed mcorme-tax matiers : (Refer note i) 012 012
I} Guarantses given on behaif of subsidiary company’ (Refer note i)
Te National Housing Bank "NHB™)
Arvount of guaraniees T 5 crores (3 March 2023: T 5 crones)

Amount of loan cutstanding 0.48 0.79
(B) Commitments
1) Ests amount of ining to be on capital and not provided for

Property, plant & squipment and Capital work in progress 0.12 139

immmwmmwmm - -

Noles:
it After adjusting the amount of refurk claimed by tha company amounting Rs. 0.33 Crore.
i}  Guarantees have been given by the Company to NHB on behalf of the subsidiary company for the loan taken and accordingly, the same has been
shown as contingent Babiity.

Corporate social responsibility ("CSR") expenses:

The average profit before tax of the Company for the last three financial years was T 223.09 crores, basis which the Company was required o spend T 4 456
crores towards CSR activities for the current financiat year (31 March 2023: T 4.26 crores)

&) Amount spent during the year on:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Particulars Amount Spent Amount Unpaid/ Total Amount Spent Amount Unpad! Total
provision Provision
Constructon / scousition of sy - - - . - N
assel
On purpose other than (i} above 037 409 4.48 0.28 398 426

b} The Companty has net made any transaction with related parties in retation to CSR expenditure as per Ind AS 24

c} In case of Section $35(6); Detalls of on-going projects

F.Y. Ogening balance Amount required Amount sper Closing Balance

With Company In Separate CSR o be spent during From From With I Separate CSR

Unspent Alc the year Company’s Separate CSR Company Unspant Ak

— bank Ak Unsoent Al

202324 - 9.32 446 0.37 360 ) 572
2022-23 - 691 426 o28 157 398 534
2021-22 - 384 441 0.42 0.92 3.99 292

2020-21 N NA 418 0.34 . 3.84 -

Note: Unspent CSR amount of T 3.98 crores for FY 2022-23 was deposited in unspent CSR bank account on 27 Apnl 2022, Unspent amourt of 7 4 09 crores
avalable with the Company is transferred to an unspent CSR account on 29 April 2024.

{d} Reason for shortfall: The Company has on-going projects and it is spending the said amound as per pre-approved on-going projects. For more
details, refer annexure of Drector's report on CSR.

() Nature of CSR activities: Prometing education, eradicating hunger, poverty & mainutrition, promoting heatth care and such other activibes. For
more details, refer annexure of Director's report on CSR.

Segment reporting:

Operating sagment are componernts of the Company whose operating results are requiarty reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (*CODM") to
maka decisions about resources o be allocated 1o the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financiai information is available.

The Company is engaged primanty on the business of “Financing” only, taking info sccount the risks and retumns, the organzation siruchure and the intemal
reporting systems. All the operations of the Company are in India. All non-curment assets of the Company are kocated n India. Accordingly, thare are no
separata reportsble segments as per ind AS 108 — "Operating segments’.
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T In Crores!
35  Related party disclosures:

{@) Related party discliosures as required by Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures.

List of related parties and relationships:

Sr. No. Nature of relationship

1 Subsidiary MAS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited
MASFIN Insurance Broking Private Limited
2 Key management persannel ("KMP™} Mr_ Kamlesh C. Gandhi 1Chairman and managing director)
(where Ihere are transactions) Mrs Darshana 5. Pandya {Director and chiet executive officen

Mr. Balabhaskaran Nay {Indepenaent drector) iretired w.e.f 31 March 2024)
Mr Umesh Shah {independent director:
Mr. Chetanohai Shah (ndependent directary iretired we.e f 31 March 2024)
MWr. Narayanan Sadanandan (appointed we f 21 June 2023)
Mrs. Daksha Shah {Independent director)

3 Qtherrelated partes Prarthna Marketing Private Limited

{where there are ransaclions} Anamaya Capilal LLP

M:. Kamlesh C. Ganchi (As Executor of will of Late M. Mukesh C. Gandhi, relative of &A'F)
Mrs. Shweta K. Gandhi (relalve of KMP;
Mr. Dhvanil K. Gandhi (relative of KMP)
Mr_Saumi O, Pandya frelative of KMP)
Ms. Dhri K. Ganchi (relative of XMP)
Umesh Rajanikan! Shah HUF (relalive of KMP)
Pauravi Umesh Shah (relative of KMP)

Transactions with related parties are as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2024

Subsidiary Key management Cther ralated Total
persennel parties

Rent income 0.10 - - 0.10
Net recovery charges received 0.0 - - 0.01
Expenditure reimbursed 1.04 - - 104
Remittances of collection re¢erved on behalf of - - - -

Cross Charges Payment for professienal services 0.13 - - a1
Remunerabon {inclutng bonus) (Net of Cross Charges) - 719 122 8.4
Dividend received 1.26 - - 1.26
Dividena pad - 309 16.48 19.57
Investment 15.0¢ . - 15.00
Sitting fees - 0.34 - .34

Year ended 31 March 2023

Subsidiary Key management Diher refated parties Total
personnel

Rentincome 010 - - 210
Net recovery charge s received 0.0z - - .02
Expenditure rembursed - - - -

Remmtances of collkection received on behalf of 610 - - o
Cross Charges Payment for professional services 0.13 - - 013
Remureration sinciuding bonus) (Net of Cross Charges) - 5.74 0.95 669
Dwidend receved 1.42 - - 112
Dividend paid - 226 12.06 14.32
investment 0.35 - - 0.35
Sitting fees . c.09 . 0.09

* Represents amounl less than T 50 000

Balances autstanding from related parties are as follows:

As at 31 March 2024

Subsidiary Key management Other related Total
personnel parties
Bonus payable - 0.3% 0.03 0.42
Investrent - - 61.55
‘Guaranlees outstanding - - 0.4¢
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36

i

Related party disclosures: {Continued)

(a) Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures. (Continued)

As 2t 31 March 2023

Subsidiary  Key o Ofther retated parties Total
personnel

Bonus payable - 0.31 003 D.34

Investiment 4655 - . 4555

(Guaraniees outstanding 079 - - 079

Financial guaraniee commission income amounts to less than T 50,000 during he year {31 March 2023 € 0.01 Crore) on account of fair vakation of
corporate financial guarantee given o bank on behalf of subsidiary.

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an amm's length basis. None of the balances are secured.

Key managerial parsonnel who are under the employment of the Company are entitied 1o post employment benefits and other empioyee benefits necognised
as par ind AS 19 - Employee Banefits in the financial statements.

Comp ion to key g p el are as folk
Yearended 31 Year ended 31
March 2024 March 2023
Short-temm employse benefits 7.19 574
Post-employment benefits 0.02 0.02
Other long termn empioyment benefits 0.01 {0.01)

7.22 575

The remuneration of key management personnet are determined by the nomination and remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

Oftseatting
Following table represents the racognised financial assets that are offset, or subject to enforceable master netting armangements and other similar

arangements but not offset, as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. The column ‘net amount’ shows the impact of the Company's balance sheet if all the
set-off rights were exercised.

Effect of on the balance sheet Related amount not offset
Gross Gross Net Financial Met amount
offset in presentad in instrument

bal sheet  bal sheet fateral {refer

(refer note 1) note 2)
31 March 2024
Loans and advances 7.277.40 12.57 7.264.83 - 7.264.83
31 March 2023
Lcans and advances 591964 248 591018 - 591016
Note

1.3 1257 crores (31 March 2023: T 5.48 crornes) represents advances Iechivid agaist lodn agreemeonts.
Z Reprasants sacunly daposts receved irom bomowerns.

Events after the reporting period

ind AS 10 ‘Events safter the Reporting Period’, requires an enlity o evakuate information avaiable after the balance sheet date to determine ¥ such
nformation constitutes an adjusting event, which would require an adjustment to the financial siatements, or a non-adjusting event, which would only require
disclosura. There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial staternents.

’
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38 Revenue from contracts with customers

Set out bekw is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with cLstomerns and reconciliation 1o the statement of profit and loss:

Year endod Yoar ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Type of Incomea

Feas and commission income §5.33 49.98
Total revenus from contracts with custemers 55.33 43.98
Gaographical markets

ndia 6533 49.58

Outside Inda - -
Tetal from with 65.33 49.58
Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point i time 6533 4998

Services transfemed over time - -
Total from with 65,33 49.98
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39 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Within After Within After
12 months 12 months Total 12 months 12 months Total
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 178.02 - 178.02 237.88 - 237.86
Bank balance other than cash and cash 6840.84 2343 664.27 57.78 475.99 533.77
equivalents
Trade receivables 8.52 - 8.52 427 - 427
Loans 4,387 .81 2.877.02 7,264.83 3,574.16 2,336.00 5,910.16
Investments 509.21 278.50 787.711 478.41 7.7 826.12
Other financial assets 54.59 21.21 75.80 46.38 13.86 60.24
Non-financial assets
Income tax assets (nef) - 2.52 2.52 - 2.52 2.52
Deferred tax assets (net) - 9.97 9,97 - 18.22 18.22
Property, plant and equipment - 18.83 18.63 - 13.95 13.95
Capital work-in-progress - 689.80 89.80 - 57.66 57.66
Right-of-use assat 0.78 2.04 2.82 0.3 0.75 1.06
Intangible assets under development - 0.24 0.24 - 0.33 033
Other intangible assets - 1.01 1.01 - 1.03 1.03
Other non-financial assets 27.08 0.04 27.10 10.79 - 10.79
Total assets 5,804,823 3,304,441 9,109.24 4,409,96 3,288.02 7.677.98
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Maturity analysis of assats and liabilities: (Continued)

LIABILITIES

Financial llabilities

Trade payables

Other payables

Debt securities

Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Suberdinated liabilities

Other financial liabilities

Non-financial liabllities
Current tax liabilities (net)
Provisions

Other non-financial liabilities

Total Hability

Net

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Within After Within After

12 months 12 months Total 12 months 12 manths Total
15.74 - 15.74 11.64 - 11.64
1.14 - 1.14 1.84 - 1.84
105.71 521.15 €26.86 522.26 105.00 827.26
3,0685.32 3,055.04 6,120.36 2,624.76 2,332.80 4,957.56
- 302.11 302.11 - 252.70 252.70
24911 4.14 253.25 301.63 4.02 305.65
4.29 - 4.29 1.86 - 1.86
9.88 0.21 10.09 9.36 0.12 948
6.44 - 6.44 4.26 - 4.26
3,457.62 3,882.66 7,340.28 3,477.60 2,694.65 6,172.25
2,347.21 (578.25) 1,768.96 932,36 573.37 1,505.73
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40 Empioyee benefit plan

Disclosure in respect of employee benefits under Ind AS 19 - Employee Benafits are as under;

(a)

(o)

Defined contribution plan

The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans. The
Company's contribution 1o provident fund aggregating ¥ 2.17 crores {31 March 2023: T 1.61 crores) and employee state insurance scheme
aggregating T 0.11 crores (31 March 2023: ¥ 0.12 crores) has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss under the head
employee benefils expense.

Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

Financial assets not measured at falr vaiuve

The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the “gratuity plan®) covering eligible employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the
Payment of Gratuity Acl, 1972. Under the act, empioyee who has completed five years of service is entitied to specific benefit. The level of
benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retinement age/ resignation date.

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to risks such as actuarial risk, investment risk, liquidity risk, market risk, legisiative risk.
These are discussed as follows:

Actuarial risk: B is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:

Adverse salary growth experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in
obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

Variability In mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the gratuity benefits will be
paid earfier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash fiow will lead to an actuarial
loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates: If aclual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the gratuity benefits
will be paid earlier than expecied. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

Investment risk: For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the
fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is ndependent of the future discount rate. This
can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-
valuation period.

Liquidity risk: Empioyees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. ff
some of such employees resign / retire from the Company, there can be sirain on the cash flows.

Market risk: Market risk is a colleclive term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One
aciuarial assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rale reflects the time value of money. An increase in
discount rate leads to decrease in defined benefit obligation of the pian benefits and vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on
the govenment bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

Legistative risk: Legistative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabidities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the
legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits
to the empioyees. This will direcily affect the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the same will have to be recognized
immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.
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40 Employee benefit plan (Continued)

o)

Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

The status of gratuity plan as required under Ind AS 19 is as under.

(T In Crores)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i. Reconclliation of opening and closing bal of defined benefit oblig 1
Prasent valus of defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year 384 3.42
Current service cost 0.7 0.68
irterast cost 0.26 023
Bernefits paid {0.13) (0.20)
Re-measurement {or Actuarial) {gain) / loss afising from:
Change in dermnographic assumptions {0.10) {0.14)
Change in financial assumptions 0.03 (0.06)
Experience adjustments 0.85 o
{Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the year 5,38 3.54
ii. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 4.48 334
[interest income 0.33 025
Retun on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income 0.08 {0.13)
Contributions by the Company 1.86 122
Benefits paid {0.13) (0:20)
Fair value of plan assets at the ond of the year .68 448
ill. Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and falr value of plan assets
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the year 5.3 304
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 8.50 448
Net asset / {liability) recognized in the balance sheet as at the and of the year 1.23 0.54
iv. Composition of plan assets
100% of plan assets are administered by LIC.
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 _ 31 March 2023
v. Expense recognised during the Year
Curent servica cost 0.7 0.68
Interest cost {0.06) (0.02)
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and kss 0.85 0.66
vi. Other comprehensive income
Components of actuarial ganviosses on obligations:
Due to change in financial assumptions 0.03 (0.08)
Due to change in demographic assumption {0.10) (0.14)
Oue (o experience adjustments 0.65 o.01
Ratumn on plan assets exchuding amounts included in interest income {0.06) 013
Components of defined benafit costs recognised in other comprehwnsive income 0.52 (0.08),
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{b} Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

As at As ot
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
vil. Principal actuarial assumpti

Discount rate (per annum) 7.15% 7.30%
Rate of retun on plan assets (p.a.) 7.15% 7.30%
Annual increasa in salary cost 8.00% B.00%
Withdrawal rates per anfum

25 and below 35.00% 30.00%

261035 30.00% 25,00%

36 1o 45 25.00% 20.00%)

4610 55 20.00% 15.00%

56 and above 20.00% 15.00%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India’s bond as at the balance sheet dale for the estimated
term of the obligations.

vill. Sensitlvity analysls

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit abligation are discount rate, expecied salary increase and
withdrawal rates. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumpbions
occurming at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Year snded Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Defined benefit obligation (Basa) 5% 3.94
Year ended Yoar ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Decrsase Incroase Decrease Increase

Discount rate {- / + 0.5%) 5.45 526 403 385
{% change compared o base due to sensitivity 1.39% 1.82% 2.21% -2.41%
Salary growth rate (- 7 + 0.5%) 527 545 3.06 401
(% change compared to base due to sensdivity) -1.60% 1.62% -2.11% 1.86%
Withdrawal rate (W.R.) (W.R. x 90% / W.R. x 110%) 5.42 530 396 301
(% change compared io base du o sensitivity) 1.11% -1.03% 0.51% 0.78%)

ix. Asset liability matching strategies

The Company contributas to the insurance fund based on estimated liability of next financial year end. The projected liabiity statements is
obtained from the actuarial valuer.
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40 Employea benefit plan (Continued)
{b} Defined benefit plans: (Continued)
x. Effect of plan on the Company's future cash flows
@) Funding arrangements and funding policy
The Company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity 10 the employees. Every year, the insurancs company
cames out a funding valuation based on the latest employee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets arising as a resuit of
such valuation is funded by the Company.

b) Maturity proflle of defined benefit obligation

The average outstanding term of the obligations (years) as at 31st March 2024 is 4.10 years.(31st March 2023 : 5.11 years)

Cash flows (T) as at
[Expected cash fiows over the next [vatued on undiscounted basis}: 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
1st Foliowing Year 1.19 0.7
2nd Following year 098 0.61
3 Following Year 032 056
4th Fotiowiry) Year 6.70 0.49
5th Followang Year 0.69 044
Sum of years 6 to 10 1.95 1.71
The future accrual is not considered in arriving at the above cash-flows.
The expected contibaution for the next year is T 0.90 crores.
{c} Other long term empioyee beneflts
As at As at

_31 March 202431 March 2023 |
Discount Rate 7.15% 7.30%
Salary Growth Rate 8.00% 8.00%
Mortality Rates base Indian Assured Indian Assured

{2012-14) {2012-14)

The Company has not funded its compensated absences liability and the same continues to remain as unfunded as at March 31, 2023,

The Riability for compensated absences is T 0.27 crores (31 March 2023: T 0.16 crores).
Code on Soclal Security, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which subsumes the provident fund Act and the gratuity Act and rules
there under. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has also released draft rules thereunder on 13 November 2020 and has invited
suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry of Labour and Employment. The Company will evaluate the
rules, assess the impact, if any, and account for the same once the rules are notified and become effective.
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iii}

Financial instrument and fair value measurement

Fair value i the price thal would be received to sef ah pssel or paid to transfer & Rabiity m an onderty iy i the principal (of most ket
at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price), regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimeted using a valuation
chnigue.

in order i show how fair valuas nave bean derivad, financial instruments are claasified based on a hierarchy of valuabon techniques

Thes note describes the faw value of both ial and rv ial instruments.

Measurement of Tair values
Financial instruments - fair value
Tha fair value of fnancial nstruments #s referred B in nots {B) balow have bsen classified into three W g on the inputs used i the valuation

Iachnique. Tmmmgvnmemnlmntyhmnhdmsnmmmmmlmum(uwn rmmmmms)mbwaslprmnyb
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement).

The categories used are as follows:

Leval 1: Quoted prices {unadusied) m sctive markets for financial instruments

Level 2 The tair value of financial mstruments that are nol traded in active markel is ined using 3oy bechmicu m«mv\emuw'

market data snd rely as Fie as posaibls on entity specific esti I¥ al signifa inputs required to fair value on instrument sre observable, the nstnsmant is
nciuded in level 2, and

Lavel 3; if one or more of signiicant gt i nol basad on obeervabls market data, the instrument is Ncluded in leve! 3.
Transfers between levels 1 and 2
There has been no transfer in between level 1 and level 2.

Valuation techniques.

Loans

The Company has computed fair vakse of the loans and advances tfwough GCI considering its business model. Thesa harve been kair vadued using the base of the:
inlerest rate of loan disbursed m the Last month of the year end which is an unobservable nput and therefore thase has been considered o be fair valued using
level 3 inputs.

rvestments measured at FVTPL
vaﬂuesdmﬁdﬁhddeb«ﬁrumdmmﬂhzﬂ:hnmmmrhvd1mmwhdmm ¥ } of the
mstruments, Far valoa of @ it ﬁmmmmwﬂrwzmmManuwvudmmmn
OCPS of subsidiary, the Comp ,hlsuad--u { b 9 rate and apphed discounried cash Row model and accordingly measured under leved 3.

Accounting classifications and fair values
The camying amount and fait vake of Gnancial ingtnamants inchuding their levels in the fair vakus hierarchy presenied below:

[As at 31 Sarch 2024 Carrying amount Fair vabus
’ Amortised cost  FVOC) FVTPL Level 1 Lovel 2 Lovel 3 Total

Financial axsets measured ot fair value

Loans messured at FYOC! - 744 04 . . . 7.944.04 704404

Investments mestured at FYTPL - - 59.45 614 5331 . 5045

Dertvative financial insinuments . - .91 13 - . 191

- T,144.04 8138

Financial assets not sessured at fair value'

Cash and cash equivalents 178.02 - - 178.02 - . 17802

Rank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 6654.27 - - 66427 - - 84,27

Trade receivaties 652 - . - - 852 652

Loans measured af amostised cost 12079 - - . - 12107 .07
at ooet 566,71 - - - - 666.89 656,89

Otrer financial assets T2.89 - . . . 7378 778

1,710.20 - -

Financial kabilities not messured at folf value'

Trade payabies 15.74 - - - - 1574 1574
Other payables 114 - - - - 114 184
Dett secicities 626.86 . . - - 64384 64304
Borrowings (other than dett securities) 6,120.98 - - - . 5,147.95 5.147.95
Subordinated lisbikties 20211 - . . - 316.00 310,00

TI19.48 - .
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[i} Financial Instrunent and fair value measurement (Comtinued)

B. Accounting classifications and fair values (Continced)

[As at 31 March 200 Corrying amount Fait vt
Amortisad cost FVOCI FVTPL Level1 Level 2 Laved 3 Tot
[Financial asscts measured st falr valae
t oarm measured at FYOCI - 5.826.31 - - - 5,6808.31 582831
Irmvestments measrad it FVTPL - - 22043 191.46 38.97 - 22043
- SERM 2043
Financial assets not moasured st fair vaiue’
| Cash and cash equevaients 237 86 - - 237.86 - - 237.86
Bank batance other than cash and cash equivaients 53377 - - 53377 - - 3377
Trade raceivables a7 - - - - 427 427
Lodrw. measured at amortieed oost .85 - - - - X ] 8238
Ity eatmant measured &t amortised cost 55914 - - - - 559.38 59359
Other finandcial amsets 60.24 - . - - 6018 60.19
147713 - -
Financisl obiltios not measured m fair veiue'
Trade payabies 1164 - - - - 1164 11.64
[Other payables 154 . . . - 184 184
Dett securties 2% - - - - 634,98 5M.95
Borrowings fother than debt secunties) 4,957 56 - - - - 4,953 40 4,883.40
Subordinated liabiities 25270 - - - - 2000 260.00
[Other hnancial liabasses: 0565 . - - - 205,65 565
2150808 B N

‘mmmmmmmmmamwmmmmmmnmmﬁymmizmxmmmmm
and bomowings, cash credit and ofher curment katilities ace a reasonable approximation of thew fair value 23 Mess ane shart Lerm in nature

Reconcliation of level 3 fair value measurement is as follows:

Yoar anded Year endex]
31 blpech 2024 31 Mavch 2023

Logns §

Balance #t thé: baginning of the year 5,000 88 4556 %
Additon during the year 570831 4 646,20
Annount derecogresed / repaxd dunng the year (4.341 09) {3,263 o)
Amount written off {48 13} (4265
(Gaina/{lceses) sacognised in other Comprehwnsive income 2157 (25.05]
[Balance at the end of the year 7.20.M 5‘59,&]

# The above classfication ol incudes batanoe of spread receivable on assigned portholio. (Refer note 10)

41 Financial instrument and fair value measurement (Continued)

B, Accounting classifications and fair values {Continued]}

Sensitivity analysis 1o fair valve
Amount, net of tex
Increass Decrasss

31 March 2024
Loans

Interost rates {50 bps movement) (16.12) 16.19
31 March 2023
Lo

Intereat rates (50 bps movement) (123N 1242
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421

Capital

The C - an actively god capital base o cover risks & mt in the busi and is g the capital
Wﬂﬂmmﬁmwsmﬂusmm moﬂmmﬂm 1he regulations isued by RBL.

The Compary has complied in full with M its extemaly arposed capital requirements over the reported period. Equity shame capital and other squity are
considerad for the purpose of Company’s capital menagernent.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Cormpeny’s capilal management policy are 10 ensure 1hal the Compiny comrples with ly imposed capital requirerments and
mm:mmmmmmmemmmmmummmbmmmnm

The Company gos ils capital and makes adj. 10 & according 1o changes n econoimic conditions and the risk chamctaristics of its activities.
In prdar ko maintain or adjust the capital structure, mcmunqumhmmummwmmmm retumn capital to sharehoiders or
issue capital secyrities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they ane under constant review
by the Board,

422 Regulatory capital
As wt As s
3 March 2004 31 March 2023

Tiar 1 Capial 15150 132970
Tier 2 Capitai A 285.34
Total Copital [Mumesator) 1,793.10 181505
Risk weightage sxsets {Denominator) TAS95 #,396.60
Risk waighted acsels
Ther t Capiai Ratio (%) 203 20 Tl
Ther 2 Capital Ratio (%) AT 4 46%.
Total Capital Ratio {%) M.05% 25.25%]

Tier 1 capitsl consisis of shanshoklers' equity and retained eamings axciuding unreaised gain but inchuding unrealised icss. Tier 2 capital consists of ECL on
stage 1 and subordinated debt (subject to prescribed discount rates and nol exceeding 50% of Tier 1).
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{a)

4}

Financial isk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial labilties comprise borrowings and frade payables. The main pupose of these financial Kabiibes is tp finence the Company's
operations and to support its operations. The Company's financial assets mainly includes loan and advances, cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its
operations.

The Company is expesed to cradit sk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company’s board of directors has an overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The board of directors has estabiished the risk managoment commitiea, which is responsible for developing
and monitoring the Compary’s risk management policies. The committee neports regularty to the board of directors on its activibes.

The Company's risk management policies are astablished to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, t0 set appropriate risk kmits and controls and 1o
mendor risks and adherence ta mits. risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularty o reflect changes in markat conditions and the Company's
activities.

The Company’s risk management comimitiee overseas how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and
reviews the adaquacy of the risk management framework in relation o the risks faced by the Company.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party o financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises
principalty from the Compary's loans and investments.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit fisk exposura,
Loans and advances

The Company's exposure 0 credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of gach customer. However, management also considers the factors that
may influence the credit nsk of its cusiomer bass, including the default risk associated with the industry.

The Company has estabiished a credil policy under which each new customer is analysed nxdividually for crediworthiness before sanclioning any loan. Tha
Company's review includes extamal ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency information, industry information, the loan-to-vakue ratio etc.

ysis of risk L

The following table shows the risk concentration of the Company’s loans.

Carrylng Amount
As at As at

3 March 2024 31 March 2023

Retadl assats loans: 403933 302628
Two whesler loans B 07 T8O
Miars enterprise lbans 1,296 38 1,210.59
Salaried personal loans 31213 24794
Sl and medium enterprisa loans 1,606 82 1.080.11
Commercial vehicie lnans 37578 170.04
Retad Assets Channel loans 329149 292578
Totl 734 5,952.08

Narrative Description of Collateral

Colateral primarily indude vehicies purchasad by retall loan customers and machinery & property in case of SME customers. The secred exposwre ara secuned
wholy or partly by hypothecation of assets and undertaking to creats a security.

An impaaent analysis is performed at each reporting date based on tha facts and circumstances existing on that date fo Kentify expected losses on account of time
value of monay and credil nisk. For the purposes of this analysis, the loans are categonised into groups based on days past due. Each group is then assessed for
impairment using the ECL modal as per the provisions of Ind AS 109 - financial instruments.

Staging:

As per the provision of Ind AS 108, ail financial instruments are allocated 0 stage 1 on initial recognition. However, if a significant increase in cradit risk is identified at
the reportieg date comparad with the initial recognition, then an instrument is ransfemed 1o stage 2. if thers is objedive evidence of knpaiment, then the asset 15
credit impaired and ransferred to stage 3.

The Compay considers a financial instrument defaulied and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impained) for ECL caleulaions in all cases when the bomower bacomes due by
mora than 90 days on its contractual payments

For financial assets in stage 1, the impainment calouiated based on defaults that are possible in next twelve months. whersas for financial instrument in stage 2 and
stage 3 the ECL calculation considers default gvent for the lifespan of the instrument.
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1]

(L}

ity

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and sdvances {Continued}

Staging: (Continued)

As per ind AS 108, the Company essesses whether thers is a significant increase in credit risk al the reporting date from the initial recognition. The Cormpany has
staged the assets based on the days past dues criteria and other market factors which significantly impacis the loan portfolio.

Company's internal grades and staging criteria for loans are as folows:

Days past .

dues status Stage nternal grades Provisions
Curment Stage 1 High Quality assets, negligible credi risk 12 months prowision
1-30 Cays Siage 1 High Quality assets. negigible credit risk 12 months provision
31-60 Days Stage 2 Quality assets, low credit risk Lifetime prowvision
61-50 Days Stiage 2  Standard assets. moderate credit risk Lifetime provision
91-180 Days Siaged  Sub-slandard assels, relatively high credit Lifetime prowvision

risk

>180 Days Stage 3 Low quality assets, very high credit risk Lifetime provision
Grouping:

AsperlnaAS109,Compamismmmmmbmammmmmm‘mmmmwmmmmmmu
vanous portfolios and has divided the portfolio irto following groups:

a. Two whesler loans

b. Micro enterprise loans

¢. Salanied personal loans

d. Small and medium enterprise ioans

e. Commercial vetucie loans

f. Retall asset channet loans

ECL:

ECL on financial assets is an unbiasad probabiity weighted amount based out of possible oulcomes after considering nsk of credit ioss even if probability is low. ECL
is calculated basad on the following components:

a. Probabiity of default (PD™)}
b. Loss given default "LGD")
¢. Exposure at default ("EAD™)
d. Discount factor F01

FnrRACloanporlfouo,meCompenyhasdevelopedimen-lalMMWMMWMECL.MMMWMNWWWud
various parameters basad on which RAC loan portfolio is evaluated and credil rating is assigned accordingly. The credit rating matrix developed by the Company is
validated in accordance with its ECL policy.

The Company has developed is PD matrix based on the extemal benchmarking of extermal reports, extemal ratings and Basel norms. This PD matrix is calibrated
with its historical data and major events on requiar ime interval in accordance with its ECL poilicy.

ProbabHity of default:

PD is defined as the probability of whether bomowers wik default on their obligations in the future. Historical PD is derived from intemal data of the Company
calibrated with forward looking macroeconomic faclors.

For computation of probability of default ("PD™), Vasicek Single Factor Model was used to forecast the PO term structure over Metime of loans. As per Vasicek model,
given long term PO and cument MAcrOEcONOMIC conditions, condibional PO &mesponding Lo curment macroeconomic. condition is estimated. The Company has
worked out PD based on the iast five years histoncal data.

The PDs derived from the Vasicek model, are the cumulative PDs, stating that the borrower can default in any of the given years, however o compute the loss for
any given year, these cumuative PDs are converted to margnal PDs. Marginal PDs is probability that the obligor will default in a given year, conditional on it having
survived till the and of the Current yaar.

As per Ind AS 109, expectad loss has to be calculated a5 an unbiased and probability-weighted amound for muliiple scenarias.

The probability of default was cascutated for 3 scenarnios: upsica (11%), downside (21%) and base (68%). This weightage has been dedided on best practices ang
expert judgernant. Marginal conditional probability was calculated for 38 3 possibie scenarics and one conditional PD was anived as conditional weighted probabiity.
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Financial risk management objectives and policles (Continued)
Credit risk (Comtinwed)

Loans and advances (Continued)

ECL: (Continued)

Loss given default:
LGD is an estimate of the kss from a transaction given that a default occurs. Under Ind AS 109, Metime LGD's ame defined as a colection of LGD's estmates
applicable to different future periods.

Various approaches are avallable to compute the LGD. Tha Company has considered workout LGD approach. The following steps are performed to calculate the
LGE:

1) Analysis of historical credit impaird accowits at cohort kevel.
2) The computation consists of four components, which are:
a) Outstanding balance (POS)
b} Recovery amount (discounted yearly) by effective interest rate,
¢) Expected recovary amount {for incomplete recoveries), discountad to reporting date using effective interest rate
d) Cofiateral (security} amount.

The formula for the computation is as below:

% Recovery rate = (discountad recovery amount + Security amount + discountex estimatad rcovery) / (total outstanding balance)
% LGD = 1 - recovery rate

For RAC loan portfolio, the LGD has been considered based on Basell Framework for all the level of credit rating portfolio.

Exposure at default:

Asper.lndAS109.EADisestimaﬁonmmmmmuwmmmwwmhmmdmwdhmd
counterparty's defaull. The Company has modefled EAD based on the contractual and behavioural cash fiows il the lifetime of the loans considenng the expected

assignment of loans.

The Company has considered expacted cash flows for al the loans at DPD bucket level for aach of the segments, which was used for computation of ECL. The
exposure at default is caiculated for each product and for various DPD statis after considering future expected assignment which is not at risk. Moreover, the EAD
comprised of principal component, accrued interest and also the fubure interast for the outstanding exposure of retall loans. Further, the EAD for stage 3 retad loans
are the outstanding exposures at the time loan is dassified as Stage 3 for the first ime.

Discounting:

As per Ind AS 109, ECL on retail loans is computed by estimating the ming of the expected credit shortfalls associated with the defaults and discounting them using
effective inerest ratg.

ECL computation:
Conxiitional ECL at DPD pool ievel was computed with the following method:
Conditional retadl ECL for year {yt) = EAD {yt) * conditonal PD (yt) * LGD (y) * discount factor {yt)
Conditional RAC ECL for ysar {y1) = EAD (yU) * conditional PD (yt) * LGD (v}

For RAC loan portfoiio, the Company has calculated ECL based on borrower wise assessment of infemal credit rating as per the framework of the Cormparny, while for
ratail loan portfolio, the same has been calculated on collective basis,

The calculalion is based on provision matrix which considers achual historical data adjusted appropriately for the fulure expectations and probebilities Proportion of
ECL provided for across the stages is summarnised below:

As at Asat
M March 2024 31 March 2023
Stage 1 0.42% 0.53%)
Stage 2 2274% 17.76%|
Stage 3 38.97% 40 20%|
Amount of expected credit loss provided for 129.44 10346

The loss rates are based on achual credit loss experience over past 5 years. These loss rales are then adjusted appropriately 1o reflect differances between curert
and historical economic conditions and the Company's view of economic conditions over the expected kives of the loan receivables.
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43  Financial risk management objectives and policies [Continued)

43.1  Credit risk (Continued)

{a) Loans and advances (Continued)

{iv) Management overlay
The Compay holds a management and macro-economic overlay of T 18.79 crores as al 21 March 2024 (31 March 2023; ¥ 20.03 crores).

{v]  Modiication of financlal assets
The Company has modfied the tems of cartain loans provided 10 customers i accormtance with RBI nolification on MSME rstruchaing dated 6 August 2020 and 5
May 2021, SMMMU&MM&MMW“WWCOWDJQW
Such restruchring benefits include extended payment term amangements, moratorium and changes in interest rates. The risk of default of such assets afer
modification is assessed at the reporting date and compared with the risk under the original terms at initiat recognition, when the modification is not substantial and so
does not result in derecognition of the onginal assel {refer note 3.5). The Company monitors the subsequent performance of modified assets. The gross carmyng
amount of such assets held as st 31 March 2024 is T 0.47 crores (31 March 2023: T 2.73 croves). Overall provision for expeciad credd i0ss aganst restructured loan
exposure amounts o ¥ 0.13 crores as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: ¥ 1.06 arores). The Compary continues to monitor if there is a subsequent significant
increase in credi risk in relaton ko such assets

(b} Cash and cash equivalent and bank deposits
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalert and bank depaosits is limited as the Company generalty invesls in tarm deposits with banks which ane subject 1 an
insigrificant risk of change in value.

43.2  Liquidity risk

Licpidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial Kabikties. The Company's approach in managing
Bquicity is to ensure that it will have sulficient funds to meet its iabiltes when due.

The Company is monitoning its iquidity risk by estimating the future inflows and outflows during the start of the year and planned accordingly the funding requirement.
The Company manages its kquidity by unutiised cash credit faclity, term loans and direct assignment of bans.

The composition of the Company's kability mix ensures healthy asset liability maturity pattem and well diverse resource mix,

The total cash credit limit available to the Company is 1690 Crore spread across 14 banks. The utlization level is maintained in such a way that ensures sufficient
Waquidity on hand.

REI has mandated minimum kquidity coverage ratio (LCR) of 50% to be maintained by December 2021, which is 10 be gradually increassd o 100% by Decamber
2024. The Company has LCR of 547 22 % as of 31 March 2024 as against the LCR of 50% mandated by RBI.

The Management expects to continue to maintain around 20% to 25% of assets under managemeant as off book through direct assighment transactions. It is with door
to door maturity and without recourse to the Company. This further strengthens the Eability management.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flow of the Company's financial liabtites:

1 day to 30 Overone  Ower2months OverImonths OwerSmonths Owertyeartod Owerdymaricd  Over 3 years Total
days [one month to 2 upto3d to & months 1o 1 year years yoars
menthl months months

As at 3t March 2024
Dbt sacurities 247 240 11.18 3463 17358 470.96 5375 . 748.95
L ng: 116.88 120.54 34881 82707 222490 2,887.13 52126 - 6,647 88
(Other than debl
securities)
Suborcinated 218 218 2.78 8.39 16.56 66.65 30190 51.46 453.30
Rabirbes
Payables 1575 - - 1.13 - - - - 18688
Lease Eability 007 o0.08 008 023 046 1.70 098 - 359
Other financial 204 55 - - 012 43.78 1.82 - - 25026

{kabifbes
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43

43.2

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk {Continued)
1day o 30 Overone Over2 hs Over3 ths Overémonths Overiyeartod Owverdysario3d OverSyean Total
days (one month o 2 up to 3 to & months 1o 1 yeas yaars yoars
month} months months.

As at 31 March 2023

028 852 021 2459 60024 106 .39 - - Tas21
8785 94 49 23530 41747 2.082 69 2,168.90 45419 - 5.560 69
209 233 234 7.04 13.97 55.90 15015 169.00 40282
286 286 653 083 061 - - - 13.48
0.03 0.03 0.03 0.09 0.19 0&9 0.20 - 1.35
236.06 612 526 0.08 53.84 315 - - 304.51

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial mstrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk includes interest
rmariskmmmmmmxmmmmmmumwwmmmwmmmm,m
optimising the retum.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a financial instrument wil fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s
exposure 1o the risk of changes in market interest rates refates primasily 1o the Company’s ivestment and variabla interest rate bormowings and lending.

mmmmsMemmwmmsedmmmmmmmmwmmmvmmmmmmby
the Comparyy.

Year ended 31 March 2024 Year ended 31 March 2023

Change in interest rates &0 bps 50 bps 50 bps 50 bps

Increass decrease nerease decrease
investments 5095 50.95 176.78 176.78
limpact on profit before tax for the year 0.25 {0.25) 0.88 {0.88),
Variable rate lending 3,291.49 3.291.49 292578 292578
Impact on profit before tax for the year 16.486 {16.45) 1463 {14.63)
‘Variable rate bormowings 5,633.48 5,833.48 544571 544571
Impact on profit befora tax for the year {28.17} 28.17 {27.23) 27.23
Foreign cumrency risk

mmsh&mmmuawmmmmmmhmmm&Fotaima.rremyr‘skform()onmm
mq‘onymmofl«aiglurremyboﬂowhgs.MCWsmmmmmhmmﬂsFM&mmﬂ
Management Policy which has been approved by its Board of Directors. The Commpany has hexdged its foreign currency risk on its foreign cumency bormowings as on
Man:h31,m4wmmmmmmmmmmhmmam&mmmyew‘Thew.merparﬁesforswhlndge
ransactions are banks.

ThsCompan'fsexposuamaocoutufForeimCmemyBonwhgsatmeemurﬂumpor&gperbdexpresssdhlmianmpeesamasfulomz

Foreign cumency As at As at
31 March 2024 3 March 2023

Term ioan from Bank in Foreign Currency Usp 577.04 -

Smmfaammwsmwmwwmmmmmmﬂmwwmmmmmuwm
mﬁemhmmmmmsmvmmmmOnumdmmmnmmmmmmmmmm
antire term of the foreign cusmency exposwre, the sensitivity of profit and loss to changes in he exchange rates will be Nil.
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Lease disclosure
Where the Company is the lessee

The Company has entered into agreements for 1aking its office premises under leave and license arrangements. These
agreememsareforlenuresbatweenﬂmmthsandSyeasandmajoﬂtydﬂmeagreemnﬁareramblebymMudomsemm
mutually agreeable terms, lease rentals have an escaiation ranging between 5% to 15%. Leases for which the lease term is less
than 12 months have been accounted as short term leases.

Contractual cash maturities of leasa liabilities on an undiscounted basis Asel As &t
. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Not later than one year 0.91 0.37
Later than one year and not later than five years 269 0.9%
Later than five years -
Total undiscountad lease Babilities 3.59 1.35
Lease llabilities included In the balance sheet
Total lease liabiities 289 1.14
t recognised in the 1 of profit and loss account Year snded Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest on lease labikties 0.19 0.09
Depreciation charge for the year 0.57 027
Expenses relating to short term leases 3.97 3256
Amount ised in nt of cash flow Yeoar snded Year ended

'

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Cash outflow kowards lease kability {0.45) {0.22)

For addition and carmying amourd of right to use asset for 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, refer note 11(d).

Titie deeds of all immovable properties of the Company are held in name of the Company. Further all the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the Company for properties where the Company is the lessee.

Transfer of financial assets
Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

Thefollowingtablepmvidesasummaryufﬁnmdalassetsmathavebeennansferredinsuchawaythatpanofaﬂofme
transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated liabilities:

As st Ag at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Securitisation
Carying amount of transferred assets . -
Cawiga'nmofassodmadliabiﬁes(wwi\gs-ummdebtsmﬁes] -

Fair value of assets (A} - .
Fair value of associated iabiities {B) - -
Net position at Fair Value (A-B) - .
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452

46.4

46.5

46.8

48.10

45.11

Transfer of financial assets (Continued)
Transferred financlal assets that are derecognised in their entirety

The Company has assigned loans by way of direct assignment. As per the terms of these deals, since substantial risk and
rewards related to thesa assets were transferred to the extent of exposure net of MRR to the buyer, the assets have been de-
recognised from the Company's Balance Sheet. The tabie below summarises the canrying amount of the derecognised financial
assets

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 Macch 2023
Direct assignment
Carrying amount of de-recognised financial asset 1,927.33 1,186 .60
Carrying amount of retaned financial asset 207 .96 158.82

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety but where the Company has continuing involvement

The Company has not transferred any assets that are derecognised in their entirety where the Company continues to have
continuing involvement.

Additional disclosures:

No proceedings have been initisted or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder, as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

The Company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or finandial Institution of other lender, in accordance with the
guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India, during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

TheCompmydo&snclhaveanyt:ansacﬁonswiﬂ'\ﬂlempaniessuud(oﬂundersecﬁonzwdConwmiesAd. 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

All the charges or satisfaction, as applicable are registered with ROC within the statutory period.

The Company has taken borrowings from banks and finandal institutions and utilised them for the spedific purpose for which
they were taken as at the Balance sheet date. Unutilised funds are held by the Company in the form of deposits or in current
accounts till the time the utilisation is made subsequently.

There have been no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts, that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961. There have bean no previously unrecorded income and related assets which were {o be property recorded in the
books of account during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

As a part of normal lending business, the Company grams loans and advances after exercising proper due diligence.

Cther than the transactions described above,

(a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) including
foreign entities (“intermediaries”) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in a party identified by or on
behalf of the Company {Ultimate Beneficiaries);

(b} No funds have been received by the Company from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company
shall whether, directly or indireclly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Utimate
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not traded or invested in Cryple currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31
March 2023.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for the financial years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

The Company has not entered inte any scheme of arrangement.

The company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31 March 2024
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all the relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature was not enabled at database level for accounting software to
log any direct data changes. Further, there has been no instance of the audit trail feature being tempered with in respect of such
accounting software where such feature is enabled.




HAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

¥ In Crores)

47 Disclosures required in terms of Annexure XXH of the Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India
Directions, 2023 dated 19 October 2023 (updated as on 21 March 2024) are mentioned as below:

471 Capital

{Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regutation)

As at As at
3t March 2024 _ 31 March 2023
i} CRAR (% 24.05% 25.25%
n} CRAR - Tier | capdal (%) 20.33% 20T
jii} CRAR - Tier |l caputal (%) 372% 4.467% |
) Amount of suberdinated debt raised as Tier-H capita 243.00 255.00 :
v} Amount raised by issue of perpetus] debt instruments - i
47.2  Investments
— As at As at i

|
1. Value of nvestments
{i} Groas vaiue of investmenls

31 March 2024

31 Maren 2023

(a} In India TB7.89 82636
(b} Oulside India - -
{u) Provisions for deprecialon :
ta) In India 0.18
{b) Outside India - -
{in) Net value of investments
(@) In India 787.71 526.1% 1
1) Dutsice India - o
2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments. |
{i} Opening balance 0.24 I
{1} Add . Provisions made during the year 017 .
(i) Less - Write-off / write-back of excess provisians dunng the year 0.24
{w) Closing balance Q.18

47.3  Derivatives
(A} Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap

As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(1) The noticnal principal of swap agreements

(n) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations under the agreements

{iii} Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps
{iv) Concentration of cred! risk arising from the swap
{v) The fair value of the swap book

*l

i
l

'
1

{B) Exchange Traded Interest Rate {IR) Derivatives :

The Company has not iraded in exchange traded interest rate denvabive during the current and previous year.

{C) Disclosures an Risk Exposure in Derivatives

Qualitative Disclosure

The Company has a Board approved policy in dealing with derivative transaclions. The Company undertakes derivative transactions for hedging 1ts foreign curency exposures fo
mibgate the foreign currency nsk. During the year. the company has hedged its foreign currancy borrow:ngs through foreign exchange forward contracts.

The foreign curency ransactions and derivative Iransactions are accounted in accordance with IND AS as detailed in the accounting policy Note 3.22

Quantitative Disclosures

{1} Denvatives (Notienal principal amount)
For Hedging

{ii) Marked to market positions (Net)
a) Asset (+)
o) Liability {-)

{m) Credit exposwuse

(iv} Unhedged exposures

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2022

1

Currgency Interest rate Currency Interest rate
derivatives derivatives devivatives derivatives
57486 - - -

191 - - -
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47.4  Asset Hability managenent maturity pattam of cartain items of assets and Kabilities

Over Over Crver Cver one Qvar 2 Over 3 Over & Overiyeario Overdyearic$ Over 5 years Totat
1day Bday 15day monthic? moniksup monthato$ monthsio 1 3 yoars years
o7 w14 o3 w3 months

As at 31 March 2024
Bank Foced - 2502 159.22 - 241283 1.14 281.05 213 15 - 73348

Advances 203.89 82.30 2re 46273 569 08 113182 1,704 26 2.464.02 31167 10053 726483
v estments 1212 122 51.57 A 44.78 124 243.07 21653 043 6155 Tor.m1
Bomowings 2438 1925 38 66 az7 2020 527.87 2157 42 2,682.14 93T.94 8 T.049.3%

As at 31 March 2023

Bank Foed 70.08 - .83 156.03 - [L:1] 145 475.58 - - 69837
Deposits

Advances 81.46 6775 27228 37060 447 80 872.29 146188 2,058.52 254.76 21.73 5910.16
v estments. 0.54 864 3857 4458 4038 137.99 20620 300.068 15.09 .57 826.12
[Boromings 1698 1196 361 "y 20597 M2.49 2466 82 2,010.50 249 155.09 5,837 52
Foreign - - - - - - - - - - -
[Cumency

assels

(Cumency
[

Note: The company has corverted & porion of long term Indian Rupee borrowing vt & short term foreign curency (FC) loan. This FC loan will either get roll over or be sgain converted into
INR serm lomi till the maturity of the original kean. Themwummﬂum—wnmwwmuwmmmmmmm
m&wnmmnmm-muwnwm-dtﬂmmmmmaummemmmuuuu-vm
2024 is Ry, 577 04 Crore

475 Exposure to Real Estata Sector: Refer nota 51 (A) (1) for datads
476 Exposurs to Capital Market: Refer nate 51 (A) (2) for detaits

47.7  Details of financing of parent products
Not apphcabie

478 Details of Single Borrower Linit ("SGL") / Group Borrower Limit {"GBL"} excesded by tha NBFC
nLoansu\dmms.axduﬁrgsdvmfm\dhgbmmmmwbwwpmmmdﬁpumdmﬁmthaFc,
Mil
i} Loans and advances to {axchuding advancs funding but induding deb bonds and of-balance shest exp ) and investment i the shares of single party n
excess of 25 per cant of the owned fund of the NBFC:
Nl

479  Unsecured advances
a} Refer nots 8{B)i) to the standalone financal siatements.
b) The Company has not granted any advances against ntangible securities (31 March 2023: Nil).

47.10 Registration obtained from other financial sactor regulators
TheCowpanyisregfsmudmRBlandhnalBmhm,nmmwwmﬁmmWwwmmmmp&

4711 Discl of panalties imp d by RBI and other regulators
Du-‘ngmey‘nrendedmMmA.mpenaIﬁeshweboenir\poudbyRBlandm«mm(MMarchZOZB:Nir).

47.12 Raelated party transactions
Refer note 35 1o the standaiona financial statements.

4713 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

By Acuite Retings & Ressarch Limited:

INSTRUMENT AMOUNT CURRENT PREVIOUS
RATING RATING

iLong term bank faciities 600000 ACUTE AA- No migration of
{Stable) raking

INon Camyerible Debentures {NCD) 20000 ACUSTE AA- -
(Stable)

[Commercial paper Bsue 30000 ACUNTE Al+ Neo migration of

rating
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4713

A7.14

4715

47186

a7.A47

4£7.18

47.19

41.20

4T

Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the ysar (Continued}

By Care Ratings Limatwd:
INSTRUMENT AMOUNT CURRENT PREVIOUS
RATING RATING
Long term bank faciities 8,000.00 GCARE AA- CARE A+
{Stable} [Positive)
{Commercial Papers msus 25000 CARE Al+ No migration of
raling
Non Convertible Debantsras 00,00 CARE AA- CARE A+
{Stable} (Positive)
Non Convertible Debentures 25000 CARE AA- CARE A+
(Stmble)} [Positive)
Marke inked deberture 1500 CARE PPMLD CARE PPMLD
AA- (Stable) A+ (Posidve}
Market inked debenhae 10000 CARE PP-MLD CARE PP-MLD
AA {Stable} As (Posilive}
darket Bnked debenhre 12500 CARE PPALD CARE PP-MLD
AA- (Stebie) A+ (Posltive}
|Subordinate debt 200.00 CARE AM- CARE A+
(Stable) (Positive)
|Subordinaie debt 100.00 CARE AA- CARE A+
(Stabde) (Positire)
Subordinate debt 100.00  CARE A CARE A>
{Stabls) (Poaitiva)
Remunaeration of direciors
Refer now 35 1 the standalone financial statements.
Manag Dk Jon and Analy
The annual report has a detalled chapier on Management Discussion and Analysis.
Net profit of loss Tor the period, prior period iteens and changs in ing pobici
The Company does not have any priof pariod itams and change in acoounting policies during the curent year.
Revenus recognition
Refer note 3.1 # the standalone financal statements.
Ind AS 110 - i financial {CFs}
The Cornpany has prepared C dated Fi il n d with the requirements of ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements.
Provisions and -
The mformation on alt provisions and contingencies is as under:
[Break up of ‘provisions and contingencies’ thown under tw head expenditurs in the sistemant of profit snd loss As =t As wt
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for depreciation on investment (0.06) {0.31)
Provision towisids non performing assets {Stage 3 loan assets) 2082 859
|Provision made towardt income tax 8.7z 6283
[Provision kwwiaids siandard ssseis (Stage 1 and 2 loan sssels) 215 {5.29)
Draw down from reserves
As ot As it
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Draw down irom reserves. - -

Concentration of deposits (for deposit taking NBFCs}
Not Applcable
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4122 Concentration of advances
As ot Aa nt
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total advances in twestty lrpest bOTowers 1,198.70 1,448.59
Percemage of advances ko iwenty larpest bomowers 1o tolal advances of the NBFC 18.50% 24.48%)
4123 Concentration of exposures
As at Aa at
31 March 2024 31 Merch 2023
[Total exposure b benty larpest bomowers / customens 121982 153714
Percentage of exposures 1o wenty largest ! to total exp. of the NBFC on borowers / customerns 16 48% 25.51%)
47.24 Concentration of NPAs
As st At
31 Mlarch 2024 M March 2023
[Total exposure to lop four NPA scoounts 1770 1095
47.25 Sector-wise NPAs. Refer note 52 for details
A7.28 Movement of NPAs
Az at As ut
31 March 2014 31 March 2023
(i) Mot NPAS 1o net sdvances (%) 1.50% 1.36%)
H¥) Movament of NPAs (pross)
(a) Opening balance 132.70 104.89
() Additions during the year 163.24 11422
(€} Reductions during the year 107.36 8641
() Closing batance 19058 13270
Hil) Movement of net NP As.
(s) Opening balance 78.35 80.19
(b) Additions during the year 104.57 N
(c) Reduckons duting the year 67.51 5115
(d) Closing balance 118.4 79.35
(] of provi for NPAs (exduding pr on assets)
(a) Opening balance 5335 44.70
(b) Provisions made during the yesr 60.67 43101
(c} YWrite-ofT / wite-back of eEcESs provisions: 3085 3526
() Closing batance A7 5338
47.27 Overseas assels (for those with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad)
Nl
47.28 Off-batance sheet SFVs sponsored [which are required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)

47.29

il

Disci of lai Rafer note 51 for detatls
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Disclosures relating to securitisation and transfer of loan exposure

Tha information of securitisation and ansier of loan exposure by the Company as required by REN circular RBUDOR/2021-22/85 DOR.STR.REC 5321.04.17772021-22
and RBU/DOR/2021-22/86 DOR.STR.REC.51/21 .04 D48/2021-22 dated 24 Seplember 2021 is a3 undar

(I)FHWT don by origi {non-STC wransaction}

Sr. Mo.

1
2
3

Particulars

No of SPEs holding sssets for securitieation ~ d by the
Totsl amount of securiised assets as per books of the SPEs
Totad amount of exposures retained by the onginator o comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet
&) Off-balance sheet axposires
+ Fastloss
+ Others

b) On-balance shewt axposures

« Firstloss
« Ohens
Amount of exposures 10 securisalion Fansactions other than MRR
8) Oft-balance sheet exporres
i} Exposure tp own secriizalions
+ First loss
» Othern
) Exposure 1o thind party securtizations:
+Finst oss
* Othvers
b) On-balance shee! exposures
1} Exposure o own secuiitizations
+ First koss
- Others
i) Expature jo third party securilizations
* Fsst loss.
+ Others
Sale i ived for the ritised assety,
Gain/loss on sale on sccount of seauritisalion

Form and quanium (culstanding value) of services provided by way of, Rquidity supporl, post-sacuritisaiion asset sarvicing, etc.

{¢) Outstanding smount

Average detault rater of portiolios obsanved in the past.

{u) lomns ko HBFCs

Amount and number of sdditionaltop up loan given on same underlying asset.
Investor complaints

{#) Direciiyindirectly raceived and;

) Complaints cutstanding

As ot
31 March 2024

As ot
31 March 2023

(b} For Securitisation T by or {STC transaction) - Not applicabl
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48 Disclosures relating to securitisation and transfer of loan exp (Continued)
(c] Details of loans not in default red through assig
Particulars Yoar ended Year ended
Aggregate principal outsianding of loans transferred (T in crores) 224221 1674 41
Weighted average residusl maturity (n months} 23 24
[Waighted averape holding penod {in months) 5 5
Average retenton of beneficial econcmic interest (MR R) (%) 10% 13%
|Average covernge of langible security (%) 50% A49%|
Rating wise distribution of lbans ransferred Unrated Urwated
{d} Cotaits of loans not in default acquired through
Particulars Yaar ended Year ended
(Agoregate principal cutstanding of loans acquined (T in crores) 32278 167.94
‘Weighted average residual matunity (in months) 24 7
Waeighted average hoiding penod (in months) 9 -]
Average ion of benefcial ic interest (MRR) by originator {%} 10% 10%
(Average coverage of tangible security (%) W% 2%
Rating wise distribution of loans acquired Unrated Unrated

(&) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold
The Company has not purchased or sold non-performing finandal assets during the year (previous year Nif),
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

® In Crores)

Disclosures required in terms of Annexure V1 and Annexure XXl of the Master Direclion - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financiak
Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated 19 October 2023 {updated as on 21 March 2024) on Guidelines on Liquidity Risk
Management Framework and Liquidity Coverage Ratio {LCR) are mentioned as below:

49

49.1 Funding concentration based on significant counterparty' ({both deposits and borrowings)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number of significant counterparties 25 20
Amount 6,027.56 4,503,984
Percentage of funding concentration 1o fotal deposits Not Applicable  Not Applicable
Perceniage of funding concentration to total liabiities” B2% 73%

'Sngruﬁcarrlcomterparty is as defined n RBI Circular RBU2019-20/88 DOR.NSBFC (PD) CC.No. 102/ 03 10.001/ 2019-20 dated November 4, 2019 on ‘Liquidity Risk Management
Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies'.

Total liabilities represents total liabilities as per balance sheet

49.2 Top 20 large deposits
Not Applicable to the Company as it does not accept public deposits,

49.3 Top 10 borrowings

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total amount of top 10 borrowings 4,239.76 3,487.53
Percentage of amount of top 10 bormowings to tofal borrowings 60% 58%
43.4 Funding concentration based on significant instrument/product®
Name of instrument/product As at Percentage of As at Percentage of
31 March 2024 total liabilities 31 March 2023 total liabilities
Term Loans 5.044.02 §9% 3.680.02 60%
Cash credit / Overdraft / Working capital demand loan 1,114 50 15% 1,304.43 21%
Market linked Debenture 100.00 1% 600.00 10%
Subordinate-debentures 310.00 4% 260.00 4%
Non convertible debentures 531.25 % 31.25 1%

3Sig;niﬁcam instrumentiproduct is as defined in R8I Circular RBI2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019 on ‘Liquidity Risk Management
Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies’.

49.5 Stock ratio

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{i) Commercial paper as a percentage of total public funds® Not applicable Not applicable
(i) Commercial paper as a percentage of total liabilities " Not applicable Not applicable
(4} Comrnercigl paper as a percentage of lotal assets Not applicable Not applicatle
(iv) Non convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a percentage of total public funds Not applicable Mot applicable
v) Non convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a percentage of total labilities Not applicable Not applicable
(i) Non convertible debentures(original maturity of less than one year) as a percentage of total assets Not applicable Not applicable
(vii) Other short term liabilities as a percentage of total public funds 48% 59%
(vin) Other shorl term liabilities as a percentage cf total habilities 47% 56%
(ix} Other short term liabilities as a percentage of total assets 38% 45%
“Public funds as defined in Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company -Systemicaily Important Non-Depaosit tawng Company and Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank) Direction,

2016,

49.6 Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

Refer note 43.2 of the standalone financials statements.
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49 Disclosures required in terms of Annexure VI and Annexure XX| of the Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Girections, 2023 dated 19 October 2023

{updated as on 21 March 2024) on Guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework and Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) are mentioned as below: {Continued)

Quarterly liquidity coverage ratio for the year ended 31 March 2024

Quarter ended 30 June 2023 Quarter ended 30 Septermber 2023
Particulars Total Total
Tatal Unweighted Weighted Total Unweighted Weighted
Value {average) Value (average) Value (average) Value (average)
High Quatity Liquid Assets

Quarter ended 31 December 2023

Total Unweighted

Value (average}

Total
Weighted
Value (average)

Quarter ended 31 March 2024

Taotal Unweighted

Value [average)

Total
Weighted
Value (average)

1 Total High Quality Liguid Assets {HQLA) 481.33 481.39 434.53 434,53 407.32 407.32 560.51 560,51
Cash Outflows
2 Deposits (for deposit taking companies} N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
3 Unsecured wholesale funding - - - - - - - -
4 Secured wholesale funding 100.59 115,68 155.03 178.28 273.42 314.43 185.09 178.35
5 Additional requirements, of which - - - - - - -
{i) Qutflows related to derivative exposures ang other
collateral requirements
(i} Outflows related to loss of funding on debt products -
(i} Credit and liquidity Facilities - - - - - - - -
b Other contractual funding obligations 203.71 234.27 182.96 210.41 189.24 217.62 201.19 231.37
7 Other contingent funding obligations - . - - - . . -
Total cash outfiows 304.31 349.55 337.99 388.69 462.65 532.05 356.27 409.71
Cash inflows
9 Secured lending - . - - - - - -
10 Inflows from fully performing exposures 445.32 333.99 417.11 312.83 506.73 380.05 544.21 408.16
11 Other cashintlows 270.65 202.99 322.29 241.72 277.40 208.05 15543 116.57
12 Total cash inflows 715,97 536.98 739.40 554.55 784.13 588.10 699.64 524.73
Total Adjusted Value Total Adjusted Value Total Adjusted Value Total Adjusted Value
13 Total HQLA 481,39 434.53 407.32 560,51
14 Total net cash cutflows 87.49 97.17 133.01 102.43
15 Liquidity coverage ratio [%) 550.23% 447 18% 306.23% 547.22%
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(T In Crores)

43 Disclosures required in terms of Annexure VI and Annexure XX| of the Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated 19 October 2023

(updated as on 21 March 2024} on Guidelines on Liquidity Risk anagement Framework and Liguidity Coverage Ratio {LCR) are mentioned as below: {Continued)

Components of High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA)

Quarter ended 30 June 2023

Quarter ended 30 Septernber 2023

Cuarter ended 31 Decermnber 2023

Quarter ended 31 March 2024

Particulars Total Unweighted Total Total Unweighted Total Total Unweighted Total Total Unweighted Total
Value [average) Weighted Value {average} Weighted Value [average} Weighted Value (average) Weighted
Value (average) value (average) Value [average) Value (average)
1 Assetstobeincluded as HQLA without any haircut 481.39 481.39 43453 434.53 407.32 407.32 56051 560.51
2 Assets to be considered for HQLA with a minimum haircut - - - - -
of 15%
3 Assets to be considered for HQLA with a minimum haircut - -
of 50%
4 Approved securities held as per the provisions of section - -
45 1B of RB! Act
Total HQLA 481.39 481.39 434.53 434.53 407.32 407.32 560.51 560.51

Quarterly liquidity coverage ratio for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

High Quality Liquid Assets
1 Total High Quaiity Liguid Assets [HQOLA)
Cash Qutflows
Degosits [for deposit taking companies)
Unsecured whalesale funding
secured wholesale funding
Additional requirements, of which
(i} Qutflows related to derivative exposures and other
collateral requirements
{ii} Outflows related te loss of funding on debt products
{iii) Credit and liquidity facifities
6 Dther contractual funding abligations
Other contingent funding obligations
8 Total cash cutflows

Vi B oW oo

Quarter ended 30 June 2022

Total

Tetal Unweighted Weighted
Value (average} Value (average)

Quarter ended 30 September 2022

Total Unweighted

Value (average)

Total
Weighted
Value {(average)

Quarter ended 31 December 2022

Totazl Unweighted

Value {average)

Tatal
Weighted
Value (average)

Quarter ended 31 March 2023

Total Unweighted

Value {average)

Total
Weighted
Value (average)

598.82 598.82 430.50 430.50 431.84 431.84 488.51 488.51
N/A N/A N/A NfA N/A N/A N/A N/A
13.33 15.33 . - . - - -
103.46 118.97 87.44 100.56 127.46 14658 146.64 168.64
62.84 72.26 68.28 78.52 122.85 141.32 187.40 215.51
179.63 206.57 155.72 179.08 250.35 287.90 334.04 3B4.15
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49

Disclosures required in terms of Annexure V1 and Annexure XX) of the Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India {Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated 19 October 2023

(updated as on 21 March 2024) on Guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework and Liquidity Coverage Ratla [LCR) are mentioned as belaw: {Continued)

Quarterly liquidity coverage ratio for the year ended 31 March 2023 {Continued)

Quarter ended 30 June 2022

Quarter ended 30 September 2022 Quarter ended 31 December 2022 Quarter ended 31 March 2023

Particulars Total Total Tatal Total
Total Unweighted Weighted Taotal Unweighted Weighted Total Unweighted Welghted Total Unweighted Weighted
Value {average) Valug [average) Value (average) Value {average) Value {average} Value (average) Value (average] Value {average)
Cash inflows
9 Secured lending

350.98

10 Infiows from fully performing exposures 263.24 407.57 305.68 452.75 339.57 444 06 33304
11 Cther cash inflows 184.05 138.04 434.13 325.59 247.34 185.51 301.39 226.04
12 Total cash inflows 535.03 401.27 841.70 631.27 700.10 525.07 745.45 559.09
Total Adjusted value Total Adjusted Value Total Adjusted Value Total Adjusted Value
13 Total HQLA 558.82 430.50 431.84 48851
14 Total net cash outflows 51.64 44.77 71.98 56.04
15 Liquidity coverage ratio (%) 115%.55% 961.61% 599.97% 508.67%

Components of High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA)

CGuarter ended 30 June 2022

Particulars Total Unweighted

Quarter ended 30 September 2022 Quarter ended 31 December 2022 Quarter ended 31 March 2023

Total Tatal Unweighted Total Total Unweighted Total Total Unweighted Total
Value [average) Weighted Value (average) Weighted Value [average) Weighted Value {average) Weighted
Value {average) Value {average) Value (average) Value {average)

1 Assetsto be included as HQLA without any haircut 598.82 598.82 430.50 430.50 431.84 431.84 488.51 488.51
2 Assets to be considered for HQLA with a minimum haircut - -

of 15%
3 Assets to be considered for HQLA with a minimum haircut

of 50%
4 Approved securities held as per the provisions of section

45 (B of RBI Act

Total HOLA 598.82 598.82 430.50 430.50 431.84 431,84 488,51 488.51
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49

Disclosures required in terms of Annexure VI and Annexure XXI of the Master Direction - Reserve Bank af India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated 19 October 2023
{updated as on 21 March 2024} on Guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framewark and Liquidity Coverage Ratio {LCR} are mentianed as below: {Continued)

The LCR is one of the key parameters closely monitored by REI to enable a more resilient financial sector. The objective of the LCR is to promote an environment wherein balance sheet tarry a strong liquidity for short
term cash flow requirements. To ensure strong liquidity NBFCs are required to maintain adequate pool of unencumbered High-Cuality Liquid Assets (HQLA) which can be easily converted into cash to meet their stressed
liquidity needs for 30 calendar days. The 1CR is expected to improve the ability of financial sector to absorb the shocks arising from financial and/or economic stress, thus reducing the risk of spill over from financial sector
to real economy.

The Liquidity Risk Management of the Company is managed by the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) under the governance of Board approved Liquidity Risk Framework and Asset Liability Management policy. The LCR
levels for the balance sheet date is derived by arriving the stressed expected cash inflow and outflow for the rext calendar month. To compute stressed cash outflow, all expected and contracted cash outflows are
considered by applying a stress of 15%. Similarly, inflows for the Company is arrived at by considering all expected and contracted inflows by applying a haircut of 25%.

HQLA primarily includes cash on hand, bank balances in current accounts and free fixed deposit against which overdraft facility has been availed off net of availed overdraft.

The LCR is computed by dividing the stock of HOLA by its total net cash outflows over one-month stress period. LCR guidetines requires NBFCs to maintain minimum LCR of 60% and 50% as on 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022 respectively which is gradually required to be increased to 100% by 1 December 2024.
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50 Disclosure in accordance with RBI notification no. RBU2020-21/17 DOR.No.BP.BC/4/21.04.048/2020-21 dated & August 2020 and
RBI/2021-22/32 DOR.STR.REC.12/21.04.048/2021-22 dated 5 May 2021 are as follows:

. " As at As at
T f ructr ar CDI
ype of Rest ring Und R Machanism and Under SME Debt Restructuring Mechanism 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of accounts restructuned* 1 175
Amount™ 0.45 2.63
" Cumulative na. of acoounts restructured having outstanding as on dale
** Including MRR portion on assigned loans
Disciosure of restructured accounts as required by the NBFC Master Directions issued by RBI:
For the year ended 31 March 2024
Type of Restructuring - others’ Asset classification
Standard Sub-Standard Doubtful Loss Total
No. of bor: - i - - 1
Restructured Accounts as on April 1 of the owers.
FY ¢ ing figures) Amount ¢ g - 0.10 - - 0.10
pening M9 Provision thereon ¢ - 003 - A 0.03
No. of bormowers - - - - -
Fresh restructuning during the year Amount ¢ ding - - - - N
Provision theseon » - - - - -
. Na. of bomowers - - - - .
z:igradah;:\:ngt; . ﬁnudured standard nt outstanding - - - - -
gen Provision thereon » - - - - -
Restructured slandard advances which No. of bomowers - - - - -
cease to attract higher provisioning and / Amount outstanding - R - - _
or additional risk weight at the end of the - N R R N
FY and hence need not be shown as .
restructured standard advances at the [ Tovision thereon s
beginning of the next FY
Downgradations of restructured accounts > = - - = —
duringgme Fyons F Amount outstanding - - - - -
Provision thereon » - - . N B
No. of bormrowers. - 1 - - 1
Write-offs / Setttements / Recoveries of " 0.09
restructured accounts during the FY Amount outstanding Z (0.09) ' - 10.09)
Provision thereon # - (0.03) - - {0.03)
Restructured Accounts as on No. of borrowers - 1 - - 1
March 31 of the FY (closing Armount outstanding - .02 - - 0.02
figures) Provision thereon = - - - - *

* Represent amount less than 50,000
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Disclosure of restructured accounts as required by the NBFC Master Directions issued by RBI:

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Type of Restructuring - others®

Asset classification

Standard Sub-Standard Doubtful Total
. No. of borrowers - 1 - 1
m::ﬁm?’ 88 00 Apil 1 o Ihe - cunt outstanding - 0.25 - 025
Provision thereon = - 0.05 - 0.05
No. of borowers - - -
Fresh restructuring during the year Amount outstanding - - -
Provigion thereon & - - - -
Upgradations 1o restructured standard No. of bomowers . - . -
category during the FY Amount outstanding - - Z =
Provision thereon s - - -
Restructured standard advances which No. of borowers - - - -
ceasa to atiract higher provisioning and / Amount outstanding - - - B
or additional risk weight at the end of the _ - B -
FY and hence need not be shown as .
restuctured standard advances at the FTovision thero ¢
beginning of the next FY
Doewngradations of restructured mtsNo.dborrcmers - ' bl
during the FY Amount cutstanding - - -
Provision thereon s - - - ~
Wi ; ts /R I No. of bommers. - 1 - 1
restructured accounts during the FY Amount cutstanding - (0.15) - 0.15)
Provision thereon s - (0.02) - {0.02)
Restructured Accounts as on No. of borrowers - 1 - 1
March 31 of the FY {closing Amount outstanding - 0.10 - 0.10
figures) Provision theveon ¢ - 0.03 - 0.03

* Since the disclosure of restructured advance account pertains to section ‘Others’, the first two sections, namely, ‘Under COR Mechanism’

ard ‘Under SME Debt Restructuring Mechanisrn' as per format prescribed in the guidelines are not included above.

» Provisions considered as per ECL.
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51

Disclosures required in terms of Annexure VIl of the Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated 19 October 2023 (updated as on 21 March 2024} on Disclosures in Financial

Statements- Notes to Accounts of NBFCs are mentioned as below:

A} Exposure

1} Exposure to real estate sector

Category

i) Direct exposure

a) Residential Mortgages —

Lending futly secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented.
Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits.

As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

As at

b} Commercial Real Estate — 11.4% 21.30
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estate (office buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial
premises, multifamily residential buildings, multi tenanted commercial premises, indusiial or warehouse space,
hotels, land acquisition. development and construction. etc). Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB)
limits.
c) Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized exposures —
i. Residential i i
il. Commercial Real Estate . -
!
!
it} Indirect Exposure :
Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on  National Housing Bank and Housing Finance Companies. 185.05 107.50 ¢
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 196.54 128.80 J
2) Exposure to capital market
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity oriented mutual 6.14 468
funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt *
i)  Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in - -
shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds. converible debentures, and units of equity oriented mutual :
funds i
i) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity - -
onented mutual funds are taken as primary security H
iv) Advances for any cther purposes to the extent secured by the coliateral security of shares or convertible - -
bonds or converlible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than
shares / convertibie bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully caver
the advances
v)  Secured and unsecured advances 1o stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market - - !
makers !
vi) Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or - -
on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources
vii)  Bridge loans w0 companies against expected equity flows / issues - .
vili) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares ar convertible bonds or - -
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds
i)  Financing o stockbrokers for margin trading - -
X} All exposures to Alternative Investrnent Funds: |
( Category! - -
@iy Category It 2.38 38.97 |
(iliy Category lli - -
i
!
Total exposure to capital market 8.50 43.65 |

* Excluding investmert in unlisted subsidiaries
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(¥ In Crores)
A) Exposure {continued)

3) Sectoral exposure

Sectors As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Percentage of Partentage of
Total NPAs to Gross
Expouures  GTO88 NPAS ﬁ;":‘w > Total Exposurs”  Gross NPAS v em
that sector In that sector
1. Agriculture and Allled Activities 1,000.48 36.58 3.66% 674,82 18.11 2.68%
2 Industry
i Manufscturare 422.9% 9.18 2.17% 27025 854 3.16%
Total of Industry 422.36 9.18 217% 270.25 8.54 3.16%
3. Services
i Transport Operators 49820 28.76 577% 22818 13.45 5.89%
ii Retail Trade 2,578.00 B6.48 3.35% 2,117.48 8285 3.91%
i NBFCs 327470 10.09 0.31% 2,964.39 10.31 0.35%
Cthers 843 52 31.98 3.79% 65585 30.78 4.69%
Total of Services 7.194.43 157.30 2.15% 5,965 89 137.38 2 30%
4. Personal Loans
Others 626.27 24.24 387% 42162 9.90 235%
Total of Personal Loans 626.27 24.24 387% 42162 9.90 2.35%

* Inciudes on balance sheet and off-balance sheet axposure
* The above classification also includes balance of spread receivable on assigned portfolio. {Refer note 10)

4) Intra-group exposures

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Total amount of intra-group exposures 61.55 46.55
Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures 8155 46.55
Percentage of intra-group exposures 1o total exposure of the NBFC on bormowers/customers 0.63% 0.77%
5) Unhedged foreign cumrency exposure
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unhedged foreign cumency exposure - -




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

& In Crores)

B) Related Party Disclosure

5r. No. Nature of relationship (where there are transactions) !

1 Subsidiary MAS Rural Housing & Mongage Finance Limited
MASFIN Insurance Broking Private Limited
2 Directors Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi (Chairman and managing director)

Mrs. Darshana S. Pandya (Director and chief executive officer)

Mr. Balabhaskaran Nair (Independent director) (retired w.e.f 31 March 2024)
Mr. Umesh Shah {Independent director)

Mr. Chetanbhai Shah (Independent director} (retired w.e.f 31 March 2024)
Mr. Narayanan Sadanandan (appointed we f 21 June 2023)

Mrs. Daksha Shah {Independent director)

3 Key management persornel ("KMP"} Mr_ Ankit Jain (Chief financial officen 1
Miss. Riddhi Bhayani (Compliance Officer; i
4 Reidatives of Directors Mrs. Shweta K. Gandhi (relalive of Directory \F

Mr. Kamiesh €. Gandhi (As Executor of will of Late Mr, Mukesh €. Gandhi, relative of KMP)
Mr. Dhvanil K. Gandhi {relative of Director}
Mr, Saurrdl D. Pandya (relative of Director)
Ms, Dhriti K. Gandhi {relative of Direclor)
Pauravi Umesh Shah (relative of Director}
5 Other related parties Praithna Marketing Private Limited {Entity related to Director;
Anamaya Capital LLP (Entity related to Director)
Umesh Rajanikant Shah HUF (Entity related to Director)

Outstanding at the year end / i
transaction during the year |
As at Asat |

Related Party tems
" 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 |
Subsidiaries Borrowings . .
Deposits ’ . .
Placement of deposits - -
Advances - -
Investments (Maximum during the year 31st March 2024 :61.55 and 31st March 2023 :46.55) 61.55 46.55

Purchase of fixed/other assets . -
Sale of fixediother assets - -

Interest paid . -
Interest received . o
Dividend paid . R
Expenditure reimbursed 1.04 *
Others 150 1.48
£4.09 48.03
Key Management Borrowings - -
Personnel Deposits . -
Placement of deposits - .
Advanrces . -
Investments - R
Purchase of fixed/other assets . -
Sale of fixed/other assets - -

Interest paid - -
Interest received - L

Remuneration (including bonws) Q.59 0.50
Dividend paid . .
Others - -
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B} Related Party Disclosure (Continued)}

Qutstanding at the year end /
transaction during the year
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Borrowings - _
Deposits - -
Placement of deposits - -
Advances - - ‘
Investments - -
Purchase of fixed/other assets . R
Sale of fixed/other assets . -
Interest paid - -
Interast received - -
Remuneration (mcuding bonus) (Net of Cross Charges) 7.19 574
Chvidend paid 3.09 228
Sitting fees 0.34 0.09
Others - .

Related Party tems

Directors

Relatives of Director Borrowings . R
Deposits . _
Placement of deposits . .
Advances R R
Investments - -
Purchase of fixed/other assets . L
Sale of fixed/other assets - -
Interest paid . -
Interest received - -
Remuneration (including bonus} 1.22 0.95
Dividend paid 15.79 11.56
Others . -

Others Related Borrowings . - L

Parties Deposits ) )
Placement of deposits ) )
Advances ) )
Investments ) )

Purchase of fixed/other assets - -
Sale of fixed/cther assets - -

Interest paid . ~
Interest received - .
Cividerd paid 0.6% 0.50
Others - -

Total of above Borrowings ) s
Deposits R o
Placement of deposits - -
Advances - -
Investments (Maximum during the year 31st March 2024 :61.55 and 31st March 2023 '46.55) 61.55 46.55 |
Purchase of fixed/other assets . R :
Sale of fixed/other assets . L
Interest paid ) .
Interest received . . . f

Remuneration (including bonus)

Dividend paid 1432

Sitting fees 0.0¢!

Expenditure reimbursed -

Others +.48 |
69.63

* Represents amount fess than ¥ 50,000
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C} Disclosure of complaints

1) Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

SrNo Particul
o Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers (refer note below)

1. Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 14 9
2. Number of complaints received during the year 2.729 1,193
3. Number of complaints disposed during the year 2739 1,180
31 Cf which, number of comptaints rejected by the NBFC - -
4. Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 4 14

Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman

5 Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman 76 34
5.1. Of 5, number of complaints rescived in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman 76 34
5.2 Of 5, number of complaints resclved through conciliation/mediatiorvadvisories issued by Office of Ombudsman Nil Nil
5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC Nil N

6  Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those appealed) Nil Nil

Note: This includes total complaint received by NBFC from customers directly and from the office of Ombudsman.

C) Disclosure of complaints (Continued)

2) Grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers

Grounds of complaints, (i.e. complaints relating to) Number of Number of % increase/ Number of Of 5, number of
compiaints complaints [decrease) in the complaints complaints
pending at recgéived during sumber of pending atthe pending beyond
the beginning the year complaints end of the year 30 days
of the year recefved over the

previous year
1 2 3 4 5 [

As at 31 March 2024

Bureau Updation Issue 3 526 129% 3 2

Collection Calls 3 1,698 286% - 6

Disb / Payment related - 162 23% 1 4

E£MI and Tenure 4 62 (76%) - 2

Loan Documents related 2 2 (93%) - -

Loan Related 1 14 (67%) - -

Loan Setffement - 56 600% - 11

Transparency and disclosures - 3 {40%) - -

Product Related 1 84 190% 12

Others - 122 481% - -

Total 14 2,729 128% 4 37

As at 31 March 2023

Bureau Updation Issue - 230 895% 3 -

Collection Calls - 440 100% 3 1

Dist / Payment related - 132 100% - -

EMI and Tenure 1 255 12650% 4 -

Loan Decuments related - 30 1400% 2 2

Loan Related - 43 330% 1 1

Loan Setfement - 8 (43%) - -

Transparency and disclosures - 5 100% - -

Product Related - 29 0% 1 t

Others - 21 250% - -

Total 1 1,193 2069% 14 5




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

® In Crores)

§2 Information as required in terms of Paragraph 19 of the RBi Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 1
September 2016 “Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Nen-Deposit taking Company
and Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are mentioned as below:

Liabilities side;

521 Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclustve of interest accrued thereon but not paid
Year ended 31 March 2024

Amount Amount
outstanding overdue
(a) Debentures - Secured 64567 -
. Unsecured 310.24 -
{other than falling within the meaning of Public deposits*)
(b} Deferred credits - .
{c) Term loans 1,156.68 -
(d} Inter-corporate loans and borrowing . -
(e} Commercial paper . -
{fy Cther loans:
From banks 1,116.95 .

"Please see note 1 below

52.2 Break-up of (1)(f) above {outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid)
(@) In the form of unsecured debentures - -
{(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall in the value

of security
{c) Other public deposits - -
“Please see note 1 below
Assets side:
52.3 Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables {other than those included In (4) below) Amount
outstanding
{a) Secured 496185
(b} Unsecured 2,303.26
524 Break up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards asset financing activities Amount
outstanding
(i} Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(a) Financial lease NA
(b) Operating lease NA
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
(2) Assets on hire NA
(b} Repossessed assets NA
(i) Other loans counting towards asset financing activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed 8.16

{b) Loans other than {a) above NA




HAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

{ tn Crores)

52.5

52.6

52.7

Break-up of investments : Amount
outstanding
Current investments :
1 Quoted :
(i) Shares : {a) Equity .
(b) Preference -
(i) Debentures and bonds 92.29
{iii) Units of mutual funds .
(iv) Government securities .
(v} Others {please specify) -
2 Unquoted :
(i} Shares : (a) Equity -
(b) Preference .
(i) Debentures and bonds 37.32
(iii) Units of mutual funds -
(iv) Government securities -
(v) Others (Alternate investment fund and pass through centificates) 379.60
Long term investments :
1 Quoted :
(i) Shares : (a) Equity .
(b) Preference -
(ii) Debentures and bonds 61.18
(i) Units of mutual funds 6,14
(iv) Government securities -
(v} Others (Alternate investment fund and pass through certificates) 130.57
2 Unquoted :
(i) Shares : {a) Equity 509
(b) Preference 20.00
(i) Debentures and bonds 19.24
(i) Units of mutual funds -
(iv) Government securities -
{v) Others (refer note 9) 6.45

Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in $2.3 and 52.4 above: Amount
outstanding
Please see Nole 2 below Amount net of provisions
Category Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related parties **
(a) Subsidiaries - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - - -
(c) Other related parties - - -
2. Other than related parties 4.912.81 2,222 86 7.135.67
Total 491281 2,222 .86 7.13567

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term} in shares and securities (both quoted and
unquoted):
Please see note 3 below
Category Market value/  Book value
break up or fair {net of
value or NAV provisions)

1. Related parties *™*

{a) Subsidiaries {refer note below) 7548 61.55
(b) Companies in the same group - -
{c ) Other related parties - -
2. QOther than related parties 726.16 726.16
Total 801.64 787.71

« As per Ind AS issued by Ministry Of Corporate Affairs (refer note 3 belfow)}
Note: Subsidiary company being unlisted, value is derived based upon the net asset value as shown in the subsidiary company balance
sheet as on 31 March 2024.




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuved)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

T In Crores}

528

53

Other information
Amount
outstanding

(i} Gross non-performing assets

{2) Related parties -

{b) Other than related parties 190.58
(i) Net non-performing assets

(a) Related parties -

(b) Other than related parties 116.41
{iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -
Notes:
1. As defined in point xocvii of paragraph 3 of Chapter - Il of these Directions.
2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in these Directions.
3. All Ind AS issued by MCA are applicable including for valuation of investments and other assets as also assets acquired in
satisfaction of debt However, market value in respect of quoted investments and break up / fair value / NAV in respect of unquoted
investments shall be disclosed imespective of whether they are classified as long term {(amortised cost in the case of Ind AS) or current
(at fair value in the case of ind AS) in (5) above.

Disclosures as required In terms of RBI notification no. DOR {(NBFC).CC.PD.No.108/22.10,106/2015-20 dated 13 March 2020 on
implementation of ind AS are mentioned as below :

As at 31 March 2024

. Gross Coss Difference
Asset classification as per  classification carrying allowances Net carrying Provisions  between Ind AS
REI norms as perInd AS  amount as {provisions) as amount required as per 109 provisions
P oo g A "equired under IRACP norms®  and IRACP
pe ind AS 109 norms
1 2 3 4 (5)=(3)-(4) ] (7).= {4){6)
Performing assets
Stage 1 7.026.21 29.21 6,897.00 27.85 1.36
Standard Stage 2 114,62 26.06 88.56 045 25.61
Subtotal 7,140.83 55.26 7.,085.57 28.30 26.96
Non-performing assets ("NPA")
Substandard Stage 3 19%0.58 7417 116.41 19.45 54.72
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - - - - -
11to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for doubtful - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA, 190.58 7417 116.41 19.45 54.72
Other itemns such as
guarantees, ioan commitments,  Stage 1 - - - - -
etc. which are in the scope of
Ind AS 109 but not covered
under current Income ~ Swde2 ) B . - .
Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning Stage 3 . . . - -
[IRAGP") rnorms
Subtotal - - - - -
Stage 1 7.026.21 28.21
Total Stage 2 11462 26.06
Stage 3 190.58 7417

Grand total 7,331.41 129.44




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

[ In Crores)

53 Disclosures as required in termns of RBI notification no. DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 on
implementation of Ind AS are mentioned as below: (Continued)

As at 31 March 2023

Loss Difference
Asset Gross
Asset classification as per  classification  carrying | NOWANCES ) canying  [rovislons  between Ind AS
{provisions) as requirec as per 108 provisions
RBI norms as perind AS amount as amount
109 ¢ Ind AS required under IRACP norms* and IRACP
pel ind AS 109 norms
1 2 3 4 (5)=(3)-4) 6 (7) = (4)-{6}
Performing assets
Stage 1 5,708.05 30.34 5,677.71 22.78 7.56
d R
Standa Stage 2 111.31 19.77 91.54 0.4 19.33
Subtotal . 5.819.36 50,11 5,769.25 23.22 26.89
Non-performing assets {"NPA")
Substandard Stage 3 132.70 53.35 7935 13.82 39.53
Doublful - up to 1 year Stage 3 - - - - -
11to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for doubtful - - - - .
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA 132.70 53.35 79.35 13.82 35.53

Other  items such as
guarantees, loan commitments,  Stage 1 - - . - -
efc. which are in the scope of
Ind AS 109 but not covered

under - current Income 8¢ 2 ) ) ) ° B

Recognition, Asset

Classification and Provisioning Stage 3 - . . . -

{IRACP™) norms

Subtotal . . . - .
Stage 1 5,708.05 30.34 5677.71 2278 7.56

Total Stage 2 1113 19.77 91.54 0.44 19.33
Stage 3 132.70 53.35 79.35 13.82 39.53

Grand total 595206 103.46 5,848.60 37.04 66.42

* Computed on the value as per the IRACP nomns.

The impairment allowances under Ind AS 109 made by the Company exceeds the total provision required under IRACP (including
standand assets provisioning), as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 and accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to
impairment reserve.

The disciosure requirement of the policy for sales out of amortised cost business model portfolios of the Company is not applicable to
the Company.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

{ In Crores)

54

55

The disclosures as required by the Master Direction - Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs issued by RBI dated 29 September 2016

There was 10 instance of fraud by customer amounting to T 0.87 crores reported during the year ended 31 March 2024. (Previous year
31 March 2023 17 instances : T 1.89).

The Company has complied with the RB! circular dated 12 November 2021 - “Prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances - Clarifications’. On 15 February 2022, RBI aliowed deferment tiil 30 September
2022 of Para 10 of this circular pertaining to upgrade of Non performing accounts. However, the Company has not opted for this

deferment.

56 Disclosure as per RBI notificaiton no. RBI2022-23/29 DOR,CRE.REC.N0.25/03.10.001/2022-23 on Loans and Advances -
Regulatory Restrictions - NBFCs

Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and relatives of Directors

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Directors and their relatives R -
Entities associated with directors and their relatives - -
Senior Officers and their relatives . 0.01

57 Figures of previous year has been regrouped / reclassified, wherever necessary, to comespond with the figures of the current year.

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Dlrectors of

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 106625W

C_&&L\A

Chandresh S. Shah

Partner ) - (Director & Chief Executive Officer) (Chairmair& Managing Director)

Membership No: 042132 (DIN - 07610402) (DIN - 00044852)

[

e

Riddhi B. Bhayani Ankit Jain
(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer) (Chief Financial Officer)

{Membership No: A41206)

Ahmedabad Ahmedabad
24 April 2024 24 April 2024



MUYESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of MAS Financial Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of MAS Financial Services
Limited (“the Holding Company”} and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group”), which comprises of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March
31, 2024, and the Consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income},
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (“the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our infarmation and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{"the Act"} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS"} and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024, and their
consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and
their consolidated changes in equity for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consclidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial staterments under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained by us and the other auditors
in terms of their report referred to in other matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be cornmunicated in our report.

Sr. | Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

No.

1 impairment of Loans: Principal Audit Procedures
Charge: INR 27.01 Crores for the year ended | Procedures performed by us have been
31 March, 2024 enumerated herein below:
Provision: INR 135.30 Crores as at 31* March, | We performed end to end process
2024 walkthroughs to identify the key systems,
Under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, | 2PPlications and ~ controls used in ECL
allowance for loan losses is determined using | Processes. We tested the relevant manual
expected credit loss (ECL) estimation | (including spreads rols), general IT
model. The estimation of ECL on financial

[l aﬁ’ﬂm
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MUXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Sr. | Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
No.

instruments involves significant judgement

and estimates. The key areas where we

identified greater levels of management
judgement and therefore increased levels of
audit focus in the

Group's estimation of ECLs are:

= Data inputs - The application of ECL
model requires several data inputs. This
increases the risk of completeness and
accuracy of the data that has been used
to create assumptions in the model.

» Model estimations - Inherently
judgmental models are used to estimate
ECL  which  involves  determining
Probabilities of Default ("PD"}, Loss Given
Default (“LGD"), and Exposures at Default
{(*EAD"}). The PD and the LGD are the key
drivers of estimation complexity in the
ECL and as a result are considered the
most significant judgmental aspect of the
Group companies'modelling approach.

¢ Economic scenarios — Ind AS 109 requires
the Group Companies to measure ECLs on
an unbiased forward-locking basis
reflecting a range of future economic
conditions.  Significant  management
judgement is applied in determining the
ecanomic scenarios used and the
probability weights applied to them
especially when considering the current
uncertain economic environment.

¢ Qualitative adjustments - Adjustments to
the model-driven ECL results are
recorded by management to address
known impairment model limitations or
emerging trends as well as risks not
captured by models. They represent
approximately 16.10% of ECL balances as
at 31 March 2024. These adjustments are

inherently uncertain and significant
management judgement is involved
considering internal assessment of

emerging forward looking economic
factors and related uncertainties. The
underlying forecasts and assumptions
used in the estimates of impairment loss
allowance are subject to uncertainties
which are often outside the control of the
Group. Given the size of loan portfolio
relative to the balance sheet and the
impact of impairment allowance on the

and application controls over key systems used
in ECL process.

Key aspects of our controls testing involved
following:

-

Testing the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls over the
completeness and accuracy of the key
inputs, data and assumptions into the Ind
AS 109 impairment models.

Testing the ‘Governance Framework’
controls over validation, implementation
and model monitoring in line with Reserve
Bank of India guidance.

Testing the design and operating
effectiveness of the key controls over the
application of the staging criteria.

Testing key controls relating to selection
and implementation of material macro-
economic variables and the controls over
the scenario selection and application of
probability weights.

Testing management’s controls over
authorisation and calculation of post model
adjustments and management overlays.
Testing management’s controls on
compliance with Ind AS 109 disclosures
related to ECL.

Testing key controls operating over the
inforrmation technology system in relation
toloan impairment including system access
and system change management, program
development and computer operations.

Test of Details:
Key aspects of our testing included:

Sample testing over key inputs, data and
assumptions impacting ECL calculations to
assess completeness, accuracy and
relevance of data and reasonableness of
economic forecasts, weights, and model
assumptiaons applied.

Model calculations testing through re-
performance, where possible.

Test of details of post model adjustments,
considering the size and complexity of
management overlays, to assess the
reasonableness of the adjustments by
challenging key assumptions, inspecting
the calculation methodology and tracing a
sample of the data used back to source
data.

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in
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MUXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Sr. | Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
No.
conssolidated financial statements, we | Assessing disclosures - We assessed whether
have considered this as a key audit | the disclosures appropriately disclose and
matter. address the uncertainty which exists when
Disclosures: determining ECL. In addition, we assessed
The disclosures regarding the Group | whether the disclosure of the key judgements
companies’ application of Ind AS 109 are key | and assumptions made was sufficiently clear.
to explaining the key judgements and
material inputs to the Ind AS 109 ECL results.
2 Information Technology: In course of audit, our focus was on user access

IT Systems and controls

The Group Companies’ key financial
accounting and reporting processes are
highly dependent on the automated controls
in information systems, such that there
exists a risk that gaps in the IT control
environment could result in the financial
accounting and reporting records being
materially misstated.

IT general and application controls are critical
to ensure that changes to applications and
underlying data are made in an appropriate
manner. Adequate controls contribute to
mitigating the risk of potential fraud or
errors as a result of changes to the
applications and data.

Due to the pervasive nature of role of
information technology systems in financial
reporting, in our preliminary risk assessment,
we planned our audit by assessing the risk of
a material misstatement arising from the
technology as significant for the audit, hence
the Key Audit Matter.

management, change management,
segregation of duties, system reconciliation
controls and systermn application controls over
key financial accounting and reporting
systems. We performed a range of audit
procedures, which included:

Review of the report of IS Audit carried
during the year by an independent firm of
Chartered Accountants pertaining to IT
systems general controls including access
rights over applications, operating systems
and databases relied upon for financial
reporting.

Our other processes include:

o selectively recomputing interest
calculations and maturity dates;

o Selectively re-evaluating masters
updation, interface with resultant
reports;

o Testing of the system generated reparts
and accounting entries manually for
core financial reporting matters (i.e.
verification around the computer
system)

o Evaluating the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of the
significant accounts-related T
automated controls which are relevant
to the accuracy of system calculation,
and the consistency of data
transmission

Other areas that were independently

assessed included password policies,
system configurations, system interface
controls, controls over changes to
applications and databases,

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Holding Com
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

not include the consolidated financial staterments and our auditor's report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion therean,

In connection with cur audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing 30, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with govemance.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the Consolidated financia! position, the Consclidated financial performance and the
changes in equity and cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the respective Company’s management and Board
of Directors of the entities included in the Group is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstaterment when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consclidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consclidated financial statemenis,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
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error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

b} Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

¢) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d} Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities of the holding and its subsidiary companies to express an opinion on the
consclidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entity included in
the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit carried out
by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are
further described in para (a) of the section titled *Other Matter” in this audit report.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and gualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (i} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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MUXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Other Matters

a)

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary included in the Consolidated financial
statements, whose financial statements reflect [the figures reported below are before giving effect
to consolidation adjustments] total assets of  499.34 Crores as at March 31, 2024, total revenues
of 262.46 Crores, total net profit after tax of ¥ 7.58 Crores, total comprehensive income of ¥ 572
Crores and net cash inflow amounting to ¥ 33.96 Crores for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. This financial statements has been audited by
other auditor whose report have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of sub-section {3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the audit report of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report of
the other auditor on the separate financial statements of a subsidiary were audited by other auditor,
as noted in the “Other matter” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b)

c)

e)

f)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consoclidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, proper bocks of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and
the reports of the other auditors. The backup of the books of account and other books and papers
maintained in electronic form, has been maintained on a daily basis on servers physically located in
India during the year.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2024 and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in
India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in the Annexure
-A, which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India. Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of those Companies.

WM. S5,

ha
* -’
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MUXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197{16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Holding
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the
Act.

h

——

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group.

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorperated in India.

iv. (@) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, which are
cormnpanies incorporated in India, whose financial statement have been audited under the
Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such subsidiary, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiary or in any other personl(s) or entity(ies), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary (*Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary, which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such subsidiary, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiary, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Holding Company or any of such subsidiary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
person(s) or entity{ies) identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{c) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reascnable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary
which are companies incorporated in India whase financial statements have been audited
under the Act, nothing has come to our or the other auditor’s notice that has caused us or
the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and {ii) of Rule
il{e), as provided under (a) and (b} above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid during the year by the
Holding Company and subsidiary company, whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, where applicable, during the year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as
applicable.

+91-79-2647 2000 | contact@mmsco.in | www.mmsco.in Page 7110

7" Floor, Heritage Chambers, Behind Bikanerwala Sweets, Near Azad Society, Nehru Nagar, Ahmedabad-380015



MUXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

The interim dividend declared and paid during the year by the Holding Company, whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, where applicable, during the year is in accordance
with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

As stated in notes to the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and subsidiary company, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
where applicable, have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of
the members of Holding Company and Subsidiary Company at the ensuing respective Annual
General Meetings. Such dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as
applicable.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Holding Company and its subsidiary

companies incorporated in India have used accounting software for maintaining books of
account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail
{edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all the relevant transactions
recorded in the software except that in case of holding company and a subsidiary, audit trail
feature was not enabled at database level for accounting software to log any direct data
changes. Further, during the course of our audit, we and respective auditors of the above
referred subsidiaries did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with
in respect of such accounting software where such feature is enabled.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is applicable from
Apri 1, 2013, reporting under rule 11{g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for
the financial year ended March 31, 2024,

vii. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: April 24, 2024
UDIN: 24042132BJZWZ(8914

Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order"/ "CARQO") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and by
other auditors of its subsidiary included in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports except-

Sr. | Name of the entity CIN Holding Clause number
No. company /| of the CARO
Subsidiary report which is
unfavourable or
qualified or
adverse
1 MAS Financial | L65910GJ1995PLC0O26064 | Holding Clause (xi){a)
Services Limited Company

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO,,
Chartered Accountants
& -\ Firm Registration No.: 106625W

3

Chandresh S. Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 042132
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" MUKESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

*ANNEXURE A" TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT
Report on the Internal Financial Control clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of MAS Financial Services Limited {(hereinafter referred to as “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated
in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {"ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Holding Company and its subsidiaries companies, which are companies incorporated in India based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors of the subsidiary companies incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the
Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, which are incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:
1 pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, acc
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

and fairly reflect the
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MUXESH M. SHAH & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matter paragraph
below, the Holding company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on
the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

Other matter

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and aperating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to a subsidiary company,
which is company incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding report of the auditors of
such company incorporated in India.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

For MUKESH M. SHAH & CO,,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 106625W

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: April 24, 2024
UDIN: 24042132BJZWZ(8914

(S St

Chandresh S. Shah
Partner

Membership No.: 042132
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HAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

ANAT 31 MARCH 2024

(¥ in Crores)

ASSETS

Financial assets

Casl. and cash equivalents

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Loans

Investments

Orher financial assets

Non-financial assets

Income tax assets {net)

Deferred tax assets (net)

*roperty, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Righr-of-use assct

Intangible assets under development
Other intangible assets

Other non-financial assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIAGILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables
{IiTrade payables

Total financial asscts

Total non-financial assets

Total assets

(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpnses
(ii} total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

{I1) Cther payables

{1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(i1} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro ¢nterprises and small enterprises

Debt secuntics

Borrowings {other than debrt securities}
Subordinated liabilities

Other financial habilities

Non-financial liabilities
Current 1ax fiabihties (ner)
Provisions

Crther non-financial labilities

EQUITY
Equity share capital
Other equity

Non-coatrolling interest

Total financial liabilities

‘Total nen-financial liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity artributable to the owners of the Holding Compuny

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

The rotes referred 10 above form an integral part of these financial statements

In 1enns of our report of even date attached

For Mukesh M Shah & Co.
Charicred Aceonntants
Firm's Registration No: 1006253W

C S Sha)

Chandresh 5. 5hah
Horver
Membership No 042132

Ahmedabad
23 Apnd 2024

Darshana §. Paodya
fIrecior & Clief Exeontiee Hfficer)
LDIN - 07610402,

‘w/
Riddhi B. Bhayani

omparny Secretary & Compllance (fficer)
(Membership No: A41206)

Ahmedabad
24 Apnl 2024

Note no.

30
30
1itai
1ivdi
fiie)
{iey
iithy
{2

i3

H
i3
16
e

3
1A
19

Asat
31 March 2024

As ar
31 March 2023

212.67 238.67
665.83 56529
6.54 430
7,719.44 6,246.24
726.16 791.04
78.86 61.63
9,409.50 790717
152 282
1185 19.33
2123 14.66
69.80 3760
319 1.18
0.24 033
101 1.03
28.00 1134
137.84 108.05
9,547.34 8,015.22
0.03 0.3
2112 14.55
1.89 184
626.86 627.26
6,496.88 534757
302.11 252,70
158.36 51034
7,707.25 6435439
170 206
10.11 9.49
6.71 461
21.52 16.16
7,728.77 647053
163.99 $4.66
1,618.72 146399
1,782.71 1,518.65
35.86 26.02
1,818.57 1,544.67
9.547.34 8.015.22

For and on behalf of the Board g

Rirectors of

Kamlesh C. Gandhi

Jatrmar g Managing Direcior)

{DIN - 00044852)

. o’

Ankit Jain

(Chief Firancial Ufficer



MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR FTHE VEAR KNDED 37 ALARCH 024

i¥in Crores;

1. Revenue from operations
Interest inceme
Gaun on assignment of financial assets
Fees and commission income
Net gain on fair valuc changes
Total revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

1. Expenses
Finance costs
Fees and commission expense
[mpairment on financial assets
Employee benefits expenses
Deprecianon, amortization and impairment
Others expenses

Total expenses

Profit before exceptional icems and tax (L - [
Exceptional items
L. Profit before 1ax

1V. Taxexpense:
Current 1ax
Excess provision for 1ax relating (o pnor years
Net current tax expense
Deferred tax expense ‘ {credit)
Nel L capenss
V. Profit for the year (111 -TV)

¥1. Other comprehensive income
{A) hems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
Re-measurenent of the defined benefit liabilities
Tncome tax impact on above
Toral {A)
{B) [tems that will be reclassified to profil or Joss.
Loans and advances through other comprehensive Income
Income tax impact on above
Total {B)
Other comprehensive income (A+B)
VIL Total comprehensive income for the year (V + ¥1)
V1Il. Profit for the year atiributable to

Owners of the Holding Company
Non-conrolling interest
TX. OMher comprehensive income atmributable to
Owners of the Holding Company
Non-controlling iaterest
X.  Total comprehensive income attributable to
Owners of the Holding Company
Non-controlling interest
X1  Earuings per equity share (of ¥ 10 each):
Basic (%)
Diluted (T}
See accompanying notes o the financial statenients
Ln terms of our report of even date antached

For Mukesh M Shah & Co.
Chartered Accountatils
Firm's Regisiration No. 106625\

CSShal

Chandresh 5. Shah
Parowr
Membership MNo: 042152

Darshana 5. Pandya
threcior & Chref Execuine Gfficer)
{DIN - 07610402

Ahmedabad \(}w
24 Apnl 2024 //
Riddhi B. Bhayani

Company Seorerary & Compliance Officers
Membership No. A41200)

Ahraedabad
24 Apnl 2023

Note no.

1
[

30
30

30

34

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

1077.09 334 04
12232 47
66.48 50.90
1327 219
1,279.16 978 60
6.52 EXE!
1,285.68 93103
646.71 496,01
4380 4801
90.61 5336
100,45 7070
439 272
55.15 38.58
946.01 70938
339.67 271 6%
339.67 T 6s
3.0 6723
8.21) (2.47)
32.85 6176
281 167
85.66 65 83
254,01 20582
{0.51) 0.08
6.13 (.02
(038) 606
19.08 (2369)
(4.80) 621
14.28 (18 48}
13.90 (18,42}
267.91 187,40
15105 263.26
296 256
14.63 (1834}
(0.73) 042
265.68 154,42
2 208
1531 1239
1531 1239

e & Managing Director)

Kamlesh C. Gandhi

(DIN - 00044852)

Qs 30

(Chief Fuxansiof Officer)




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENTYED 31 MARCH 2024

(T Crores)

(A

(B)

Equity share capital

Equity share of T 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Restated balance at I April 2022 34.66
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at 31 March 2023 54.60
Changes in Equity Share Capital due 1o prior period errors -
Restated bafance at 31 March 2023 S4.60
Changes in equity share capitzl durmg the vear 10932
Balance at 31 March 2024 163.99
Other equity
Reserves and surplus Other comprehensive Tuotal
income
Reserve wis. Reserve fund Equirty Securities Retained Equity Loans and
45-IC of RBI w/s, 29-C of component  preminm earnings  instruments  advances
Act, 1934 NHB Act, of compound through OCI through OCI
1987 financial
instrum ents
Restated balance a1 31 March 2022 21191 4.70 0.11 426,95 537.08 * 0.00 114,50 1,295.25
Prafit for the year - - - - 203 26 - - 205.26
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net of taxes) - - - Q06 - - 000
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes) - - - - - - (15.17) (15107
Final dividend on equity shares - - - (9.57} - - 19 37)
Intenim dividend on equity shares - - - (2.84) - - (9 841
Transfer to resenve u's. 45-1C of RBI Act. 1534 4019 - - - 10 19) . - -
Transter to reserve ws ws 29-C of NHB Act 1087 - 117 - - {117 - - -
Restated batance at 31 March 2023 23210 587 1] 426.95 679.63 0,00 99.33 1,463.99
Profit for the vear - - 251 08 - - 23103
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans {net of taxes) - - - - (0.38) - - (0.38)
Other comprehensive income (net of taxes) - - - - 42.02 4202
Final Dividend on equity shares - - - (1011} - - IR {URRS
Interym Dividend on equity shares - - (16.40) - - P16 HY
Transfer 1o teserve u’s 45-1C of the RB] Act, 1934 4955 - - - {49.535) - -
Transfer to reserve w's 29-C of NHB Act. 1987 121 - - (nzn - - -
Effect of changes in the Group's mterest o 001 - {228) - 003 {2.13)
On issue of bonus shares - (109.32) - - - {109.32)
Balance at 31 March 2024 301.65 7.19 02 317.63 830.75 * 0.00 141.38 1,618.72

* Represents amount less than T 50,000

In terms of our report of even date artached

For Mukesh M Shah & Co.
Chartered Acconntants

Finn's Repistration No: 106623

Casind

Chandresh S. Shah

Parmer
Mambership No: 042132

Ahmedabad
24 April 2024

Darshana S, Pandya

{Inrector & Chief Fxecutve Officer)

IDIN - 076710402)

+

A

Riddhi B. Bhayani

(Company Secretary & Complianee Officer)
{Membersiip No: A41206)

Almedabad
24 Apnl 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
MAS Financial Services Limited

Kamlesh C, Gandhi
«Chairman & Managing {hreciory
(DN - 60044852

; Ankit Jain
(Chief FFinancial Officer)



MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

{Z 0 Crores;

Al

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amorhsation

Finance cost

Impainment on financial assets

{Profit} 7 loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest income

Gair on assignment of financial assets

Net pain on farr value changes

Net pain on sale of investments measured a1 amomzed cost
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange

Gain en derecognition of leased asset

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Changes in working eapital:
Adjustiments for (increase)ydecrease in operating assets:
Loans
Trade receivables
Advances reccived apainst loan agreements
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Other financial asset
Other non-financial asset
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating habiities.
Trade payabie and other payable
Other financial liabilities
Other non-financial liabilities
Provisions { Alse refer note 34)
CASH GENERATED FROM / {USED IN) OPERATIONS

Interest income reccived

Interest ingome on Investment measured at amortised cost
Finance cost paid

Income tax paid {ner)

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / (USED IN} OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property. plant and equipments and intangible assets, including capital advances
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets

Purchase of mvestinents

Redemption of investments

Profit on redemption of long tenn investinent

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (13)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares (net)

Proceeds from debr secunities and borrewmngs

Repayments of debt securilies and borrowings

Short term loans (Net)

Repayment of lease liabilities

Dividends paid

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (()

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear

Cash andl cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note 1 below)

* Represents ainount less than T 50.000

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

339.67 271.65
4.29 2.72
64671 496 01
90.61 53.38
(0.04) (0.10}
{1,077.09) (834.04}
(122.32) (71473
(2.48} (2.83)
(4.84) (135
(0.06) -
(0.04) _
{465.26) (357.70)
(125.59) {86.03)
(1,380.57) (1,424.08)
(2.24) (3.25)
0.47 (6.04)
(180.54) 20.73
(6.04) (14 85)
(17.16) (707
6.52 038
(16.06) (172.99)
2.10 {455
0.62 {1,513.20) 232 {1,610.00)
{1.638.79) (1.696.05)
975.40 767.52
76,48 48.61
(698.94) {484.55)
(80.20) 27274 (61.47) 270,11
(1,366.05) (1,425.943
22.29) (10.95)
0.11 0.24
(2,628.30) (2.886.72)
2,700.56 2,593.3
50.08 (304.05)
5.00 001
3.842.18 3,193.52
(2.319.89) {1,283.55}
{210.28) {206.03}
(0.54) (0.28)
(26.55) (19.45)
1,289.97 1,684.02
(26.00) (45.97
238.67 284 64
212.67 238 .67




M AS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1% in Crores)
Notes:

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

I Cash and bank balances at the end of the year comprises:
{a) Cash on hand 0.32 0.23
{b) Balances with banks 127.06 68.30
{c) Bank deposits with orginal matunty of 3 menths or less 85.29 170 08
Cash and cash equivatents as per the balance sheer 212.67 238.67

2 The zbove cash How staicment has been prepared under the "Indirect method” as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on statement of cash flows specified under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013

3 The Group as at 31 March 2024 has undrawn borrowiny facilities amounting to T 2590.78 crores that may be available for future operating activities and to seule capital
comimitments.

4 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

31 March 2023 Cash Tlows Non cash changes® 31 March 2024
Debt securities 627 26 - (0.40) 620 86
Borrowings other than debr securities 5,247.57 1,262.06 {12.75) 6496 88
Suberdinated liabilities 25270 5000 {0.39) 32
Total liabilities from Mnancing activities 6,127.53 131206 {13.74) TA25.88
31 March 2022 Cash Nows Non cash changes* 3L March 20923
Debi securities 36203 26625 (1.02) BT 20
Borrowings other than debt secunties 3,93997 1317 49 9.89) 524757
Suberdinated liabilities 137.22 120.00 {452 25270
Total liabilities from financing activities 4.439.22 1,703.74 (15.43) 6.127.53
* Non-cash changes represents the effect of amortization of transaction cost.
The notes referred Lo above form an integral part of these financial siatements
In terms of our report of even date attached
For Mukesh M Shah & Co, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis FAAS Financial Services Limired

Firm's Registration No: 106625W

Chandresh §. Shah Darshana S. Pandya Kamlesh C, Gamdhi
Pariner fDirector & Chief Execmune Gfficer) (¢ hairman & AManaging Director)
Membership No: 042132 (DIN - 07610402) {DIN - 00044852}
L]
Ahmedabad /
24 April 2024 - // .
Riddhi B. Bhayani Ankir Jain
{Company Secretary & Complrance Oficery (Chef Financial Cfficert

(Membership No: A31200)

Atnnedabad
24 Apnl 2024



MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1.

2.1

A CORPORATE INFORMATION

MAS Financial Services Limited (the "Holding Company™) together with its subsidian A1AS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited and MASFIN
Insurance Broking Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Group™) are public companies domiciled in India. The Holding Company is registered as a
non deposit 1aking non-banking finance company ("NBFC") with Reserve Bank of India ("RB{"). M.AS Rural Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited is
registered as a non deposit taking housing finance company {"HFC™} with National Housing Bank {"NHB"). The Group is engaged in the business of
providing Micre Enterprise Loans {"MEL"}, Small and Medium Enterprise loans ("SME"), Two Wheeler loans ("TW™),Salaried Personal loans ("SPL"),
Commerctal Vehicle loans ("CV*), loans 1o NBFCs. housing loans, commercial property loans and project loans for real estate projects to customers especially
In the segment of affordable housing in rural and urban areas. MASFIN Insurance Broking Privatle Limited is acting as an agent in providing insurance
services. The Holding Company's equity shares are listed on two recognised stock exchanges in India i.e. BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited

The Holding Company s registered office is at 6. Ground Floor, Naravan Chambers, behind Patang Hotel, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad - 380009, Gujarat,
inda.

B RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS:

The following Indian Accounting Standards have been modified on miscellaneous issues with effect from April 1, 2023, Such changes include clarificationguidance on:

(1) Ind AS 191 - First tune adoption of [nd AS - Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities 0 be recognized for all temperary differences associated with nght-of-use
assets, lease liabilities.decommissioning  restoration * similar liabilities.

) ind AS 107 ~ Finanzal Instruments: Disclosures — Information about the measurement basis for financial :nstruments shall be disclosed as part of material accounting
policy information.

(i) Ind AS | — Presentation of Financial Statements & Ind AS 34 - Intenm Financial Reporting - Material accounting policy information (including focus on how an entity
applied the requitements of Ind AS) shall be disclosed instead of significant accoumting policies as part of financial statements.

(iv} Ind AS 8 — Accounting policies. changes in accounting estimate and errors — Clarification on what constitutes an accounting estimate provided.

(v) Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes — In case of a transaction which give tise o equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, the initial recognition exemprion from
deferred tax is no longer applicable and deferred 1ax liability & deferred tax asset shall be recognized on gross basis for such cases.

None of the above amendments had any matersal effect on the group’s financial statements.except for disclosure of Material Accounting Policies instead of Sigmificant
Accountiaig Policies in the Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance and principles of consolidixtion

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting standards ("Ind AS") as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 as amended and notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), and 1n conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act. Further. the Group has complicd with all the directions
rclated to Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards preseribed for Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) in accordance with the RBI
notification no. RBI'2019-20/170 DOR NBFC).CC PD No. 10922 10 106'2019-20 dated 13 March 2020

Any application guidance/ clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are :mplemented as and when they are issued/ applicable,

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Changes in Equity arc prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the
Division II! of Schedule III to the Act. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash
Flows™,

Principles of consolidation

These consolidated financial stalements are prepared on the following basis in accordunce with Ind AS 110 on 'Consolidated Financial Statements’ specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

i} Subsidiary -

Subsidiary in an entity controlled by the Holding Company. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiary are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which controls commences until the date on which controt ceases.

ii) Non-contrelling interest (“NCI")
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s equity interest in
a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of contro! are acceunted for as equity transactions

iii} Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary. it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of
equity. Any interest retamned 1n the former subsidiary is measured a1 fair value on the date the contral ig Jost. Any resulting gain or Ioss;{@&
prefit or loss o




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

2.
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2.2
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2.4

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Statement of compliance and principles of consolidation (Centinued)
iv) Transactions climinated on consolidation

The financial stztements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary used in the consolidation procedure are drawn up to the same reporting date 1.2. 31
March 2024. The financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values
of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there 1s no evidence of
impairment. The Group follows uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events 1n similar circumstances.

v} The following subsidiary company has been considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Name of the Relationship Country of Ownership % of holding and votiog power as i1
entity incorporation held by 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
AAS Rural Housing & Morgage Finance Subsidiary India #HAS Financial 60 17% 59 67%
Limued company Services Limited
MASFIN Insurance Broking Private Limited Subsidiary ndia #AS Financial 4%.00% 69.00%
company Services Limited :
MASFIN Insurance Broking Private Limited Associaie India A% Rural Housing and 3000% 30.00%%
Company Mortyage Finance Limmited

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost conveniton and on accrual basis, except for certain financial instruments which
are measured at far value as required by refevamt [nd AS

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group
operates (the "functional currency™). Amounts in the consolidated financial staternents are presented in crores rounded off to two decimal places as permitted
by Schedule 111 to the Act, except when atherwise indicated

Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of the ¢onsalidated financial statements in conformity with [nd AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities {including contingent liabilities) and the teported income and expenses during the year. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions 10 acCOURting estimates are recognised prospechively.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made judgements, which have a significant risk of causing material adjusiment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

i) Busincss mode! assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of business model and the solely payments of principal and interest (the "SPI'I")
test The Group determines the business model a1 a level that reflects how groups of (inancial assets are managed together to achieve a pacticular business
objective This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets 1s evaluated and their
performance messured. the nisks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Group meniters financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCT that are derecognised prior 10 their maturity to undersiand the
reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the abjective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring 1s part of the
Group’'s continuous assessment of whether the business madel for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and 1f 1t 1s not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant nisk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next linancial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the consoliduted financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, mav change duc to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are retlected in
the assumptions when thes occur

iy Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most ady amageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit piice} regardless of whether that prce is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. When the fiur valugs of financial assets and financial ltabilities recorded in the balance
sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a varicty of valuahon techniques that include the use of valuation models The
inputs to these models are taken from ohservable markets where possible. but where this s not feasible. estimation is required in estabhshing-far values
For further details about determunation of fair value please reler note 3.8 and note 41 :




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1.4

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

\ se of judgements. estimates and assumptions (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (Continued)

ii)

i)

=
=

v)

vi)

Effective interest rate ("EIR") method

The Group's EIR methodelogy, as explained in Note 3. 1{A). recognises interes! income 7 expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of’
a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans givea / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different inferest rates at various
stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penally interest and charges).

This estimadion, by nature, requires an clement of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and lifecycle of the instruments, as welt as expected
changes 10 interest rates and other fee income/ expense that are integral parts of the instrument

Impairment of financial asset

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimatien of the amount and timing
of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances

The Group's expected credit joss ("ECL") calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlving assumptions regarding the choice of
variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

a) The Group's crileria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit tisk and so allowances for financial assets should be measured
on a life time expected credit foss ("LTECL") basis

by Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the chorce of inputs

c) Delermination of associations hetween macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs, such as gross domestic products, lending interest rates and
collateral values, and the effect on probability of detault ("PD"), exposure at default ("EAD") and loss given default ("LGD").

L} Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

e} Management overlay is used in circumstances where management in its objective teview and internal assessment of emerging forward looking

economic facters and related uncertainties
Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Group operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened elemant of liugation risk inherent 1o its operations. As a resull,
it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of the Group's business.

When the Group can reliably measure the putflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such outflaws 1o be probable, the
Group records a provision against the case. Where the outflow is considered 1o be probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingem lability
is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the prebability and amount of losses, the Group takes into account a number of factors in¢luding
legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates

For further details on provisions and other contingencies refer note 3,16
Provision for income tax and deferred tax assets

The Group uses estimates and judgements based on the relevant rukings in the areas of allocation of revenue, costs, allowances and disaliowances which
is exercised while determining the provision for income tax. including the amount expected 1o be paid ¢ recovered for uncertain tax positions. A deferred
tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future 1axable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and
tax losses can be utilized. Accordingly, the Group exercises its judgement to reassess the carrying amount of deferred 1ax assets at the end of each
reporting period.

Deiined Benefit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates, Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefil obligation 1s
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed al each reporting date.

These estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other faclors. including ¢xpectations of future events that may have a financial unpact
on the Group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements are prudent and reasonable
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3.1

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Presentation of the consolidated financial statements

The Group presents its balance sheet in order of liguidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and
more than £2 months after the feporting date {non—current) 18 presented 1n note 39

Fnancial assets and financial liality are generally reported gross in the batance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an
unconditional legally enforceable right to oftset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net
basis in all of the following circumstances

t)  The normal course of business
i) The event of default

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Sr No. Material Accounting Policies Reference In Balance Shect & Profit And Loss Notes
! Recognition of wnlerest income 22
2 Iimpairment of financial assets 8.1, 20
3 Property, plant and equipment 1la)
4 Financial instrument 1]
5 Intangible asscts Llie) 1B}
6 Leases 11(c), 44
7 Retirement and other emplovee benefits 27,40
8 Finance Cost 25

Recognition of interest income
EIR method

Under Ind AS 109, interest income is recorded using EIR tmethed for all financial instruments measured ai amortised cost, financial instrument measured at
FVOCI The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period. 10 the net carrving amount of the financial asset

The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any discount of premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The Group recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the
expecied hfe of the financial instrument.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised [or reasons other than credit nisk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortised
through Interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

Interest income

The Group calculates interest income by applyving the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit impaired and s, therefore, regarded as stage 3, the Group calculates interest tncome on the net basis. If the financial
asset cures and 1s no longer credit impaired, the Group reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Financial instrument - initial recognition

Date of recognition

All financial assets and {inancial abilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The ¢lassification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for managing the instruments (refer

note 3.3¢(A)). Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value (as defined in note 3.8}, wansaction ¢osts are added to, or subtracted from this
amount, except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded a1 EVTPL.

Measurement categories of financial assets angd liabilities

The Group classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at gither:
1) Ameortised cost
ity FWOC]
i) FVTPL
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3.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contintued)
Financial assets and liabilities
Financial asscts

Business model assessment
The Group determines its business model at the leve! that best reflects how 1t manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Group's business model 14 not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis. but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and 1s based on observable
factors such as

a) How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the Group's key
managemenlt personnel,

by The risks thar affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in particular, the way those
risks are managed.

¢} How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the
contractual cash flows collected).

d) The expected frequency. value and timing of sales are also imporiant aspects of the Group's assessment

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case’ or 'stress cas™ scenarivs inlo account.

SPPI test

As a second step of 15 classification process, the Group assesses the contractual tenms of finzncial assets 1o identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

“Princtpal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset
{for example, if there are repavments of principat or amertisation of the premiem’ discount)

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To rake the
SPP! assessment, the Group applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the period for which the interest rate 15 set

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure 1o nsks o volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated 10 a basic
lending arrangement do not give nse to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount cutstanding. In such cases, the
financial assel 15 reguired 1o be measured at FVTPL.

Accordingly, the financial assets are measured as follows:

i} Financial assets carried at amortised cost ("AC")

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business madel whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash
flows and the contractual 1erms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solety payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,

ii) Financial assets measured at FYOCI

A financial assct 35 measured a1 FVOCT if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financia assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give Tise on specified dates 10 cash flows that are solely payments of prineipal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,

iit) Financial asscts at F¥YTPL

A financial assel which is not classified in any of the above categones are measured at FVTPL.
Financial lability

i} [Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liability are initially recognized at fair value Transaction costs that are directly attrsbutable 1o the acquisition or issue of financial liability,
which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recogniiion

ii) Subsequent measurcment

Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Reclassification of linancial assets

The Group does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their mitial recognition, apart frem the circumstances in which the Group changes in its
business model for managing those financial assets :
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilitics
Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Group derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan 1o & customer, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially,
it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecogrition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not aiready been recorded.

Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the nisks and
rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Accordingly, gain on sale or derecognition of assigned portfolio are recorded upfront in the statement of prefit and loss as per Ind AS 109,

As per the guidelines of RBI, the Group is required to retzin certain portion of the loan assigned to parties in its books as Minimum Retention Requirement
("MRR"). Therefore, it continue to recognise the portion retained by it as MRR.

Financial liability

A financiat liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability 1s replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the
original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets
Overview of the ECL principles

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group uses ECL medel, for evalualing impairment of financial assets together with loan commitments other than those
measured at FVTPL.

ECL are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

i.} The 12-months expected credit tosses {expected credit losses that resclt from those default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12
menths after the reporting date); or

i,y Lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from al? passible default events over the life of the financial instrument)
Both LTECLs and 12 months ECLs are calculated on collective basis.
Based on the above, the Group categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Group recognises an allowance based on 12 months ECL. Stage 1 loans includes those loans where there is
no significant increase in credit risk observed and also includes facilities where the credit risk has been improved and the loan has been reclassified from
stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Group recerds an allowance for the life time ECL.

Stage 3: Loans considercd credil impaired are the loans which arc past due for more than $0 days. Borrowers are also classified under stage 3 bucket
under instances like fraud identification and legal proceeding Further, stage 3 loan accounts are identified at customer level (ie. a Stage 1 or 2 customer
having other loans which are in Stage 3). The Group records an allowance for life time ECL.

There is a curing period with Stage 3 loan, where even if the DPD days are reduced by 90 days the same will not be upgraded to Stage | until the loan is 0
DPD.

Loan commitments: When estimating LTECLs for undrawn lean commitments, the Group estimates the expected portion: of the loan commitment that
will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The caleulation of ECLs

For retail loans

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

PD Probability of Default {("PD") 1s an estimate of the likelihcod of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over
the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is stili in the portfolio.

EAD Exposure a1 Default {"EAD"11s an estimate of the exposure at a future default date. taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the
reperting date, including repayments of principal and interest, expected drawdowns on committed facilities and
accrued interest. Further. the EAL for stage 3 retail loan is the outstanding exposure at the time loan is classified as Stage 3 for the
first ume

LGD LGD is an estimate of the loss from a transaction given that a default occurs Under Ind AS 109, lifetime LGD's are defined as a coilection of
LGD's estimates applicable to different future periods

% Recovery rate = (discounted recovery amount + security amount + discounted estimated recovery)/ (total POS)
% LG = | — recovery rale

For retail asset channel ("RAC") loan portfolio

For RAC loan portfolio, the Group has developed mternal rating based approach for the purpose of ECL. The credit rating framework of the Group consists of
various parameters based on which RAC loan portfolio 1s evaluated and credit rating is assigned accordingly.

The Group has developed its PD matrix based on the external benchmarking of various external reports, ratings & Basel norms. This PD matrix 1s calibrated
with its hislorical data and major events on regular time interval in accordunce with s ECL policy.

The LGD has been considered based on Basel-il Framework (International Regulatory Framework of Banks) for all the level of credit rating portfolio.
The Group has calculated PD. EAD and LGD te deternine impairment loss on the pertfolio of loans and discounted at an approximation te the E[R. At every
reporting date, the above calculated EAD and LGDs are reviewed. While at every vear erd, PDs are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates

are analysed.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below.

Stage 1: The 12 months ECL 1s calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The Group calculates the 12 months ECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurning in
the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-months defaull probabilities are applicd to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the expected
1.GD and discountad by an approxamation 1o the onginal EIR

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit nisk since ongination, the Group records an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are
similar 1o those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the Llemme of the instrumemn. The expectied cash shortfalls are discounted by an
approximation to the original EIR.

Stage 3: For loons considered cradit-impaired, the Group recognises the lifetime ¢xpected credit losses for these loans. The method is similar 10 that for stage
2 assets, with the PD set at 100%. Credit smpairment loans are determined at borrower level.

TLoan commitments: When estimating ECL for undrawn loan commitments, the Group estimates the amount sanctioned that will be disbursed after the
reporting date. The ECL 15 then calculated using PD and 1.GD

Management overlay is used 1e adjust the ECL allowance in circumstances where managament judges that the existing inputs, assumptions and model
techmiques do not capture all the risk factors relevant to the Group's lending porttolios. Emerging local or global macroeconomic, mucro economic or political
events, and natural disasters that are not incorporated into the current parameters, risk ratings, or forward looking information are examples of such
circumstances The use of management overlay may impact the amount ol ECL recognized. '

Significant increase in credit risk

The Group monitors all financial assets, including loan commitments issued that are subject to impairment requirements, to assess whether there has been 2
significant increase in credit risk since ininial recognition In assessing w hether the credit nisk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the nsk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based ¢n the remaining maturity of the
instrument with the risk of a default oceurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reperting date when the financial instrument was
first recognised In making this assessment. the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportabie, including
historical experience that is available without undue cost or effort. However, when a financial asset becomes 30 days past due, the Group considers that a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred and the asset is ¢lassified in Stage 2 of the impairment model, ie the loss allowance is measured as the lifetime
ECL. Further, a stage 2 customer having other loans which are in stage |1 arc considered to have significant increase in credit risk
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
The calculation of ECLs (Continued)

Definition of default

The definition of default 1s used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based on 12-month or lifatime
ECL.

Financial assets in default represent those that are at least 90 DPD in respect of principal or interest andor where ihe assets are otherwise considered 1o be
unlikely 10 pay, inciuding those that are credit-impaired.

Loans and advances meassred at FVOC]

The ECLs for loans and advances measured at FYOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet, which remains at fair
salue. Instead. an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the assets were measured al amortised cost is recognised in OCI as an accumulated
impairment amount. with a corresponding charge 10 the statement of prefit and luss. The accumulated loss recognised in OCI is recycled to the statement of
profit and loss upon derecognition of the assets,

Forward looking information

In its ECL models, the Group relies on a bread range of forward looking macro parameters and estimated the impact on the default at a given point of Lime.
For this purpose, the Group has used the data source of Economist Entelligence Unit.

Write-offs

The gress carrving amount of a financial asset 1s written off when the chances of recoveries are remote. This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows 1o repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However.
financial assets that are written off could stil be subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, 1aking inlo account legal advice
where appropriale. Any recoveries made are recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Determination of fair value

Fair value 15 the pnce that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group has taken into account the charactertstics of the asset or lability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or Hability at the-mcasurement date.

In addinon, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the sigmificance of the inputs ro the fir value measurement in its entizety, which are described as follows:

+ Level | financial instruments: Thase where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group has access 10 at the measurement date. The Group considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the
volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date;

* Level 2 financiul instruments. Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable
market data available over the entire period of the snstrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical instruments in inactive markels and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities,
and credit spreads, and

+ Level 3 financial instruments: Those that include une or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)}
(I} Recognition of other income

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration received of
receivable. Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers outlings a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind ASs.

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115

Step 1 Identify contract{s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations
and sets out the criteria for every contract thal must be met.

Step 2: [denofy performance obligations in the contract. A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to
the customer

Step 3 Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects 10 be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised geods or services 1o a customer, excluding amounts coflected on behalf of third parties

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group
allocates the transactior price to each performarce obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 50 Recogmise revenue when (or as) the Group sutisfies a performance abligation
Dividend income
Dividend income (including from FVOCI investments) is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the

economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is generally when the
shareholders approve the dividend.

Rental income

Rental incone arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in rental income in the statement of
profit and loss. unless the increase isin line with expected general inflation, in which case lease income is recognised based on contractual terms

Crther interest income
Other interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis.
Fees and commission income

Fees and commissien income such as stamp and document charges. guarantee commission. service incorne, due diligence & evaluation changes and portfolio
monitering fees ete. are recognised on peint in time basis

{11} Recognition of other expense
Finance cost

Finance costs are the interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Interest expenses are computed based on
effective interest rate method. Finance costs that are directly anributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the
cost of such assets. A gualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time 1o get ready for its intended use or sale.

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on respective financial instruments measured at Amortized cost
Financial instruments include bank term loans, non-convertible debentures, commercial papers, subordinated debts, perpetual debts and exchange differences
ansing from foreign curency borrowings 1o the extent thev are regarded as an adjestment te the interest cost

Finance costs that are dircctly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying
asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of ime to get ready for its intended use or sale

All other finance casts are charged 1o the statement of profit and loss for the period for which they are incurred.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-tem balances (with an oniginal maturity of three monihs ar less
from the date of acquisition}, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into krown amounts at cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of

changes in value _--_-——\\
. i e N N

e




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 '

3.

3.11

3.1z

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contined)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment ("PPE") are carrizd at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of PPE comprises its
purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorilies),
any directly attnibutable expenditure on mzking the asset ready for its intended use and other incidental expenses. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropnate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. Subsequent expenditure on
PPE afier its purchase is capitalized only if it is probable that the futurc economic benefits will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to write down the cost of property and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives as specified under schedule Il of the Act. Land is not depreciated. All assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of
purchase.

The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

i) Buildings - 60 vears

iy Office equipment - 3 1o 15 years

n:) Furniture and fixtures - 10 yvears

iv) Vehicles - 8 years

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date on which such asset is purchased or ready for its intended use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed ai each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, 1f approprate.

PPE is derecognised on dispoesal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
{calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asser) is recognised in other income / expense in the statement
of prefit and loss in the vear the asset is derecognised.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstarding at each balarce sheet dale are disclosed separately under other non-financial assets. Capital work
in progress comprises the cost of PPE that are not ready for its intended use at the reporting date. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, net of impairmen?
loss, if any.

Intangible assets

The Group's intangible assets include the value of software. An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable
that the expected tuture economic benefits that are attributable 1o 1t will flow to the Group.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives (three years) using the
steaight-line methed, and is included in depreciation and amortisation in the statement of prolit and loss.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as ‘Intangible assets under development'.

Impairment of non ficancial assets - property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at the each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If any indication of impairment exists, the
recoverable amount of such assets is esttmated and if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount, impairment loss is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss as an expense, for such excess amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and valug in use. Value in
use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an
impairment loss recognised for an asset in earlier accounting peniods no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease hability except for:
- Leases of low value assets; and
- Leases with a duration of 12 months or less

Lease payments associaled with short term leases or low value leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

At the commencement date of the lease. the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guaraniees,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date. the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlving asset.

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.¢. the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assels are
measured al cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised. inttial direct costs meurred and lease pavments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives reczived. Unless the Group is reasonably certain 10 obtain ownership of the [eased asset at the end of the lease term. the recognised right-of-
use assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 1he shorter of its estimated uscful life and the lease term.

The Group determings the lease term as the non-canceliable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not 10 exercise thal
option. In assessing whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease. or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, 1t
comsiders all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option 1o extend the lease, or not 10 exercise the
option to terminate the icase, The Group revises the ease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

Retirement and other employee bepefits

Defined contribution plans
The Group’s contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are ¢harged as an expense
bascd on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans
The Group pays gratity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Group at the time of resignation / retiremment. The gratuity 1s
paid @015 days salary for every compleled vear of service as per the Pavment of Gratuity Act. 1972

The gratuity liability amount is contributed by the Group to the Life Insurance Corporatian of India who administers the fund of the Group.

The hability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during
which the benefit is expected 10 be derived from emplovees™ services

As per Ind AS 19, the service cost and the net interest cost are charged 1o the statcment of profit and loss. Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability,
which comprise actuarial gains and losses. the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (¢l any, excluding interest). are
recogmised in CHC1

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries,
wages efc. and the expected cost of ex-gratia are recognised in the peried in which the emplioyee renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected 10 be paid when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and
the obligation can be estimated reliably.

The cost of short-termn compensated absences 1s accounted as under

{2y 1n case of accumulated compensated absences. when emplovees render the services that increase their entitlement of future compensated absences. and

{b) n case of non-accumulating compensated absences. when the absences oceur,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions. contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embadyving ecanomic benefits will be required to settle the ebligation. and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When
the effect of the time value of maney is material, the Group determines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate
reflecting the current rates specific 1o the liability. The expense relating 1o any provision i presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement,

Contingent liability

A possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed oaly by the occurrence or non-occurrence of ong or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the controt of the Group or; presem abligation that anises from past events where it 1s not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required 10 settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficien: reliabitiy
are disclosed as contingent lizbility and not provided for.

Contingent asset

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Greup. Contingent assets are neither recognised not disclosed in the financial statements.

Taxes
Current tax

Current tax comprises amount of tax payable in respect of the taxable income or loss for the vear determined in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961 and
any adjusiment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous vears. Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the period as
determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or lass is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Current tax items are rzcognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or cquity.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carryving amounts of assets and Nabilitics in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 1n the period in which the liability is settied or the asset realised.
based on 1ax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting penod. The carrying amount of deferred tax
liabilities and asseis are reviewed at the end of each reponting period

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equin.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or equity.

Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are offset if such iems relate 10 1axes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the Group has a legally
enforceable rnight for such set off

Goods and services tax paid en acquisition of assets or on incurring expenscs

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax pad. exeept when the tax incurred on a purchase of asse1s or availing of services is not
recoverable from the taxation authoriry. in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax (i.e. profit attrthwnable to the owners of the parent) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit afier tax (1.¢. profit attributable 1o ordinary equity holders) as adjusted for after-tax amount of
dividends and interest recognised in the period 1n respect of the dilutive potential ordinary shares and is adjusted for any other changes in income or expense
that would result from the conversion of the dilutive potential ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share as increased by the weighted average number of additienal ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares

Potential equily shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profis per share from continuing ordinary
operations. Potenuial dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period. unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive
potential equity shares are determened independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are
adjusted for share splits ¢ reverse share splits, right issue and bonus shares. as appropriate.

Dividends von ordinary shares
The Group recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Helding Company when the distribution is authorised and the

distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Holding Company. As per the Act, a distribution is authorised when i1 is approved by the shareholders. A
corresponding amount 1s recognised directly in equity

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value ol he assets to be distributed with fair valug re-measurement recognised directly in equity
Repossessed asset

In the nermal course of business whenever default occurs. the Group may take possession of properties or ather assets in its retail portfolio and generally
disposes such assets through auction. to settle the outstanding debt

(D Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction
Monetary asscts and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency at rates of exchange on the reporting date.

Exchange difference on restatement of all other monetary items is recognised i the Stmement of Profit and Loss.

(11} Derivatives

A derivative 15 a financial instrument ar other contract with all three of the following characteristics:

1) [ts value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate. financial instrument price, commedity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices
or rates, credit rating or credit index. or other variable. provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract (i ¢ .
the “underlying’)

it} It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts expected to have a
similar response to changes in market factors

iti} It is settled at a future date.

The Group enters inio denvative transactions with various counterparties to hedge 1ts foreign curreney exchange rate risks. Derivative transaction consists of
hedging of foreign exchange transactions, which includes forward contracts.

Derivatives are recorded at fair value and carried as assats when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. The notional
amount and fair value of such denivatives are disclosed separately. Changes in the fuir value of derivatives are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
Ministry of Corporate Affairs {“MCA”} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules as issued fram time 1o time For the vear ended March 31. 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable 10 the Group.
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(T in Crores)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 0.32 0.23
Balances with banks ‘
In current / cash credit accounts 127.06 68.36
Bank deposits with original maturity of 3 months ar Juss 85.29 170.08
Total cash and cash equivalents 212.67 238.67
6 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
In current accounts (refer note 1 below) 0.14 0.12
Earmarked balances with banks:
Unclaimed dividend bank balances 0.02 0.02
Unspent CSR bank balances a72 534
In fixed deposit accounts:
Deposits given as secunly against borrowings and other commitments 2345 2274
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months {refer note 2 below) 636.5¢ 537.07
Totzl bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 665.83 565.29
Note:

|. Balance represents balance with banks in earmarked account 1. "collection and pay-out account™.
2. Represents bank deposits against overdraft facility except balance amounting to ¥ 1.63 crore as regular deposit.

7 Trade receivables

Trade receivables considered good-secured 7 -
Trade receivables considered good-unsecured 6.54 4.30
Trade recenables which have significant increase in credit risk -

Trade recevables - credit impaired -

Total trade receivables 6.54 4.30

Notes:
1. Impairment allowance recognised on trade receivables is T Nil (Previous year: T Nil).
2. There is no due by directors or other officers of the Group or any firm or private company in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
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(T in Crores)

Trade Receivables ageing schedute as at 31 March 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months years
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 512 1.27 0.15 - -
sood
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have - - B - -
significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit - - - . R
impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - R

Disputed Trade Recervables — which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables — credit smpaired - - - - -

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Lessthan 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Totai
months years
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered 4.03 015 0.12 - -
good
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit - - - . -
tmpaired

Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - R

Disputed Trade Receivakles — which have - - - - -
significant increase 1n credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - -




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 3] MARCH 2024

(¥ in Crores)

8

Loans
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

At fair value At Total At fair value At Total

through OCI  amortised cost through OCI  amortised cost
(A) (I) Bills Reccivables - 121.07 121.07 - 8238 8238
Less: Impairment loss allowance - {0.27) (0.27} - (0.33) ((1.53)
Total {A) (I)-Net - 120.80 120.80 - 81.85 81.85
(A} (Il) Term Loans - Gross 7.448.93 152.22 7.601.15 6,038.39 128.76 6.167.15
Less: Impairment loss allowance - (2.51) (2.51) - (2.76) (2.76)
Total (A) (IT1)-Net 7.448.93 149.71 7,598.64 6.038.39 126.00 6,164.39
Total (A} - Net © 744893 270.51 7.719.44 6.038.39 20785 6.246.24
(B) (1) Secured by tangible assets 5.145.67 273.29 5.418.96 4,510.85 21114 4.721.99
(11} Unsecured 2,303.26 - 2,303.26 1,527 534 - 1.527.54
Total {(B) - Gross 7,448.93 273.29 7.722.22 6.038.39 21114 6.249.53
Less: Impairment loss allowance - (2.78) (2.78) - (3.29) (3.29)
Tota! (B) - Net 7.448.93 270.51 7,719.44 6.038.39 207.83 6.246 24
{CY{N Loans in India
{1) Public Sector - - - - - -
{i) Private Sector 7,448.93 273.29 7,722.22 6.038.39 211.14 6.249.53
Total (C) - Gross 7,448.93 273.29 772222 6.038.39 211.14 6,249.53
Less: Impairment loss allowance - {2.78) (2.78) - (3.2% (3.29)
Total (C) (1) - Net 7,448.93 270.51 7,719.44 6.038.39 207.85 6,246.24
(C} (I} Loans outside India - - - - - .
Eess: Impairment loss allowance - - - - -
Total (C) (I1) - Net - - - . - -
Total C(1) and C{11} 7,448.93 270.51 7,719.44 6,038.39 207.85 6.246.24

Loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs, and the related parties, either severally or
jointly with any other person

Particulars As at % to the total As at % to the total
31 March 2024 Loans and 31 March 2023 Loans and

Advances in the Advances in the

nature of loans nature of loans
Promoter Nil Nil Nil Nil
Directors Nil Nil 0.13 0.00%
KMPs Nil Nil Nil Nil
Related parties Nil Nil Nil Nit
Notes:

I. The impairment on loans measured at FVOC] do not reduce the carrving amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet. which
remains at fair value. Instead. an amount equal to the atlowance that would arise if the assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in
QCI as an accumulated impairment amount. with a corresponding charge 1o profit or loss.




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

(T m Crores)

8.1 An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount of loans is given below*

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Stape | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage L Stage 2 Srage 3 Total

Giross carrying amount opening balance 6,028.25 128.70 135.19 #,292.14 463212 108 83 106 51 4 847 46
Changes in opening credit exposeres (net of repayinent and exgluding (4,351.55) (65.35) (48,93} {4,465.83) (326282 (36.72) {39.4%) (3,338.07)
write ofl)
New asscts eriginated (net of repayment)** ' 5,877.31 82.37 54.18 6,013.86 4,738 .69 68.37 ’ 2077 4,827 83

ers from Stage 1 {IU5.5D) 45.59 59.93 - (91 83} 39.23 $2 6 -
Tramsters from Stage 2 6.82 (S0.80) 43.98 - L1 8% (50.94) kR -
Translers from Stage 3 1.33 0.36 (1.69) - 041 - 1041 -
Amounts written off (0.£3) (1.58) (47.32) {49.03) (017 (0.07) {43 94) (44 18)
Cross carrying amount closing balance 7.456.51 139.29 196.34 779114 6,028.2%5 128.70 135.19 6,292.14
¥ The above classification also includes balanee of spread ieceivable on assigned portfolio. (Refer note no, 1)
** New assels oniginated are hose assets which have eillier remained in stage | or have become stage 2 or 3 at the year end

8.2 Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below:
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Stage t Stage 2 Stage 3 ‘Fotal Ntage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

ECYL allewance - opening balance 31.82 ni S0 108.29 46 .38 1338 45 19 104 95
Changes in opening credit expesures (net of sepayment and exciuding 198 2.90 [14.07) (8.19) (11 4.50 (1032) (10.94)
write off)
New assets originated {net of repayment) 24,14 18.22 19.13 61.49 2568 13.315 6 90 4573
Transfers from Stage | {28.91) 49.58 19,33 - (29.17} 656 22461 -
Transfers from Stage 2 LIXTE] (23.31) 2323 - 0.08 (15.18) 1513 -
Transkers from Stage 3 “{.00 0.05 (.05} - *0.00 - 000 -
Amounts written off .00 (0.25) {26.6d) (26.29) - (0.04) (2541} ‘ (2545
ECL allewance - closing balance 30,11 19.56 75.63 135,30 31.82 22.37 54.10 108.29

* Represents amount less than T 50,000




AAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 3! MARCH 2024

(Tin Crores)
The contractual smount cutstanding on loans that have been writien off during the year. but were sull subject to enforcement achivity 13 T49.03 crores at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 T 44 18 crotes)
The inctease m ECL was draven by an ingrease in the gross amount of the portfolio. movements betwcen stages as a resull of increase in eredit nisk, change in probshiliy of default, macre economic fuctors and management overfays due (o estimated

macro-ccononc factors The extent to which macro-econonne factors will spact current estimates of ECL is uncertain at thes poim of tine The Group has conducied a qualitative assessment and has considered furecasted macro economic factors and
a higher prabability of default to factor on mmpainnent allowances. For further details, refer note 43

8.3 Credit quality of loan assets

The table below shows the gross carrving amount of lvans based oa the Group’s internal grading model and year-end stage classification of loans, The amounts presented are gross of unpainment allowances retails of the Group's intemnal grades are
explained in note 43 1.

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

[nternal grade
Performing

High quality asscts 7.456.49 - - 7.456.49 H02825 . - 6028 25

Quality assets - 68.82 - 68.82 - 8595 - 8595

Standard assets - 70.48 - 70.48 - 42.75 - 4275
Non- performing

Subr standarel assets - - 97.23 97.23 - - 45.96 4596

Low quality asscts - - 98.12 98,12 - - 89 23 39.23
Total 7.456.49 139.30 195.35 7,791.14 0028.25 128.70 135.19 6.292.14




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

(¥ in Crores)

9

10

Investments
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Atamortised At fair value Total At amortised At fair value Total
cost through P&L cost through P&L
Investments .
Alternative investment funds - 236 2.36 - 3897 3897
Pass through certificates under securitization 507.81 - 507.81 527.76 - 52776
[ransactions
Market linked debentures - 50.95 50.95 - 188.25 18825
Non - convertible debentures 159.08 - 159.08 31.62 - 31.62
Mutual fund units - 6.14 6.14 - 4.68 4.68
Total — Gross {A) 666.89 59.45 726,34 55938 231.90 79128
(1) Investrnents outside India - - - - - -
(i1} [nvestments in India 666.89 59.45 726.34 55938 23199 791.28
Total (B) 666.89 59.45 726.34 35938 231.9¢ 791.28
Less: Allowance for impairment toss {C) {0.18) - (0,18} (0.24) - {0.24)
Total — Net D={AH) 666.71 59.45 726.16 559.14 23190 791.04
Other financial assets
As at As at

Security deposits

Derivative financial instrments

Tterest accrued but not due on investments
Spread receivable on assigned portfolio
Advances to dealers

Other Recievable

Total other financial assets

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1.72 117
102 -
.75 243
08,92 42.61
345 7.63
- 1.79
78.86 61.63




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ASAT 31 MARCH 2024

(T in Crores)

11 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Nature of Assets Property, plant and equipment (a) Intangible assets (b)

Buildings Office Furniture Ychicles Total Software Other Tortal

equipment  and fixtures intangibles

Cost
At 31 March 2022 668 313 KRS 389 19.26 062 € (.60 0.62
Additions - 1 83 126 095 4.04 1.04 - 1.04
Disposals - - - 042 0.42 - - -
At 31 March 2023 6.68 6.98 480 442 2288 1.66 *0.00 166
Additions - 343 235 394 9.74 0.50 - 0,50
Disposals - 0.05 - 102 1.07 - - -
At 31 March 2024 6.68 10.38 715 7.34 31.58 216 “ 0.00 2.16

Depreciation/amortisation

At 31 March 2022 0.5% 214 117 1.87 6.33 0.40 *0.00 40
Depreciation amoertization charge 0t 098 0.52 0.50 217 023 *000 023
Disposal - * 000 - 0.28 *028 - - -
At 31 March 2023 066 37z 1.69 205 822 063 *000
Depreciation amoniization charge 011 1.52 081 0.66 310 052 . 0.52
Disposal - 0.04 - 096 1.00 - - -
At 31 March 2024 0.77 520 250 1.85 10.32 1.15 *0.00 11§

Net block value:

AL 31 March 2023 602 326 311 2327 14.66 1.03 *0.00 1.03

At 31 March 2024 591 518 4.65 5.49 21,23 1.01 * 0.00 1.01

* Represents amount less than T 50.000
Note: Norevaluation of any class of asset is carried out during the vear.

11 (c) Right-of-use Assct

The details of the right-of-use asset held by the Group is as follows:

Office Premises

At 31 March 2022 318
Additions 089
Disposals -

At 31 March 2023 4.07
Additions 3.50
Disposals 1.539
At 31 March 2024 5.98

Depreciativn

At 31 March 2022 257
Additions 0.32
Disposals *0.00
At31 March 2023 284
Additions 0.67
Disposals 0.77
At 31 March 2024 2.79

Net Block Value;
At 31 March 2023
At 31 March 2024




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 3] MARCH 2024

(T in Crores)

11 (d) Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress includes borrowing costs related 0 development of building amounted to T 1.01 crores (3F March 2023: T 1.24 crores). Finance costs are

capitalised at MCLR + 1.15% p.a. - presently 10.30% p.a. for the year ended 31 March 2024,

Capital work-in-progress
At 31 March 2022 5204
Additions 5.62
Disposals R
At 31 March 2023 57.66
Additions 12.14
Disposals -
At 31 March 2024 69.80
Capital work in progress ageing schedule
Amount in CWIP for 2 period of

Capital work in progress . Lessthan1  1-2 vears 2-3years More than 3 Tetal

year years
As at 31 March 2024
Projects in propress 12.14 5.72 1.91 5003 $9.80
Projects temporarily suspended - - . . -
As at 31 March 2023
Projects in progress 372 1.91 1.81 48.22 57.66
Projects temporarily suspended - - - . -
Capital work in progress completion schedule for projects where completion is overdue

To be completed in

Capital work in progress Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3years  More than 3 Total

year years
As at 31 March 2024
MAS headquarters - - - 69.80 G980
As at 31 March 2023
MAS headquarters - - - 57.66 57.66
11 (e} Intangible assets under development -
Intangible assets under development
At 31 March 2022 0.04
Additions 53
Disposals 0.04
At 31 March 2013 0.33
Additions 0.24
Disposals 0.33
At 31 March 2024 0.24
Intangible assets under development ageing schedule

Amount in intangible assets under development for a
period of
Intangible assets under development Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 3

year years
As at 31 March 2024
Projects 1n progress 024 - - - 0.24
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023
Projects in progress 0.33 - - - 033
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 3 MARCH 2024

1% 1n Crores}

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 20623

12 Other non-financial assets

Prepaid expenses 1436 148
Advances to employees 0.19 013
Re-possessed assets 8.15 154
Balance with Governinent Authorities 239 1.67
Capital advances 03 0.02
Gratuity fund [refer note 40¢b)] 1.59 0.69
Other advances 1.28 083
Total . 28.00 11.34

13  Payables

{a) Trade payables
{z) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprses 0.03 0.13
(ii} rotal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 21.12 1455

(b} Other payables
(1) total outstandmy dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises - -
(11) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smal? enterpriscs 1.89 1.84

Total 23.04 1652

Trade Payables aging schedule

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years More than 3 Total
years

As at 31 March 2024

{1} MSME 003 - - 03
{11) Others 21.12 - - 2112
(11} Disputed dues - MSME - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - .

As at 31 March 2023

1y MSME 0.13 - - 0.13
tuy Others 1353 - - t4.33
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - - - -
{1v) Disputed dues - Others - - - -




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

(% in Crores)
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:

Based on and to the extent of the information received by the Group from the suppliers dunag the year regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the total cutstanding dues of Micro and $mall enterprises, which are outstanding for more than the stipulated
period and other disclosures as per the Micro, Small and Medium Eaterprises Development Act, 2006 (hereinafter referred 1o as “the MSMED Act™) are given below:

As at As at
31March 2024 31 March 2023

(a) Dues remaining unpaid to any supplier at the year end

- Poncipal - 013

- Interest on above - -
{b) Interest paid in tenns of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along with the amount of pavment made

to the supplier bevond the appointed day dunng the year

~ Pnncipal paid bevond the appointed date . -

- Interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMEI} Act . -
{c) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay on pavments made bevend the

apponted dav duning the year R .
(d) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
(e) Fucther interest due and payable even in the succeeding vears, until such date when (he interest

due as above are actually paid to the small enterprises - -

As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

14 Debt securities (at amortised cost) (refer note 14.1)

Secured non-convertible debentures 83125 31.25
Secured Market Linked debenturce 100.00 600 .00
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs {4.39) (3.99)
Total 626.86 627.26
Debt securities in India 626.86 62726
Debt seeurities outside India -

Total 626.86 627.20

15 Borrowings (other than debt securities) (at amortised cost)

(a) Term loans (refer note no. 15.1)
(i) from banks

-In Indian Rupees 3,544.32 3.170.77
-In Foreign Currency [refer note 43.3(b)] 602,18 -
(i5) from NHB 22.36 2853
(iii} from other parties (financial institutions) [,254.76 751.98
(b) Loans repavable on demand from banks-cash cradit-overdraft (Refer note below} - 2035
(<) Shert term loans from banks (Refer nate below) 1,114.50 1,304 43
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs (#1.24) (28.49)
Total 6,496.88 5,247.57
Secured 6,471.97 522270
Unsecured 24.91 24.87
Total 6,496.88 3,247.57
Borrowings in [ndia 6,496.88 524757

Borrowings outside India - -
Total 6,496.88 524757




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ASAT 31 MARCH 2624

(¥ in Crores)

16

Note:
For cash credit / Overdraft and short term loans

a) Cash credit / short term loans from banks are secured by hypothecation of movable assets of the Group and goods covered under hypothecation ("HP") agreements /
Loan cum HY agreements and book debts, recervables, loans and advances and entire portfolic outstanding (except specific portfolio generated from various term loans
sanctioned by various banks/financial institutions on an exclusive basis) and equitable mortgage/negative tien by deposit of title deeds on some of the Group's
immovable propertizs, as collaterat security. The leans are also guarantced by Mr. Kamiesh Chamarlal Gandhi, Mrs. Shweta Kamlesh Gandhi and Legal heirs of Late
Mr. Mukesh Chimanlal Gandhi. Overdraft loans are secured against fixed deposits placed.

b) Interast rate range
Interest rate ranges from 8.75 % p a. lo 10.85 % p.a. as ar 31 Margh 2024
Interest rate ranges from 4.00 % p.a. to 11.55 % p.a. as at 31 March 2023,

The Group has not defaulted in repayment of borrowings and interest.

The Group has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and the quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by
the Group with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the bocks of accounts of the Group.

The carying amount of financial assets which is hypothecated against all secured borrowing inelusive of margin requirement ranging from 1.10 times to 1.25 times is
amounting to T 7972 .01 crores (31 March 2623: ¥ 6631 .46 crores).

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Subordinated liabilities (at amortised cost)

Unsecured debentures (refer note no. 16.1) 310.00 260.00
Less: Unamortised borrowing costs (7.89) {7.30}
Total 302.11 252.70
Subordinated liabilities in India 30211 252.70
Subordinated liabilities outside Tndia . R

Total 302,11 23270




M AS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING FART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
(T in Crores)

14  Debt securities (at amortised cost) (Continued)

E4,1  Details of terms of redemption/repayment in respect of debt securities:

Asat Asaf
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Debentures .
500 rated, listed, redeemable, senior, secured. non-convertible 625 3125
debentures of T 10,00,000 each

10,000, secured, listed, rated, unsubordinated, redecinable, 100.00 -
transferable, non-convertible debentures 21,00,000 each

10000, rated, histed, senior, securcd, redeemable, taxable, 16000 -
transferable, nor-convertible debentures of 21,600,000 each

12,500, fully paid, senior, secured, listed, rated, taxable, 125.00 -
redeemable, transferable, non-convertible debentures

%1,00,000 each

20,000 rated, listed, senior, secured, redeemable, transferable, 200.00 -

Iaxable, non-convertible debentures of T1,00,000 each

Market Linked Debentures - 100,00
Marker Linked Debentures - 100.00
Market Linked Debennures - 100 09
Market Linked Debentures - 100.00
Market Linked Debentures - 106,00
Market Linked Deba.uums 100.00 100.60

Total debentures 631.25 631.25

Terms of redemption’ repayment Security

Coupon Rate: Benchmark Rate +173 bps Secured by a first  ranking
Coupon Payment frequency © Monthiy and on Hypothecation charge aver Assets
Maturity

Principal Payment frequency: Quarterty

Tenor : 2 years

Coupon Rate'Benchmark Rate +271 bps Secured by a first ranking
Coupon Payment frequency @ Quartyery and on Hypothecation charge over Assets
Maturity

Principal Payment frequency: Bullet Payment at

the end of the tenor

Tenor : 3 years

Coupon Rate Fixed Secured by a frst ranking
Coupon Payment frequency © Monthly and on Hypothecation charge aver Assets
Maturity

Prncipal Payment frequency. Bullet Payment at
the end of the tenor
Tenor : 1 year 6 months

Coupen Rale Benchmark Rate +266 bps Secured by a fust ranking
Coupon Payment frequency : Yearly and on Hypothecation charge over Assets
Matunty

Principal Payment frequency: Bullet Payment at

the end of the tenor

Tenor : 1 yaar 6 months

Coupon Rate: Benchmark rate Secured by & fiest  ranking
Coupon Payment frequency : Monthly anc on Hypothecation charge pver Assets
Malurity

Principal Payment frequency: Semf annualy

Tenor | 4 years

Coupon Rate: Market Linked Secured by a first ranking
Coupon Payment frequency : on Maturity Hypethecarion charge over Assets
Principal Payment freguency. Bullet Payment at

tha end of the tenor

Tenor : 2 Year and & Month

Coupon Rate: Market Linked Secured by a first ranking
Coupon Payment fraquency : on Maturity Hypothecation charge over Asseis
Principal Payment frequency: Bullet Payment at

the end of the tenor

Tenar : 2 Year and 1 day

Coupen Rate: Market Linked Secured by a fist ranking
Coupon Payment frequency : on Maturity Hypothecation charge over Assels
Frincipal Payment frequency: Bullet Payment at

the end of the tenor

Tenor: 2 Year ard 2 menths

Coupon Rate: Marxet Linked . Secured by a  first ranking
Coupon Payment frequency - on Maturity Hypothecation charge over Assets
Principal Payment frequency: Bullet Payment at

the and of the tencr

Tenor : 1 Year and 6 months

Caoupon Rate: Market Linked Secured by a first rankmg
Coupon Payment frequency : on Maturity Hypothecalion charge over Assets
Principal Payman! frequency: Builet Payment at

the end of the tenor

Tenor : 1 Year and 6 months

Coupon Rate: Market Linked Secured by a first ranking
Coupon Payment frequency : on Maturity Hypothecaticn charge over Assets
Principal Payment frequency: Builet Payment at

the end of the tenor

Tenor : 2 Year and 2 days

exclusive|

exclusive,

exclusive

exchusive

exclusive

exclusive

exclusive,

exchusive

exclusive

exclusive

exclusive!




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AS AT 3] MARCH 2023

(¥ 1n Crores)

Terms of redemption/ repayment Security

Repavable in 12 Quarterty mstallments from 38 June Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of]
2021 on standard receivables of the Borrower

Repayable m 12 Quarnterty instaliments from 31 March Exclusive charge by way of hypethecatien of]
2022 on standard receivables of the Borrower

Repayable n 20 Quarterly installments from 30 June Secured by a first ranking and exclusive|

2023, charge on standard receivables of the Holding
Company created out of the loan availed.
Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi
and Mrs. Shweta Gandhi,

Repayable in 20 Quarerly installments from 05 Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of]

November 2021, standard book debts/ receivables which are 10
be financed by the Holding Company out of
the bank finance. Personal Guarantee of Mr.
Kamiesh Gandhi and Mrs. Shweta Gandhi

Repavable in 12 Quarterly installments from 30 June Exclusive first charge on the specific loan

2022 portfolic of the Borrower &y way ol
hypothecation on the loan insialliments
receivabies. Personal Guaramee of Ar.
Kamlesh Gandhi and Mrs. Shweta Gandhi.

Repayable in 36 moathly installments from 01 May First Exclusive hypothecation charge en book

2022 debts created out of Bank Loan.

Repayable in 20 Quarterly insiallments from 3] March Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of]

2022, standard book debts/ receivables which are
financed! te be financed by the Holding
Company out of the proposed term foan 1o the
Holding: Compary.

Repayable in 33 monthly installments from 30 July Secured by a fisst and exclusive charge on

2021, specific receivables of the Holding Company
creared out of the loan availed

Repayable m 33 monthly mnsiallments from 30 July Secured by a first and exclusive charge on

2022 specific receivables of the Hoiding Company
created out of the koan availed .

Repayable in 86 monthly mstallmems from 7 April First and exclusive charge on land, property

2018, and comimercial property under construction.

from 7 Apnl Secured by a first and exclusive charge on
specific recenvables of the Holding Company

created out of the loan availed .

Repayable in 36 monthly mstaliments

2021,

Repayable in 36 monthly mstallments from 7 April Secured by a first and exclusive charge on

2021 specific receivables of the Holding Company
created oul of 1he oan availed

Repayable in 36 monthly installments from 7 April Sevured by a first and exclusive charge on

2021, specific receivables of the Holding Company
created out of the loan availed .

Repayable in 36 monthly insiallments from 7 August Secured by a first and exclusive charge on

2021 specific recenvables of the Holding Company
created out of the koan availed .

Repayable v 36 monthly instaliments from 7 August Secured by a first and exclusive charge on

20t specific receivables of the Holding Company
created out of the koan availed .

Repayable in 36 monthly instaliments from 7 August Secured by a first and exclusive charge on

2021, specific recenvables of the Holding Company

created out of the loan availed .
Repayable in 36 monthly installments from 7 January Secured by a first and exclusive charge on
2022 specific receivables of the Holding Company
crzated cul of the loan availed
Repayable m 36 monthly installments from 7 January Secured by a first and exciusive charze on
2022 specific receivables of the Holding Company
¢created out of the kan availed
Repayable n 36 monthly instalimenis from 7 January Secured by a first and exclusive charge on

3022 speaific receivables of the Holding Company
created out of the loan availed

Repayable in 36 monthly installments from 30 Apnl Secured by a first and exclusive charge on

2021 specific book debt and firture receivables of]

the Holding Company created’to be created
out of the loan availed .

15 Borrowings (other than debt securities) {at amortised cost) (Continted)
15.1  Details of terms of repayment in respect of term loans; (Continued)
Asg at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Term loans from Bank {Refer nate i)

Term Loan - 1 - 8.00
Term Loan - 2 25.00 5833
Term Loan - 3 27.9% 43.95
Term Lo - 4 74.99 105.00
Term Loan - 5 66.67 133.33
TermLoan - 6 4167 83.33
Term Loan - 7 50.09 7003
TermLoan - 8 - 2727
TermLean- 9 18.18 3636
Term Loan - 10 §.45 1224
Term Loan - {1 .34 258
Term Loan - 12 135 1032
TermLoan - 13 0.56 4.30
Term Loan - 14 1.14 340
Term Loan - 15 455 13,60
Term Loan - 15 LM 567
TermLoan - 17 2.13 445
Term Loan - 18 853 17.80
Term Loan - |9 155 742
Term Loan - 20 - 1333
Term Loan - 21 27.94 50.11

Repayable in 18 Quarterly instaliments from 30 Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation o

such of the book debts, which are financed / to
be financed by the Holding Company out of}
the bank finance. Personal Guarantee of Mr.
Kamlesh Gandhi and Mrs, Shweta Gandh:

December 2021.




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continuned)

AS AT 3 MARCH 2024

(¥ in Crores)

15  Borrowings (other than debt sccurities) {at amortised cost) {Continued)

151 Details of terms of repayment in respect of term loans: (Continued)

As al
31 Mawch 2024

Term Loan - 22 55,64
Term Loan - 23 20.60
Term Loan - 24 5.
Term Loan - 25 -

Term Loan - 26 -

Term Loan - 27 5.00
Term Loan - 28 21.53
Term Loan - 29 42.09
Term Loan - 30 164.93
Term Lean - 31 . 53.85
Term Loan - 32 97.50
Term Loan - 33 13333
Term Loan - 34 24.96
Term Loan - 35 1500
Term Loan - 36 5455
Term Lean - 37 19.07
Term Loan - 38 51.08
Term: Loan - 39 ' 34.72
Term Loan - 40 62,50
Term Loan - 41 112.50

As at
31 March 2023
7178

40.60

2498

2550

10.00

6599

6316

]

8462

127 50

20000

41.66

.
b
B8

7500

S

8335

000

§7.50

142 5G

Terms of redempiion/ repayment Security

Repavable n 18 Quarterly installmerts from 24 Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of]
September 2022 such of the dook debis, which are financed / 10
be financed by the Holding Company out off
the bank finance. Personal Guarantee of Mr.
Kamlesh Gandhi and bMrs. Shweta Gandh
Repayable o 10 Quanerly nstallments from 14 Exclusive charge by way of hypathocation of
December 2022 on standard recenables of the Borrower

Repayable w12 Quarterly nstallnents from 16 Exclusive charge by way of Hypothecation of]
December 2021 book debt racanvables ansng oul of bank
financial assets of the borrower

Repayable an Jo Quarterh instaliments from 30 Secured by Hypothecation of portfolio of the

September 2019 Holding Company created out of the lerm
joan. Personual Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhi, Mrs Shweta Gandhi

Repayable n 16 Quarterly installmemis from 29 Secwred by Hypolhecation of portfolio of the

February 2020. Helding Company created out of the rerm
loan Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamiesh
Gandhi, Mrs Shweta Gandh

Repayable m 16 Quartery inszallments from 26 June Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on

2021 book debis under standard assets portiolio of]
the borrower eligitle for Bank finance

Repavable in 18 Quarterly installments from 31 Exclusive charge by the way of hypothecation

Decembee 2020 on  specific receivables of the Holding
Comparry.  Personal  Guarantee  of  Mr.
Kamiesh Gandhi and Mrs. Shwets Gandly

Repayable n 19 Quarterty wnstaliments from 30 Exclusive chasge by 1he way of hypothecation

September 2021 on specific  receivables of the Holding
Company. Personal Guarantee of Mr
Kamlesh Gandh and Mrs. Shweta Gandin,

Repavable n 20 Quarterly insisliments from 3] March Exclusive charge by the way of bypothecalion

2022 on specific  receivables of the Holding
Company.  Personal Guarantee of Mr
Kamlesh Gandht and Mrs  Shweta Gandh

Repavable w13 Quanerly instaliments from 29 Exclusive charge on specific standard buok

cember 2027 debts and recevables which are financed 1o
be financed by the Holding Congany out of
the bantk finanke

Repasable 17 20 Quarerly mstallments from 30 Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of
September 2022, standard book debes/ receivables which are 10

be financed by the Holding Company oul of]
the bank finance Personal Guarantee of AMr.
Kamlesh Gandhi and Mrs. Shweta Ganchi

Repayable n 12 Quarterly msiallments from 30 hune Exclusive first charge on the specific loan

2023, ponfolioc of the Boffower by way of
hypothecanon  on  the loan nstaflimenis
receivables  Personal  Guaraniee of Ar
Kamlesh Gandhi and Mrs Shweta Gandhu

Repayablg in 36 monthiy installments from 30 October Exclusve charge on the specific standard

022 book debtsloan recenables of Holdng
Company

Repayable w12 Quarerly installments from 23 Exclusive first charge by way of hypothecation

December 2022 of recenvables created out of bank tinance

Repayable n 33 monthly installments from 31 July Secured by a first and exclusive charge on

2023 specific recervables of the Holding Compam
created out of the ban avaled

Repayable n 36 monthly installments from 7 June Secured by a first and exclusive charge on

dthad specific recenvablkes of 1he Heldng Company
<rzated out of the loan avatled

Repayable in 36 monthly installments from 7 October Secured by a first and exclusive charge on

2022 specific recenvables of the Holding Company
created out of the loan avauled

Repavable i 36 monthly installments from 7 May Secured by a fist and exclusive charge on

R{YAN] specific receivables of the Holding Compam
created out of the loan availed

Repayable w16 Quarterly installments from 31 Secured by exclusive charge on the book debi

Ducember 2022 and recervables of the Helding Comypany

Repayable in 20 Quarterly mnstallments flom 29 March Exclusive charge by way of hypathecation of
021 such of the book debis, which are financed 1o
be financed by the Holding Company our af]
the bank finance. Personal Guarantee of Alr
Kamlesh Gandhi and Mrs  Shweta Gandlu




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continited)
AN AT 3 AMARCH 2024

(¥ in Crores)

Borvowings (other than debt securitics) (at amortised cost) (Continued)

Details of terms of repayment in respect of term loans: (Continued)

As at As a Terms of redemption/ repayment Securnity
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Term Lean - 42 £8.78 9175 Repavable m 14 Quanterl wstaliments from 31 March Secured by excliusive charge on 1he book debr
2073 and receivables of the Holding Company

Term Loan - 43 120.00 150 00 Repayable m 20 Quanerly mstaliments from 31 May Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of
023 such of the book debis, which are financed / to

be financed by the Holding Company out o
the bank finence. Personal Guarantee of Mr.
Kamnlesh Gandha znd Mrs. Shweta Gandhi.

Term Loan - 44 41.64 7500 Repayable w12 Quarterly wstallments from 29 First & Exclusne charge by wmy  of]
September 2022 hypothecation on 1he Berrower's spectfic loan

receivables
Term Lean - 15 (refer nate below) 300.33 380Ul Repavable m 20 Quarterhv insiallments fzom 31 January Secured by Hypothecation of ponfolio of the,
201 Heoiding Company created out of the rerm

loan Personal Guarantee of Mr  Kamush
Gandhi, Mrs. Shwera Gandhi
Kotz * Out of the Above 2 300.33 crore outstanding as on 31 March 2024, T 23 29 exorc is in Indian Rupees and remaining amount of T 277.04 crore is m foreign currency

Texm Loan - 46 25.04 3000 Repayable i 30 monthly insiallments from 6 November Exclusive charge by way of lypothecahon of
2023 the specific receivableabook debt of the,

Holding Company
Term Loan - 47 16.00 2971 Repayable n 36 monihly mstallments from 29 July Secured by a frst and exclusive charge on
2622 specific book debt and future recesvables of]

the Holding Company createdio be created
oul of the loan availed .

Term Loan - 48 11.66 1833 Repavable in 12 Quanterdy mstaflmants from 31 March Secured by exclusive charge on the book dedt
2623 and recenvabies of the Holding Conpans
Term Loan - 49 14.17 2417 Repavable in 36 momhly wstallments from 235 Secured by first and exclusive charge on Book
September 2022 Debts’ Loan assets of the Holding Company
Term Loan - 50 12692 - Repayable » 13 Quarterly wmstallmerts from 20 Exclusive charge on specific standard book
December 2023 debts and seceivables which are financed « to
’ be financed by the Holding Compary out of]
the bank finance
Term Loan - 51 23.08 - Repayable in 13 Quarterty installments from i6 March Exclusive charge on specific standard book
2024 debis and receivables which are financed / 10
bz financed by the Holding Company out of
the bank finance
Term Loan - 52 170.00 - Repayable wn 20 Quarterly nstaliments from 30 Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of]
September 2073 srandard boob. debis recenables whuch are to

be financed by the Helding Company out of]
the bank finance. Personal Guarantee of Mr.
Kamlesh Gandhi and Mrs. Shweta Gandhu

Term Loan - 53 15.10 - Repayable in 36 monthly insialtments from 01 June First and Exclusive charge by Hypothecation
2023 af Book Debts

Term Loan - 54 5997 - Repayable is 20 Quanedy mstallments from 31 Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of]
Decemmber 2023 standard book debts/ receivables which are

financed” 10 be financed by the Holdmg
Company out of the proposed term loan 1o the

Holding Company
Tem Loan - 8% 2291 ~ Repavable in 12 Quanerly Installments from 28 March, Exclusrve charge on book debis by way of]
2024 hypothecation on specific standard recervables,
of the Holding Company
Term Loan - 56 50.00 - Repavable in 36 monihly nstallments from 23 April Exclusinve charge on the speafic standard
2024 book debtsfoan receivabies of Holding
Comparyy.
Termlean- 57 44.00 - Repayable w36 monthly installmenss from 7 May Secured by a first and exclusne charge on
2024 specific recenvables of the Holduy Company
created aut of the kban availed
Term Loan - 58 5486 - Repayable i 36 monthly installments from 7 February Secured by a first and exclusive charge on
2024 . specific receivables of the Holdny Company
created out of 1he loan avaled
Term Loan - 59 5284 - Repaabic in 36 monthly installoents from 7 October Secured by a first and exclusive charge on
2023, specific recenvables of the Holding Company
craated out of the koan availed
Term: Loan - 60 135.00 - Repavable w20 Quanterh mstallmenmts from 30 Exclusive charge by way of hypothecabon of]
November 2023 such of the book debis. which are financed i 1o

be financed by the Holding Company out of
the bank finance Personal Guarantee of M¢
Karnlesh Gandhi and Mrs. Shweia Ganahy

Term Loan - 61 67.50 - Repavable 1 20 Quanery wwiallmems from 28 Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of]
December 2023 such of the book debts. which are financed 7 10
be financed by the Holding Company gut oi
the bank finance. Personal Guar, [ Mr
Kamlesh Gandhi and Mrs ;&nﬁfgﬁm‘i\ L
i - -




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

{T in Crores)

15

15.1

Borrowings {other than debt securitics) (at amortised cost) (Continued)

Details of terms of repayment in respect of term loans: (Cantinaed}

As al As at
3t March 2024 31 March 2023
Term Loan - 62 71.28 -
Term Loan - 63 37.50
Term Loan - 64 41467 -
Term Loan - 65 TEG0 -
Term Loan - 66 {refer note below) 451,52 -

Nete - Out of the Above $451 52 crore outstanding, as on 51 March 2024, T 151,52 ¢crore 15 m Indian Rupees and remaining amount of 30G crore is in foreign curmency

TermLoan - 67 100.00 -
Term Loan - 68 83.30 -

Term Loan - 69 187,50 -

F'erm Loan - 70 - 500
Term Loan - 71 - 105
Term Loan - 72 - 039
Term Loart - 73 - 4.zl
Term Loan - 74 - 083
Term Loan - 75 2.48 456
Term Loan - 76 13.54 2133
Term Lean - 77 2.06 374

Terms of redemption/ repayment Security

Repayable in 20 Quarerly installments from 0% Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of]

Februan 2024 such of the book debts, which are financed : 1o

be financed by the Halding Company out of!
the bank finance. Personal Guarantee of Mr
Kamnkesh Gandhi and Mrs. Shweta Gandhu

Repayable w12 Quarterly installmemts from 10 Fist & Exclusive charpe by way ol

September 2023, hypothecanon on the Borrower's specific loan
receivables.

12 Quarterly Installments from 31 Hypothecation on the Specific unencunbered
secured standard loan receivales and book
debts of 1the Holding Company ansing from
Joans and advances.

Repayable
October 2073

Repivable n 36 monthly mstallmenrs fromn 3¢ July Secured by a first and exclusive charge on

2623 specific book debi and futwre recevables off
the Holding Company created:to be created
ow of the loan availed .

Repayable n 20 Quarterly nsiallments fiom 23 Secured by Hypothecanon of portfelio of the

Holding Company created our of the torm
kan  Personal Guarantee of Mr Kainlssh
Gandhi, Mrs Shweta Gandhi,

December 2023

Repayable m 36 monthly mstallments from 30 Apnl Secured by a first and exclisive charge on

2024 specific book debt and future receivables of
the Hoiding Company created’ic be created
out of the loan availed

Repayable in 12 Quarterly wstallmenis from 31 Exclusive charge by the way of hypothecation

December 2023 on spesific teccivables of the Halding
Company. Personal Guaraniee of Ay
Kambesh Gandht and Mrs Shweta Gandlu

Repavable m |6 Quanetly Installments frem 31 march, Exclusive  Fust  charge by way  of]

2024 hvpothecation  over  speicifc  Standard

recetvabies
Repavinent m 36 Monthly Instalinents from 03 Apnl The Term loan shall be secured by exclusive
2021 hypothecanon  of present & future boan
receivables of the MRHMFL created ouwt of]
the Wan Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
. Gandhi
Repayment in 24 Quarterty Instatments starting from Loan & secured by hypothecation charge onj
31 March 2017 ponfolic created form the bank finance
Personal Guarantee of Mz Kamlesh Gandhi &
legal hers of Late Mr Mukesh Gandhy

Repavment 1 24 Quanerly Instalments startog from Loan s secured by hypothecation charge on

Y starch 2007 portfolio created form the bank  finance
Persenal Guarantee of Mr Kamlesh Gandhu &
legai heirs of Late AMr. Mukesh Gandhi

Repayment m 24 Quarterly [nstahments starting ffom Loan s secured by Hypolhecation  on

30 June 2017 receivables.  Personal Guarantee of Mr
Kamlesh Gandhi & legal heirs of Late Mr
Mukesh Gandhi.

Repayment v 24 Quarterly Instalments starting frem Lean s secured by Hypothecation on

30 Jamie 2017 recesvables  Personal Guaranive of Mr
Kamlesh Gandhi & legal heirs of Lae Ar
Mukesh Gandhi.

Repavment in 57 Monthly Instalments siarting from 30 Loan is secured by Exclusive charge by way of]

QOctober 2620 hypothecanon of such of the book debts,
which are financed / 1o be financed b the
MRHMFL out of the bank finance o the
MRHMFL.  Personal  Guarantee of  Mr
Kamlesh Gandhi

Repayment i 60 Monthly Instalments stariing from 30 Loan is secured by Exclusive charge by way o

Juh 207t hypathezation of such of the book debis,
which are financed / 1o be financed by the
MRUMFL out of the bank finance 1o the
MRHMFL.  Personal Guarantge of Mr
Kamlesh Ganuthi.

Repayment i 24 Quarterly Instalments starung from The Loan 15 secured by Exclustve charge by

31 January 2019 way of hypothecation on sandard assets
portfoluy af recenables (excluding stressea
assets) Personal Guarantee of “r Kanilesh
Gandhi




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Centinued)

AS AT 2 NARCE 2024
1% in Crores)

15 Borrowings (other than debt securitics) (at amortised cost) (Continued)

15.1  Details of terms of repayment in respect of term loans: fConfinned)

As al Asat Terms of redemplion/ repayment Security
31 Maich 2024 31 March 2023
Term Loan - 73 122 2u6 Repmment in 24 Cuantech Instalments starurg [m The Loan is secured by Exclusive charge by
30 Seplember 2019 wah of hypothecalion on standard assels

portfolic of receivabies texcluding suressed
assets) Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh

Garud
‘Term Loan - 79 3469 535 Repmment i 23 Quarerh Instalments from 31 The Loan is secured by Exclusive charge b
December 202U way of hypothecation on slandand  assels

portfohe of receivables {exclwding suessed
mssets) Personal Guarantee of Mr  Kamiesh

Gandm
Term Loan - 80 £.84 997 Repavment in 24 Quarterh Instalments from 3¢ June The Loan 15 secured by Exclusive charge by
2021 wirv of hvpothecation on standard  assets

porfolic of recervables {excluding siressed
assets) Personal Guacantee of Mr  Kamlesh

Gandhi
Term Loan - 81 6,99 [1 10 Repmment in 26 Charterh instalments stang from Loan 15 secured i Hypothecation  on
25 Februan 1Y receivables  Personal  Guaraniee  of  Mr
Kamlesh Gandhi & Mrs Shwewa Gadin
Term Loan - 82 0.40 208 Repm ment m 24 Quanerty Instalments from 31 March The Teem loan shali be secured by first rankiny
2018 and exclusive charge on standard recers ables of

the MRHMFL {ident:Ged loan assetsy sullicient
10 provde one Lme secunty cover o the
outstanding amount of the lerm lean on 2
conlinuous basis. during the tenure of (e 1em
lows Personal Guaraniee of Mr. Kamlesh

Ganidhi
Term Loan - #3 - 1131 Repmment i 1% Quanterls nstalmenls from 30 Juse The Term loan shall be secured bn first ranking
219 and exclusive charge on standard receivables of]

the MRHMFL (identified Joan assels) sullicien
to provide securiv cover of the oculstanding
amount of the lerm loan on a continuous basis,
dunap the tenure of the term loan Personal
Guarontee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandin

Term Loan - 84 4.50 650 Repmment m 20 {uarterl Insialments from 23 Exclusive charge by wan of hvpothecation ol
Scptember 2021 book debts, which are financed: 10 be [inanced

by the MRHMFL out of the bank financed 1o

the MRHMFL Personal Guaramee of Mr

Kamlesh Gandhi.
Term Loan - K3 4.21 3200 Repmment i 10 Quaneds nsialments from 25 June Loan 15 secured by Exclusine charge by wan of]
22 hypothecation of such of the book debis. wiich

are finaced 7 w b¢ finmced by the MRHMFL
out of the bank finace 1o the MRHALFL
Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandh

Te:m Loan - 86 £.78 §21 Repm mentin 2% Quaner!y Instalments from 31 March Fust & Exclusive  Charge by wa  of
202z Hiypothecation of such of the book debts. which
are financed 1o be financed by the MRMMFL
oul of the bank Gnance Personal Guaraniee of
Mr. Kamiesh Gandhi
Term Loan - 87 700 9 Repavarent in 200 Quarterh Instalments from 22 Exclusive chasge by wav of by pothecauon of
Decamber 270007 boek debts. which are inanced: 1o be financed
by the MRHMFL out of the bank linanced 1o
the MRHMFL. Personai Guaranize of Mr
Kamlesh Gandhi
Term Loan - 82 19.63 2500 Repament in 48 Manthly [nstdments from 15 Apnl Fust Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation
2023 on the MRHMFL's present and fulwe foan
receivables. Personal  Guarmilee  of  Alr
Kamlesh Gandhi
Term Loan - 89 821 964 Repavment in 28 Quarterly Instaments from 8 March Fimt & Exclusive Chage by wxy ol
2u23 Hy pothecaiion of such of the book debts, which
are hinanced 10 be financed by the MRHMFL
out of the bank finance Pessonal Guaraites of]
Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi
Term Loan - 2407 - Exciusne charge th wan of hypothecaion of such Exchsive charge by way of hvputhecanon of]
book <debts . which we financed/to be financed By the such book debts , which are financedo be
compant owt of bank finance inanced bv the MRHMFE o of bank finance
Term Loan - 91 .46 - Repmment ¥4 monthl installments from 21 Exclusive charge by wan of by pothecauon ol
Januan 2024 specific loan recenabies’ book debls of the
MRHMFL
Term Loan - 72 9.00 - Regmment 20 Quarterly Tastaiments trem 27 Exclusne charge by wm of hypothecation ol
Drecember 2025 ook deblis. wiuch are financed’ to be linanced

by e company au of the bank [nanced Lo the
Compans Personal Cuacantee of Mr Kamiesh
Garndn




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CON

AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

(T in Crores)

OLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued}

Borrowings (other than debt securities) (at amortised cost} {Continned)

Details of terms of repayment in respect of term loans: (Continued)

As at
31 March 2024

Term Loan - 93 500
Term Loan <4 22.50
Term Loan - 95 9.73
Term Loan - %0 1515

Asal
31 March 2023

Terms of redeqipiion’ repay ment Security

Repmment in 6 joonthls instaliments from U7 Mxy First & Exelusive Hypothecation of book debis

uzd i recervables

Repmmen: n 20 Quanierh Istalments from 30 Exclusine charge on present and future book
November 2023 debts and recen ables

Repavment in 83 meonthly wnswlments from 30 Loan s secured by Exclusive charnge by way of
Januan 2023 hy pothecation of such of the book debts. whicn

are finonced / 10 be financed by the company
cw of the bank finance w0 te compamn
Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi

Repzvment in 40 Guarterhy Instalments from 30 April Loan is secured b Hypothecaon oo
2023 recervables.  Personal  Guarantee  of My
Kamlesh Gandhi & Mrs Shweta Gandhy

Note. Out of the Above T 23 {5 crore outslanding as on 31 March 2024 T 201 crere 15 n indsn Rupees and renaining amount of ¥ 23 14 crore 1s i foreign currency

Term Loan - 47 1339 - Repmmenl in 28 Quaterh lnsialmems from 30 The Term loan shalf be secured by Grst ranking
Seplember 2023 . and exclusive charge on standard recen ables o!
the Company (identified loan assels) suilicient
to provide secunty cover of the oulsianding
aroun of the 1erm loan on a continuows basis,
dunng the tenwe of the term Joan. Pessonal
Guaranlee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandh
Term Loan - 98 15.25 - Repan ment i 60 Manshly Instalments sianing frem 25 First and Exclusive Charge on book debtLox:
Septeniber 2023 Assets of the MRHMFL
Teial term boans from bunks 4.146.50 07T
Note (il: '
Interest rate rapges from 6.70% p.ato 11.70% p.aas at 31 March 2024
Interest rmte ranges fom B 65% pato 1} 90% p aas at 51 March 2023
Term lpans from NHB (Refer note ii}
Term Loan fram NHB - | 073 125 Repavmentin 39 Quarterh Instalivenis from 01 July Fust & Exclusive Hypothecanon of Specific
2017 Receivables of the MRHMFL. Personn
Guarantes of Mr Kamlesh Gandhi & legal heirs
of Late Mr. Mubesh Gandhy
Term Loaa fraom NEB - 2 1.04 145 Repmment in 3% Quarterh instalments from U1 Fist & Exclusne Hypothecanon of Specific
October 2017 Receivables of the MRHMFL  Personal
Guawantee of Mr Kamlesh Gandhi & legal heirs
of Late Mr. Mubiesh Gandhi.
Term Loan from KHB -3 1.12 .38 Repavmeni in 60 Quarterhs lostalments from U) First & Exclusive Hypothecation of Specific
October 2019 Receivables of the MRHMFL  Persenalf
Guaraniee of Mr Kamlesh Gandhu & legal heirs
of Late Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.
Term L.oan from NHE - 4 - ¢.10 Repament in 60 Quarterly Instolments fiom 0] Fist & Exclusine Hvpothecauon of $pecific
October 2019 Receivables of the MRHMFL.  Personal
Guaraniee of Mr Kamjesh Gandhu & tegal heirs
of Late Mr. Mukesh Gandhi
Term Loan from NHE - 5 1.96 235 Repament in ot Quanery Instalments from 04 Juby Farst & Exclusine Hypothecauon of $pecific
2020 Recevables ol the MRHMFL.  Persona
Cuarantee of Mr Kamlesh Gandh: & jegal heirs
of Laie Mr. Mukesh Gandhi
Term Loan [rom NHEB « 6 L8O 212 Repament 3% Quaderh Instiments from vl Farst & Exclusive Hypothecanon of Specific
October 2020 Receivables of the MRHMFL.  Persona
Guarantee of Mr Kamlesh Gandhi & legal heirs
of Laie Mr. Mukesh Gandhi.
Term Loan from NHB - 7 0.50 062 Repavment in 39 Quanerly Instalmems from 31 Julv Fist & Exclusive Hvpothecaon of Specific
2020 Receivables of the MRHMFL  Personal
Guaraniee of Mr. Kamiesh Gandhy & Llegal heirs
of Laie Mr. Muiash Gandhi
Term Lomn from WHB - & 048 .79 Repayment in 51 Quarterly Instalments from 0L July A first exclusive mongage and or a firsi]
2014 exclusive charge bv wm of hvpothecation ofl
such of the book debts, which are financed : 1w
e [inanced tn e MRHMFL. Corporme
Ciuarantee of MAS Financial Services Lig
Term Loan trom NHB - 4 4.76 632 Hepmmenl 27 Quaterh Insiaiments from 01 A first exclusine mongage ad o a Grel
Ociober 2022 exciusive charge by way of hs pothecaion of
such of the book debts, whuch are hnanced - 0
be financed by the MRHMFL  Personal
Churantee of Mr Kamlesh Gandhi
Term Loan from NHB - v 141 '3 Reppment an 36 Quanterh Listalments fom U1 A fist 2xclusne morgage and or a {inl
7 H*?”??ge Gelober 2022 exclusine charge by way of hypothegalion ol
Chamnerg. such of the book debis. which are financed + 1o

Keh.: Hacar,

AT

be finasced by the MRHMFL.  Personal
Guaraniee of Mr Kamnlesh Gandh




AIAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A8 AT 3T MARCH 2034

¥ in Crores)

15 Borrowings (other than debt securities) {at amortised cost) (Continued)

15.1 Details of terms of repayment in respect of term loans: {Continued)

Institunion - &

Term Loans rom a Financeal 3725
Institution - &

Term Loans from a Financial £0.00
Instilution - 7
Term Loans from a Financial 36,35
Institution - 8
Term Leans from a Financial TN
Institution - %
Term Loans from a Financial 78,70

Institution - 10

6203

120.00

50.00

115,00

139,10

As ar As ar Terms of redemplion/ repayment Security
3t March 2024 31 March 2023
Term Loan from NHB - 1t 4.38 500 Repavment m 27 Quarterh: Instalnents from 01 Juby A first exclusive mortgage and or a first
2023 sxclusive charge by way of hypothecation off
such of the book debts. which are financed * 1o
be finarced by the MRHMFL.  JPersonal
Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandh and Bank
Guarantee of 1CICI Bank Ltd.
Term Loan from NiHB - 12 3196 4,73 Repayment in 27 Quanerly Instalments from 01 July A first exclusive morigage and or a fist
2023 exclusive charge by way of hvpothecation of
such of the book debts, which are financed / 1o
be financed by the MRHMFL  Personal
Guaramee of Mr Kamlesh Gandhi and Bank
Guarantee of ICIC1 Bank Lid
Term Loan from NHB - 13 0.23 0.27 Repavment m 40 Quanerly Insialments from 01 July A first exchusive mongage and or 2 first
hvAR} exclusive charge by way of hyporhecanon at
such of the book debis, which are financed : o
be financed by the MRHMFL  Personal
Guarantee of Mr Kamiesh Gandhi and Bank
Cruarantes of ICIC! Bank Lid,
Total term Joans from NHB 2136 28.5)
Note {ii):
Interest rate ranges from 2 8672 p ato 3 60% p.aas at 31 March 2024
Interasy rate ranges from X 8620 pato 8 %0%e p 2 as at 31 March 2623
Term loans from others {Refer note iii)
Tarm Loans from a Financial - 8.50 Repayable in 36 monthly installmenis from 31 January Secured by exclusive first charge by way 051
Insttution - | 2021 ypothecancn of specific book debis of the
Holding Company created out of the loan
availed
Term Loans from a Financial - 5.33 Repayable in 36 monthly nstallmenis from 30 Apnl Secwred by exclusive first charge by way of]
tnstitution - 2 2021 hypothesation of specific book debts of the
Holding Company created out of the lpan
avaled
Term Loans from a Financial 25.00 2500 Bullel Repayment on 17 August 2026 NA
Institunion - 3
Term Loans from a Financial 833 25.00 Repavable in 35 monthly installments fom 31 October Secured by exclusive first charge by way of]
Institution - 4 2021 hypothecanon of specific book debts of the
Helding Company created out of the loan
availed
Term Loans from a Firancial 20.00 3333 Repavable m 12 Quarterly mstallments from § October Secured by exclusive charge on the book dett

2022 and recaivables of the Holding Company

Repavable m 3o monthly mstallments from 5 October Secured by exclusive first charge on the boan
2022 portfolio of the borrower by way  af
hypothecaton  on  the loan  installments
receivabizs created fom of the proceeds of

the Eacility
Repayable o 20 Quanterly msiallments fiom 30 June Extlusive charge by way of ypothecaton of]
2021 the speafic receivablesbook debis Liquid

collateral of 107 of the sanctioned amwount.

Repayable in [l Quanterly wstallments frem 10 July Secured by Exclusive first charge by way of
2023 hypothecation of book debis and recenvables
charged exclusive for the loan  Personal
Guarantee of Mr Kamlesh Gandhi, Mrs

Shweta Gardh
Repayable in 30 monthly instatlments from 10 January Secured by exclusive charge by wiy of
2073 Typothecatien on bock debts and recen ables

of the Hokding Company. Personal Guasantes
of Mr. Kamdesh Gandhi, Mrs. Shweta Gaudhi

Repayablz n 3! monthly installmems from 10 February Secwred by exclusive charge by way of]

2021 Ivpothecation on book debis and. reserabies
of the Helding Comparry. Personal Guarantes
of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi, Ms. Shmiﬁﬁ‘m(\




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 30 MARCH 2624

{T in Crores)

15 Borrowings {other than debt sccurities) (at amortised cost) {Continued)

151 Details of terms of repayment in respect of term loans: (Continued)

As at As ar Terms of redemption/ repayment Security
- 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Term Loans from a Financial 53.53 8505 Repayabie n Jo monthly installients from 10 October Secured by hypothecation of specific book
Institution - |1 2022 debrs created out of the loan availed

Term Loans from a Financial 11.88 - Repavable in 8 Quarterly installments from 31 March Secured by exclusive charge on the book debi
Instuunion - 12 2024 and receivables of 1he Holding Company
Term Loans from a Financial 66,67 - Repayable in 36 monthly installments from 5 October Secured by exclusive firss charge on the loan
Institution - 13 2023, portfulio of the borrower by way of

hpothecation on the kan nstaliments
recervables created from of the proceeds of

the Facility.
Term Leans from a Financaal 175.00 - Bullet Repayment on 1§ December 2026, Secured by Exclusive first charge by wav of
Institution - 14 hypothecanon of book debts and recen ables

charged exclusive for the loan  Fersonal
Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi, Ay

Shweta Gandhi
Term Loans from a Financial T.72 - Repayable n |1 quarterly instaliments from 01 Aprl, First and exclusive charge v way of]
Instituerion - 15 2024 Hyvpothecation on standard book debis
Term Loans from 2 Financial 5100 - Repayzble in 33 Monthly installments from 31 May Fist and exchsive charge by way ol
[nstnutien - 16 2024 Hypothecation on standard book debis
Term Loans from a Financial 45,09 - Repavable wn 36 Monthly instalimems from 05 Fust and exclusve charge by wav  of
Institution - 17 December 2023 Hypothecanon  over  the standard  loan
recevables
Term Loans from a Financial 7951 - Repavable in 33 monthly installiments from |0 March Secured by exclusive charge by way of
Institution - 18 2024 bypothecation on book debts and receivables

of the Holding Company. Personal Guarantee
of Mr Kamlesh Gandhi, Mrs. Shweta Gandhi

Term Loans from a Financial 100.00 - Repayable n 33 monthly installments from 10 June Secured by exclusive charge by way of]

Institutson - 19 2024 hypothecanon on book debis and receivables
of the Holding Company. Personal Guarantee
of Mr Kamlesh Gandhi, Mrs Shweta Gandhi

Term Loans from a Financial 118.00 - Repayable in 33 monthly insiallments from 10 June Secured by exclusive charge by way of

Institunon - 2 2024 hypothecanon on book debts and recenables
of the Holding Company. Personal Guarante:
of Mr. Kamlesh Gandhi, Mrs Shweta Gandin

Term Loans from a Financial - Repayment in 36 Monthly lastalments starting from 31 The Loan 15 secured by Exclusive first charge
Institution - 21 Januany 2021 on the loan partfolio of the Borrower by way
of hypothecaton on the loan insialmenis
recevablos created from the procecds of the
Facility. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh
Gandhy & fegal heirs of Late Mr Mukesh

LF]
1
=

Gandhy
Term Leans fiom a Finascial ’ 11.00 FS 00 Repasment in 6 Monthh Instalments starting from 15 Exclusive charge on specific loan assets - book
Institution - 22 Januare 2022 debts ot the MRHMFL assigned to TCFSL

Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamlesh Gandh,

Term Loans from a Financial 1195 1442 Repavment in 60 Monthly Lnstalments stanting from 01 Exclusive charge on kypothecation on specific

Instrtution - 23 Febroary 2023 receivahies to be mamtained at all times during
currency of ABFL loan

Term Loans from a Financial 393 464 Repayment in 84 Monthly Instalments staning from 1 Exclusive charge on ypothecation on specific

Institution - 24 November 2022 receivables to be maintained at all times during.
currency of SHFL loan

Term Loans from a Financial 8.21 9.64 Repayment in 84 Monthly lnstalments starting from1 61 Exclusive charge on hypothecation on specific

[nstitutien - 25 February 2023 recavabies te be maintained al all tmes durny
currency of SHFL loan

Term Loans from a Financial 8.21 @64 Repayment m 84 Monthly Instalinents staming from 01 Exclusive charge on hypothecarion on specific

Insirtunon - 16 Februan 2023 receivables to be mantaned ar all nmes dunny

currency of SHFL loan




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
847 3 MARCH 2024

1T Crores)

16

16.1

Borrowings (other than debt securities) (at amortised cost) (Continued)

Details of terms of repayment in respect of term loans: (Continued)

As at
31 March 2024

Terms of redemption/ repayment

31 March 2023

Term Loans from a Firanciat 1301 1774 Repavewent in 52 Monthly lnstalrents starting from 15
Institution - 27 October 2622

Term Loans from a Financial 47.50 Repayment in 60 Monthby Instalments starting from 035
Instiution - 28 Ianaury 2024

Term Leans from a Financial 893 Repayment in 84 Merthiy Instaiments starting from 31
Institution - 29 July 2023

Tatal term loans from athers 1254.76 75198

Note (iii):

Interesi rate ranges from 7.50% p.ato [§.90% p.a as at 31 March 2024
Interest rate ranges from 7 50%, pato 11 50% p.a asar 31 March 2023

Security

Exclusrve charge on specific loan assets . book
debts of the MRHMFL assigned 10 TCFSL .
Personal Guarantee of Mr. Kamilesh Gandh

First and exclusive charpe by wiy ol
hypothecation over the standard  foan
fecelvables

Exclusive charge on hypethecaiian on speaific
receivables o be maintained a1 all tinws during
currency of SHFL loan

Subordinated liabilities {(at amortised cost)

Details of terms of redemption/repayment in respect of subordinated liabilities:

As at Terms of redemption repayment Secarity
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Subordinated liabilities

50. 10 75% unsecurzd, rated, hsred, redeemable, 20.00 5000 Coupon Rate 10.75% pa

subordinated. taxable, transferable, non-convertible Coupon Pavment frequency  Monthly and on Matunty

debentures of T 100 lakhs each Prncipal Payvment frequency. Bullet Payment at the end
of the tenar NA
Tenor % vears and 7 months

500, 10.75% unlistad. subsrdinatsd, unsecured, redecmable, 50.00 00 Coupon Rate 10.75%:pa

non-convertible debeatures of 210 lakhs each Coupon Payment frequency  Monthly and on Matunty
Prncipal Payment frequency Bullet Payment at the end .
of the tenor NA
Tenor 6 vears

250, 19.75% unlsted, subordinated, unsecured, redeemable, 25.00 2500 Coupon Rare 1075% pa

non-convertible debentures of T 10 lakhs each Coupon Payment frequency . Monthly and on Matursty
Principal Paymen: frequency” Buller Pavment at the end
of the tenor NA
Tenor 5 years and 7 months

3500, 10.75% unlisted, subordinated. unsecured, redeemable, 35.00 3500 Coupon Rate. 10.75% p.a

non-coavertible debentures of 2 1 lakhs each Coupon Payment [requency . Moenthly and on Matunty
Principal Pasment frequency Buller Pavment at the end
of the 1enor NA.
Teror bt vears

5000, 10.75% unsecured, raed, hsted, redeemabla, .00 3000 Coupen Rate 10.75%:p.a

subordinated, taxable, transferable, non-convertible Coupon Payment frequency | Monthly and on Maturity

debentures of ¥ | lakhs each Principal Pavneni frequency” Buller Payment al the end
of the tenor NA
Tenor S vears and 7 months

S000, 10.75% unsecured, rated, hsted, redeemable, £0.00 S000 Coupon Rate 1375, pa

subordinated. taxable, transferable, non-convertible Coupen Pavment frequency  Monthly and on Matunty

debentures of T | lakhs 2ach Pringipal Pavrsen; Irequency Buller Pavment at the end
of the tenor NA
Tenor  * vears and ¥ months

5000, 10.73%, rated, Fsted, subordinal =d, unsecured, $0.00 - Coupon Rate 10.7%opa

redesmable, taxable, transferable, non-canveruble debenrures Coupon Payment frequency - Monthly and on Maturity

of T 1 lakhs each Prncipal Payment frequency. Bullet Payment ar the end
of the tenor NA
Tenor . 5 years and 7 months

Total subordinated liabiliries 310.00 260 00




JAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continue
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

(¥ in Crores)

Asat - As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
17 Other financial liabilities

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 32.07 70.55
Interest accrued but not due on others 0.07 0.08
Dues to the assignees towards collections from assigned receivables 181.66 213.21
Security deposits received from borrowers 1.33 1.92
Advances received against loan agreements 2,53 2.06
Unpaid dividend on equity shares 0.02 0.02
Dealer advances 7.12 513
Lease liability 3.38 1.28
Liabilities for expenses 8.13 -

Other payable 22.05 16.09
Total other financial liabilities 258.36 310.34

Note :
There are ne amounts that are due and remain unpaid to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at the close of the year,

18  Provisions

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 40)

Compensated absences 0.29 0.17
Provision for unspent CSR liahility 9.82 9.32
Total provisions 10.11 9.49

19  Other non-financial liabilities

Statutory remittances 4.90 3.60
Income received in advance 1.81 1.01

Total other non-financial liabilities 6.71 4.61




M AS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 3T MARCH 2024

(T in Crores}

20

20.1

202

Equity share capital

Authaorized shares:

20.00,00.000 Equiry Shares of T 16 each
{As at 31 March 2023: 6.40.00.000 Equity Shares of T 10 each)

- 0.01% Campulsortly Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of T 10 cach

(As at 31 March 2023: 2.20.00.000 0 01% Compulserity Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of T 10 each)

- [3.31% Compulsonily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of T 10 each

(As at 31 March 2023 2.20.00.000 13.31% Compulsorily Conventible Cumulative Preference Shares of T 10 each)

- 9.73% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of T 1.00.000 each

(As at 31 Macch 2023: 400 9.75% Compulsonly Convertible Cumulative Prefereice Shares of T 1.00,400 each)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares:

16,39.86,129 Equity Shares of T 10 each fully paid-up
(As a1 31 March 2023: 5,46.62,043 Equity Shares of T 10 each)

Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

200,00 64 40
- 2200
- 2200
- 4.06
200.60 112,00
163.99 5466
163.99 3166

Note

1. During the current year. pursuant o the approsal of shareholders ar the Exua Ordinary General Mecting held on February 09, 2024, the Authorized Share Capital of the
Holding Company compnsing of T 112,00,00,000:- (Rupees One Hundred and Twelve Crores Only) divided into 6,40,00,000 (Six Crores and Forty Lakh) Equity Shares of T
10 (Rupees Ten Only) each. 400 (Four Hundred) - 9.75% Compulsoniy Convertible Cumulanse Preference Shares of T 1,00.000 (Rupees One Lakh Only} each, 2.20,00,000
{Two Crore Twenty Lakh) 0.01{% Compulsonly Converiible Cumulative Preference Shares af T 10 (Rupees Ten Only) each and 2.20,00,006 {Two Crore Twenty Lakh) -
13 31% Compulsoniy Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares of T 10 (Rupees Ten Only) cach was reclassified into ¥ 112,00,00.000+ (Rupees One Hundred and Twehe
Crores Only} divided inte 11.20,60.000 {Eleven Crores and Twentv Lakh) Equitv Shares of T 10 {Rupees Ten Onlv) each.

2. During the cwrent year, pursuant to the apprenal of shargcholders at the Extra Ordinary General Mecting held on February 09, 2024, the Authorised share capital of the
Holding Company has been mereased from ¥ 112.00.00.000 - (Rupees One Hundred and Twelve Crores Only) divided into 11,20.00,000 (Eieven Crores and Twenty Lakh)
Equity Shares of T 10 (Rupees Ten Onlyy each 1o ¥ 200.00.00.000 - (Rupees Two Hundred Crores Only) divided into 20,00.00.000 (Twenty Crores) Equity Shares of T 10

tRupees Ten Onhy 1 each

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding ut the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Equity Shares

Quistanding at the bepmning of the year
Add: Bonus shares issued during the year
Qutstanding at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Nu, of Shares  (Tin Crores) No. of Shares  {¥in Crores)
5,46,62,043 54,66 546,62.043 54 .66
10,93,24,086 10932 - -
16,39,56,129 163.9% 5,46,62.043 54.60

Details of shares held by each sharcholder holding more than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Name of sharcholder

Equity shares

Shweta Kamlesh Gandiu

Mukesh C. Gandln {Refor note below)

Kamlesh €. Gandhi

Vigtra ITCL I L1d Business Excelleace Trust 1T India Business

As at 31 March 2024

Nurmber of
shares held

%o holding in
that class of

shares
4,90,15,350 219.89%
4,84,70,442 29.56%
1,90,21,524 11.60%
1,21,33,737 7.40%

As at 31 March 2623

Number of %a holding in
shares held that class of
shares
£.63.38.450 29.89%
161.56.814 29.56%
63,40.508 11.60%
40,44 579 7.40%

Note
Mr. Mukesh C. Gandhi has passed away on 19 January 2021,




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

(T in Crores)

20.3  The Holding Company has not allotied any share pursuant o contracts without pavinent being received in cash nor has it bought back any shares during the preceding period
of 5 financial years

20.4  Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Holding Company has one class of equity shares having 2 par value of T 10 per share. Each shareholder is cligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by
the Board of Direclors is subject 1o the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of inteim dividend. In the event of liquidation of
the Holding Company. the equity shareholders of the Holding Company will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Helding Company afer distribution of all
preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharsholding

20.5  Details of shares held by promoters tincluding promoter group) of the Company:

Promoter and promoter group name As at 31 March 2024 As ar 31 March 2023
Number of % holding in Number of % holding in % Change during
shares held that class of shares held that class of e current year
shares shares (23-24) #
Equity shares
Shweta Kamlesh Gandhi 4,20,15,350 29.89% 1.63.38,450 29.89% 200.00%
Mukesh €. Gandhi (Refer note below) 4,84,70,442 29.56% 16156814 29.56% 200.00%,
Kamiesh C. Gandhni 1,90,21,524 11.60% 63,40.308 11.60% 200.00%
Prarthana Marketing Private Limited 3952671 24 13.17.557 241% 200.00%
Anamaya Capital [ LP 2499982 0.18% 99,994 0.18% 200 00%
Dhvanil K. Gandhi 1,05.831 0.06% 35277 0.06% 200 00%
Dhoti K. Gandhi 36,162 0.02% 12,054 0.02% 200.60%

Note: Mr. Mukesh C. Gandhi has passed away on 19 January 2021.

# Duning the current year. pursuant to the approval of shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on February 09, 2024, the Holding Company has issued
10.93,24,086 (Ten Crore Ninety Three Lakh Twenty Four Thousand and Eighty Six) fully pard up Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each as Bonus Shares in the ratio of 2:1 (2 Bonus
shares for every 1 equity shares held on February 22, 2024 by uiilizing Secunities Premium Account. These Equily shares have been allated on February 24, 2023
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AN S 2 MARCH L0074

1T in Crores;

21

Other equity (refer note 21.1)

Reserve under section 45-FC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the "RBI Act, 1934")
Outstanding at the beginning of the year

Additions duning the vear

Outstanding at the end of the year

Equity component of compound financial instruments- eptionally convertible prefercnce shares

Quistanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Effect of changes in the Group’s interest
Outstanding at the end of the vear

Reserve Tund under section 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 ("NHB Act™)

Opening balance

a  Statulory reserve u's 29C of NHB Act

b Amount of special reserve w's 36{i¥viir) of Income-1ax Act. 1961 taken inte account for
the purposes ol statutory reserve u's 29C of NHB Act

¢, Total

Addition / appropriation / withdrawal during the year

Add.

a  Amount transferred w's 29C of the NHEB Act

b Amount of special reserve u's 36(iX viii) of Income-tax Act, 1961 taken into
account for the purposes of statutory reserve u.s 26C of NHB Act

Less:

a. Amount appropriated w's 29C of NHB Act

b Amount withdrawn from special reserve w's 36(1)Xviii) of Income-tax Act, 1961
1aken into account for the purposes of statutory reserve w's 29C of NHB Act

Add: Effect of changes in the Group's interest

a. Statutory reserve u's 29C of NHB Act

b. Amount of special reserve w's 36(1}vii) of Income-tax Act, 1961 taken
into account for the purposes of statulory reserve w's 29C of NHB Act

Closing balance

a. Statutory reserve ws 29C of NHB Act

b. Amount of special reserve ws 36(i)(viii} of Income-tax Act, 1961 taken into
account for the purposes of statutory resene uw's 29C of NHB Act

¢.  Total

Securitics premium

Qutstanding at the beginning of the vear

Deductions during the yvear (On issue of bonus shares)
QOutstanding at the end of the year

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

252.10 21191
49.55 4019
301.65 252110
0.1 011
0.01 -
0.12 0.1
0.60 0.27
5.27 443
5.87 £.70
0.36 0.33
0.5 0.84
0.01
0.10 -
0.97 0.60
6.22 5.27
7.19 5.87
426.95 426.95
{109.32) -
317.63 42695



MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

1% 1n Crores)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
21 Other equity (Continued)}
Retained carnings
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 679.63 537.08
Profit for the year 251.05 203.26
Effect of changes in the Group's interest (2.28) R
Item of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
On defined benefit plan {0.38) 0.4
928.02 740,39
Appropriations’
Transfer to reserve under section 43-1C of the RBI Act,1934 (49.55) {40.19)
Reserve w's. 29C of NHB Act and special reserve w/s 36( 1 {{viii) of Income-tax Act, 1961 (1.21) (1.16)
Final dividend on equity shares (10.11) (9.57)
Interim dividend on equity shares {16.40) (9.81)
Total appropriations (77.27) (6076
Retained earnings 850.75 67963
Other comprehensive income
Outstanding at the beginning of the vear 99.33 11430
Loans and advances through other comprehensive Income 20.06 {25.24)
Impairment on loans and advances through OCl 27.01 3.72
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (5.05) 6.35
Effect of changes m the Group's interest 0.03 -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of 1ax 141.38 9933
Tetal other equity 1,618.72 1463949

21.i  Nature and purpose of reserve

1 Reserve u/s. 45IC of the RBL Act, 1934

Reserve u's. 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934 is created in accordance with section 45 1C{1) of the RBI Act, 1934, As per Section 45 IC(2) of the RBI Act, 1934, no
appropriation of any sum from this reserve fund shall be made by the NBFC except for the purpose as may be specified by RBL

2 Reserve fund u/s. 29C of NHB Act

Special reserve has been ereated in terms of section 36(1) tviii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 out of the distributable profits of the subsidiary company. As per
section 29C of NHB Act. the subsidiary company is required (o transfer ut least 20% of us net prodits prior 1o distribution of dividend every year 10 a resenv e
For this purpese any special resenve created by the subsidiary company in 1ems of section 36( 1) 1viii) of the Income-tax Act, 191 is considered an eligible
transfer.

3 Equity component of compound financial instruments - pptionally convertible preference shares

Equity component of compound financial instruments represents equity component ot OCPS of subsidiary company,

4 Securitics premium

Secunties premium reserve is used to record the premium on issuz of shares The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with the
pronisions of section 32 the Act




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AS AT 31 MARCH 20624

(¥ in Crores)

21 Other equity (Continued)
21.1  Nature and purpose of reserve {Continued)

5 Retained earnings

Retained garnings is the accumulated available profit of the Group carried forward trom earlier vears. These reserve are free reserves which can be utilised for
any purpose as may be required.

The Group recognises change on account of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabitity (asset) as part of retained eamings with separate disclosure,
which comprises of

1} actuarial gains and losses;
1) return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined bencfit liability {asset}, and
iit) 2wy change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability {asset).

6 Other comprehensive income

On equity investments

The Helding Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of tnvestments in equity securities in OCI These changes are accumulated within the
FVOC! equity investments reserve within equity. The Group transfers amounts from these reserves to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are
derecognised.

On loans and advances

The Group recognises changes in the fair value of loans and advances in OCI These changes are accumulated within the FVOCI - loans and advances tescrve
within equity. The Group wansfers amounts from these reserves to retained eamings when the loans and advances are sold, Further, impairment loss
allowances on 1he loans measured at FVOCT are recognised in OCIL.

21.2  Equity dividend pzid and propased

31 March 2024 31 March 20733
Declared ard paid during the year (Pre-Bonus)
Dividends on equity shares:
Final dividend for 3} March 2023: T 1.85 per share (31 March 2022: ¥ 1.75 per share} 10.11 .57
Interim dividend for 31 March 2024: ¥ 3.00 per share (31 March 2023 - ¥ 1 80 per share) 16.40 9.84
Total dividend paid 26.51 19.41
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Proposed for approval at Annual General Meeting (not recognised as a habtly}
Dividend on equity shares
Final dividend for 31 March 2024: ¥ 0 51 per share (31 March 2023 % 1.85 per share) 8.36 1011

Note : During the F.Y 2023-24 Holding Company has paid the interim dividend of T 3.00 per share - pre bonus - (¥ | ex-bonus). Additionally, the Bouard has
proposed the final dividend @ 5.10% ve. T 0.51 per share subject to the approval of the Members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(% in Crores)

22  Interest income

Interest on loans
Interest income trom investments
[nterest on deposits with banks

Other interest income

Totai

Year ¢nded 31 March 2024

Year ended 31 March 2023

On Financial assets Oun Financial assets Total On financial assets  On financial assets Tatal
measured at FVOCI measured at measured at FYQCI measured at
Amortised Cost amortised cost
891.30 45.84 937.14 700.96 22.92 723.88
- 76.80 76.80 - 50.37 50.37
- 57.42 57.42 39.46 19.46
5.55 0.18 5.73 3.0 16.64 20.33
896.85 180.24 1,077.09 704,65 129,39 834.04




MAS FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(% in Crores)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

23 Net Gain on Fair Value Changes

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss - Investments 13.27 219

Fair value changes:

- Realised 10.79 19.36

- Unrealised 2.48 2.83

Total 13.27 2219
24 Other income

Net gainf{loss) on derecognition of property. plant and equipment 0.04 0.10

Net gain on sale of investments measured at amortized cost 4.84 1.35

Gain on derecognition of leased asset 0.04 -

Gain on foreign curreney transactions 0.06 -

Income from non-financing activity 1.54 0.98

Total 6.52 2.43
25  Finance cost

{On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost)

Interest on borrowings 533.60 368.19

Interest on debt securities 52.29 51.76

Interest on subordinated liabilities 29.55 14.70

Other interest expense 0.11 36.03

Other borrowing cost 30.94 25.23

Lease liability interest obligation 0.22 0.10

Total 646.71 496.01
26 Impairment on financial assets

Loans

- Expected credit loss {On financial instruments measured at FVOCT) 27.52 417

- Expected credit loss (On financizal instruments measured at amortised cost} (0.51) {0.83)

- Write off {net of recoveries) 48.16 42.93

- Loss on repossessed asscts 15.50 740

Investments

- Expected credit [oss (On financial instruments measured at amertised cost} (0.06) (0.31)

Total 90.61 53.36
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(T in Crores)

27

28

29

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident fund and other funds (Refer note 40 (a)}
Gratuity expense (Refer note 40 (b))

Staff welfare expenscs

Total

Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Depreciation on property. plant and equipmen
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation on Right-of-use asset

Total

Other expenses

Rent
Rates and taxes
Stationery and printing
Telephone
Electricity
Postage and courier
[nsurance
Conveyance
Travelling
Repairs and maintenance:

Building

Others
Professtonal fees
Payment to auditors (refer note below)
Director's sitting fees
Legal expenses
Bank charges
Advertisement expenses
Sales promotion expenses
Recovery contract charges
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (Refer note 34)
Credit guarantec fees
Misceilaneous expenses

Total

Note: Payment to auditors

As auditor

Statutory gudit

Limited review of quarterly results
Other services

Ycar ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

94,41 63.36
298 223
0.75 0.73
P | 2.38

10045 70.70
3.10 217
0.52 0.23
0.67 0.32
4.29 2.72
4.70 3185
0.26 022
1.39 0.99
0.87 .69
1.46 1.03
142 .01
1.18 0.92
2.12 1.43
405 3.17
0.3 0.58
1.16 1.23

11.36 802
0.59 0.48
0.45 0.14
2.19 1.87
292 1.49
1.84 122
0.49 0.6l
0.46 055
4.58 4.34
6.76 212
4.59 2.60

53.15 3838
0.25 021
6.31 026
0.03 0.01
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30

30.1

30.2

Tax expenses

The components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are:

Current tax
Short / (Excess) provision for tax relating to prior years
Deferred tax

Total tax charge

Current tax
Deferred tax

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

83.06 67.23
W0.2n 247
2.81 P GT
85,66 05.83
82.85 o4, 7
2.81 1.07

Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The tax charge shown m the statement of profit and loss differs from the 1ax charge that would apply if all profits had been charged at India
corporate tax raie. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplicd by India’s domestic tax rate for the vears

ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 is, as follows:

Accounting profit before tax

Appheable tax rate

Computed tax expense

Fax effect of :

Exemptad income

Addtional deduction

Non deductible items

Short / (Excess) provision for tax relaling to pricr years
Others

Tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Effective tax rate

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

339.67 27163
25.168% 25.168%
85.49 68.37
(0.32) 10.30)
(0.32) {232}
1.16 1.28
0.2 (247
0.14) (0.73)
85.66 65.83
25.22% 24.23%

Deferred tax

Deferred tax asser / liability (ner)

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

At the start of the vear DTA 7 (DTL) (net)
Credit / (charge) for loans and advances through OCI
Credit / (charge} for remeasurement of the defined benefit liabilitics

Credit / (charge) to the stateinent of profit and loss

Al the end of year DTA / (DTL)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

19.33 14.21
(4.80) 6.1
0.13 £0.62)
(2.81) (1.07)
11.35 19.33
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30  Tax expenses (Continued)
30.2 Deferred tax (Continued)

The follewing table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the income tax expense:

As at Statement of profit and ocr As at
31 March 2023 loss 31 Murch 2024
Component of deferred tax asset / (liability)
Defersed tax asset / (liability) in relation to:
Difference between wnitten down value of fixed assets as per books of (0.46) [ORES - {G.60)
accounts and meome tax
Deferred tax on fair value of invesiments {0.01y {0.62} _ . (0.63)
Impact of fair value of asses i3 .02 {4.30) 0.35
Income taxable on realised basis {8.64) M1 - (12.75)
Deferred tax on prepaid finance charges {3.94) {5.18) - {9.12)
Impainment on financial assets 2732 6.78 - 34.10
Recopnition of kase asset and right o use asser 003 0.02 - 0.05
Expenses allowablz on payiment basis (0. 10y 042 013 045
Total 19.33 (2.81) (4.67) 1185
As at Statement of profit and ocCi As at
31 March 2022 loss 31 March 2023
Component of deferred tax asset / (liability)
Dreferred tax asset / (Lability) in relation to:
Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per books of (0,39} (0.07} - (016
aceounts and income tax
Deferred 1ax on fair value ofinvestiments (0.01) - - oty
Impact of fair value of assets 11.06) {0.02) 621 513
Income taxable on realised basis {1281} 217 - (%.04)
Deferred tax on prepaid finance charges {316} (3.78) - {3.594)
Impaintent on financial assets 26.56 0.76 - 27.32
Recognition of lease asset and right to use asset u.02 0.01 - .03
Expenses allowable on payinent basis .06 {0.14} (0.02) {0.10)
Total 14.21 (1.07) 6.19 19.33
30.3 Curreat tax liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for tax [net of advance tax of ¥ 78 51 crores (31 March 2023; T45.17 crores)] 4.70 206
30.4 Income tax assets
As ar As ar
31 March 2024 31 March 2623

Income 1ax assets [net of provision for tax of T 2.52 crores {31 March 2023: 2 2 52 crores)) 2.52 252
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31

Yecar ended
31 Mareh 2024

Earnings per share
(A) Basic earnings per share

Computation of profit (numerator)

Net profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Holding Company {basic) 251.05
Weighted average number of equity shares of T 10 each 16,39,86,129
Basic earnings per share of face value of 10 each (in 3) 15.31

(B) Diluted earnings per share

Net profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Holding Company (diluted) : 251.05
Weighted average number of equity shares of T 10 each 16,39,86,129
Diluted earnings per share of face valuc of T 10 ¢ach (in T} 15.31

Year ended
31 March 2023

203.26
16,39.86.129
12.39

203.26

16.39.86.129
12.39

Note : The basic and diluted earnings per share have been computed for previous vear on the basis of the adjusted number of equity shares

in accordance with bonus issue of shares.
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32 Revenue from contracts with customers

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with cusiomers and reconciliation to statement of profit and loss:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Type of income

Services charges 021 U 08

Others 66.68 51.47

Total revenue from contracts with customers 66.89 51.55

Geographical markers

[ndia 66.89 51.55

Cutside India - -

Total revenue from contraces with customers 66.39 SL35

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time 66.89 5158

Services transterred over time - -

Total revenue from contracts with customers 66.89 51.55

33 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(A) Contingent liabilities &.12 G112

I} In respect of disputed inconwe-tax matters

(B) Commirments

1y Estimated amncunt of contracts rewcaining 10 be executed on capital account and not provided for:

Property, plant & equipment and Capital work in progress 0.12 1.39

11) Loan coimmitinents for sanctioned but not disbursed amount 22.25 13.19

i) After adjusting the amount of refind claimed by the gronp amounting ¥ 0.33 Crore.

i} The Ciroup's pending litigations comprise of procesdings pending with Income Tax and other authorities. The Group has reviewed ail its pending hitigations and
proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the continpent liabilities where applicable, in s financial statements. The amount
of provisions / contingent liabilities is based on manayemen?'s estimate. and no signiticant liability is expected 1o arise oul of the same.

34 Corporate social responsibility ("CSR") expenses:

The average profit before tax of the Group for the last three financial years was T 22012

activities for the current financial year (31 March 2023 T4.54 crores).

a}  Amgunt spent during the vear on:

crores. basis which the Group was required 1o spend T 4.58 crores towards CSR

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Ameunt Spent Amount Unpaid Total Amount Spent  Amount Unpaid/ Total
provision provision
Construztion / acquisiion of any assel - - - - - -
On purpose other than (1) above 0.49 4.09 1.58 036 398 4.34

b)  The Group has not made any 1ransaction with related parties in relation to CSR expenditure as per Ind AS 24

¢} lncase of Scction 135(6): Details of engoing projects

Opening balance Amount required to Amount spent Closing Balance
be spent during the during the year

F.Y. With Group In Separate year From Group's From With Group in Separate CSR

CSR bank Ale Separate CSR Unspeal Alc

Unspent A/c Unspent Afc

2023-24 - 9.32 4.58 0.49 3.60 4.09 &M
2022-23 - 6.9l 434 0.36 1.57 398 5.3
2021-22 - 383 441 042 092 3.9% 292
2021-22 il NAL 4.18 034 - 3.84 -
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Confinued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

1T in Crores:
Note: Unspent CSR amount of T 5.98 crores for FY 2022-23 was deposited in wispent CSR bank account on 27 Aprl 2023 Unspent amount of T 4.09 crores available with 1he
Group 18 transferred 10 an unspent CSR aceount on 29 April 2024

di  Reason for shordfull : The Group has ongoing projects and it s spending the said amount as per pre-approved onpoing projects For mere details. reler anneswe of
Director’s cepon on CSR.

e} Nature of CSR activities: Promoting education, eradicating hunger, poverty & malautrition. promoting health care and such other activities. For moere details, refer anneaure
of Director's report on CSR.

35 Segment reporting:

Uperaing segment are components of the Group whose operating, results ase regulacly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM”) to make decisions abou:
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial itformation 1s available

The Group is engaged prunarily on the business of Financing' only. taking o account the risks aud refurns, the organization structure and the intemal reporting systens. All the
operations of the Group are in India. All non-current assets of the Group are located in India Accordingly. there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 1U5 —
‘Operating, Segments

36  Related party disclosures:
(a} Related party disclosures as required by Tnd AS 24 - 'Related Panty Disclosures'

List of related partivs and relationships:

Sr. Nature of Relaticnship

No.

I Key management persornel ("KMP™) Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandhi (Chairman and managmg director)

(where there are transactions) Mrs. Darshana §. Pandya (Director and chief executive officer’

M. Balabhaskaran Nax (Independent director) (retised w e £31 March 2024)
Mr Umesh Shah (Independent directar)
Mr. Chetanbhai Shah (Independent director) (retired w.e.£ 31 March 2024}
Mr. Naravanan Sadaoandan (appeinted w e £ 21 June 2023)
Mrs. Daksha Shah 1 Independenr director)

[

Other related parties Prarthna Markehng Penvie Limited
(where there are Iransactions) Anamayva Capitat LLP
Mr. Kamlesh C. Gandlu t As Execator of will of Late Mr. Mukesh C Gandhi, relative of KAP)
Ars. Shweta K. Gandtu {relative of KAP)
Mr. Dhvanil K. Gandhi (relatve of KNP)
Mr. Sawnil D. Pandya (elative of KA
Ms. Dhnts K. Gandhi (1elative of KMP)
Umesh Rajamkant Shab HUF (refative of KAPS
Paurav: Umesh Shah (relatve of KNPy

Transactions with related parties are as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2024

Key management QOther related Tutal
personnel parties
Remune:ation (including bonus) 732 1.22 .54
Dividend paid 310 16.51 19.01
Interest on Loan Received .01 - 001
Sittung fees 0.41 - .41

Year ended 31 March 2023

Key management Other related Total
personnel parties !
Remuaeration (includmg boaus) 587 0.95 8.9
Divadend paid 227 1209 1150
Interest on f.oan Received 0.02 - vl
Sunny fees 012 - Ll
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1T in Crores;

Balances outstanding from related parties are as follows:

As at 31 March 2024

Key management  Qther related Total
personael parties
0.3% 0.03 v.42

Bonus pavablc

As at 31 March 2023

Key management Other related Total
persenne] parties
Loans and advances given 0.15 B 0.13
031 003 0.54

Bonus payable

All transactions with these relared parties are priced on an arm’s lengtl basis. None of the balances are secured.

Key managenal personnel who are under the employment of the Group are entitled to post employment benefits and other employee benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 -
Empioyee Benefits in the financial statements,

Compensation to key manag personnel are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Shont-term employee benefits 7.19 574
Post-eimployment benefits 0.02 0.02
Other long tenm emplovment benefits 0.01 {0.0h)
7.22 375

The remuneration of key management personnel are determined by the nomination and remuneration comminee having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

37 Offsetting

Following table represents the recogrised financial asscts that are offset, or subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and other similar arrangeiments but not offset, as
at 31 March 2024 & 31 March 2023, The cohunn 'net amount” shows the impact of Group's balance sheet if all the set-off nghts were exercised.

Effect of offsetting on the balance sheet Related amount not offsct
Gross amounts Gross amount Net amount Financial Net amount
offset in balance presented in instrument
sheer (refer note balance sheet collateral (refer
1} note 1)

31 March 2024
Loans and advances 7.732.87 13.43 11944 1,40 7,718.04
31 March 2023
Loans and advances 6.256 20 9.96 6,246 24 2.00 6.234.24
Note:

1 %1343 erores (31 March 2023: T 996 crores) represents advances received against loan apregments

2 T 140 crores (31 March 2023: 2.00 crores) represents securily deposits received from borrow ers
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38  Additional information as required by

As at 31 March 2024

Paragraph 2 of the general instructions for preparation of the consolidated financial statements to schedule ILI to the Act.

Name of entity in the Group

Net mysets, Le., total assets minus tutal

Share of profit or loss

Share of other comprehensive

Shnre of Total Comprehensive

liabilities income (QCI) Income (TCh)
As % of Anmount As % of Amount As Yo of Amount As % of Amaunt
consolidated net consolidated profis consalidated OC1 consolidated TCI
assets or loss
Hulding Company
A AS Vinancial Services Limited 100.56% 1,828.51 96.94% 246,24 113.38% 15.76 97.80% 162.00
Subsidinry
AAS Rural Housing & Morpage Finance Lunited 4.11% 74.81 1.91% 4.86 {R.03%0) {1.13) 1.39% 373
MASIFIN fnswrance Broking Privale Limited (6.63%) (120.61) (0.02%) (0.0%) 0,00% - {0.02%) (0.05)
Non-controtling interest L97% 35.86 1L.17% 2.96 (5.25%) (IL73) 0.83% .23
Total TOHLH % LEI18.57 100,001, 254.01 10,302, 1390 1000 % 26791
Asat 31 Marcl 2023
Nume of entity in the Group Net assets, 1.¢., tolal asscls mmus total Share of profit o loss Share of other comprehensive Share ef Tolal Comprehensive
liabilities income (O Income (TCT)
As % of consolidated Amount As % of consalidated Amount As % of consalidated Amount As % of consolidated Amount
net asses profit or loss o:q] TCl

Holding Company
M A% Financial Services Limited 94.47% 1,459 21 96.32% 198.22 108 59% (192.45) 95.40% 178.77
Subsidiary
A A% Ruwal Housing & Mortgage Finance Limited 3.82% 58.96 2.45% 5.05 331%) 0.6l 3.02% 566
MASFIN Insurance Rroking Privare Limited 0.03% 0.48 (0.01%) (0.01} 0.06% - (0.01%) 1noly
Non-controlling intercst 1.68% 26.02 1.24% 250 {2.28%) 42 1.59% 298
Total 100.00% 1,544 67 100.00% 205.82 1680 00% (18.42)

100.00% 7 2 &i oo,
. s
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39  Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Within 12 months  After 12 months Total Within 12 months  After 12 months Total
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 212.67 - 212.67 238.67 - 23807
Bank balance other than above 641.75 2408 665.93 88.80 47649 36529
Trade Receivables 6.54 - 6.54 430 - 4.30
Loans 4.470. 10 324934 7,7E9.44 3,666.30 2,579.94 6.246.24
Investments 509.21 216.95 726.16 48988 301.t6 791.04
Other financial assets 5532 23.54 78.86 46.68 14.95 61.63
Non-financial assets
[ncome tax assets {net) . 1.52 252 - 2.52 232
Deferred tax Assets (net) - 11.8% 11.85 - 19.32 1933
Property, plant and equipment - 21.23 21.23 - 14.66 14 66
Capital work-in-progress - 69.80 69.80 - 57.66 37.66
Right-of-use asset 0.86 233 319 0.43 075 1.18
Intangible assets under - 0.24 024 - 0.33 033
development
Other [ntangible assets . 1.01 1.01 - 1.03 103
Other non-financial assets 27.96 .04 28.00 11.34 - 1134
Total assets 592441 3,622.93 9.547.34 4,546.40 3,468.82 8,015.22
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade pavubles 21.t5 - 2115 1468 - 14 68
Other pavables 1.89 - 189 1384 - I.84
Debt securities 105.71 521.15 626.86 522.26 105.00 627.26
Borrowings (other than delt 3,158.41 3.338.47 6,496.88 2,726.34 2,521.23 524757
securities}
Subordinated liabilities - 302.11 302.11 - 252.70 25270
Other financial liakdlities 153.26 LAY 2138.36 306 G2 4.32 310.34
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 4,70 - 4.70 2.06 - 2.06
Provisions 4.90 0.2 10.11 937 0.12 949
Other non-Mnancial lzabilities 6.71 - 6.71 .61 - 161
Total lability 3,561.73 4,167.04 772877 3,587.18 2,883.37 6,470,585
Net 2,362.68 (344.11) LBIg.57 959.22 585.45 L3467
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40

Employee benefit plan

Disclosure 1n respect of employee benefits under Ind AS 19 - Emplovee Benefit are as under:

(a)

(b)

Defined contribution plan

The Group’s contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considercd as defined contribution plans. The Group's contmibution to
provident fund aggregating ¥ 2.62 Crere (31 March 2023: ¥ 1.92 Crore) and cmployee state insurance scheme agprepaling ¥ 0.13 Crore (31 March 2023: T 0.13
Crore) has been recognised in the statement of prefit and loss under the head emgployec benefits gxpense,

Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity )

The Group operates a defined benefit plan (the "gratuity plan®) covering eligible employees. The gratuity plan is govemned by the Paviment of Gratuity Act, 1972
Under the act, employce who has compteted five years of sernvice is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of
service and salany at rerirement age / resignation date.

The defined benefit plins cxpose the Group to risks such as actuaria? risk, investment risk. liquidity nisk, market risk, legislative risk. These are discussed as follows:

Actuarial risk: [t is the sk that benefits will cost inore than expected. This can anse due to one of the following reasons:

Adverse salary prowth experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salarv escalation will result into an increase in obligation at a rate tha is higher
than expecied.

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mornality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate asswmption than the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected.
Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the
assumed salary prowth and discount rate.

Vanability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the gratuity benefits will be paid eartier than
expected. The nnpact of 2hus will depend on whether the benefits are vested as a1 the resignation date.

Investment risk: For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments
backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independeat of the future discoun: rate. This can resutt in wide Nuctuations in the net liability or
the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

Liquidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or these higher in hierarchy. accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such employees
resign ¢ retire from the Group, there can be strain o the cash Hows.

Market risk: Market risk is a collective term for nsks rhat are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial assmmption that has a
material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in defined benefit obligation of
the plan benefits and vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the government boirds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in
the yields as at the valuation date.

Legislative risk: Legislative risk 1s the risk of increase m the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The
government nay amend the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972, thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees This will directly affect the
present value of the defined benefit obligation and the same will have 10 be recommized immediztely in (he vear when any such amendment is effective.

-
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40 Employee benefit plan (Continued}
(b} Defined benefit plans: {Continued)

The status of gratuity plan as required under Tnd A5-19 is as under:

As at Asar
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i, Reconciliativn of opening and closing balances of defined benefit ebligation
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the vear 423 167
Current service cost .83 076
Interest cost 0.28 025
Benefit paid {0.17) ©0.21)
Re-measurement (or Actvanal) (gan) / loss arsing frem
Change in demographic assumptions (0.10) (0.18)
Change in financial assumprions . 0.0 (0.07)
Experience adjustments 0.68 0.01
Present value of defined benelit obligations at the end of the year 5.76 423
ii. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets
Fair valye of plan assets at the begimning of the year 497 3.67
Interest income . 4.36 0.28
Retum gn plan assats excluding amounts included i interest income 0.08 {Q.16}
Contnbutions by employer . 216 1.34
Benefits paid ©.17) {0.21)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 135 492
iti. Recenciliation of the present value of defined benefit abligation and fair value of plan assets
Present vatue of defired benefit obligations at the end of the year 576 423
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the vear 7.35 4.92
Net asset / (liability} recognized in balance sheet as at the end of the year 159 0 6%
iv. Composition of plan assets
100% of plan assets are administered by LIC.
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
v. Expense recognised daring the Year
Current gervice cost 0.83 2.7
Inleresi cost (0.08) (0.03)
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 0.75 0.73
vi, (Hher comprehensive income
Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligations:
Due to change in financial assunprions ‘ 0.01 (0.07)
Due to change in dermoyraphic assumption {0,10) f0.18)
Dug to cxperience adjustments 0.68 D0l
Retumn on plan assers excluding amoumts inziuded in interest income (0.08) 016
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 0.51 (0.08)
As at As at
31 March 202+ 31 March 2023
vit, Principal actuarial assumptions
Disceunt rate (per annum} T15% 1.30%
Rate of retum on plan assets (p.a.) T15% T.30%
Annual increase in salary cost 8.00% §.00%
Withdrawal rates per annum
25 and below 35.00% 30.00%
2610 35 30.00% 25.00%
361045 15.00% 20,0062
4610 55 20.00% 15.00%
56 and above 20.00% 15.00%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India’s bond as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.
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40  Employce benefit plan (Continued)

(b} Defined benefit plans: {Continued)

viii. Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determinaton of the defined benefit abligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and withdrawal rates. The
sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions cecurring at the end of the reporting year, while halding

all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2014 31 March 2023
Defined benefit cbligarion {base) 5.7 423
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Decrease Incirase Decrease Increase
Discount rare (- - +0.5%) 559 5.67 433 413
(% change compared te base due to sensitivily 2.26% {1.56%) 2 36% (230%)
Salary Growth Rate |- / +0.5%) 563 537 4.4 13
{% change conmparcd to kase due to sensitivity) (1.39%) 191% (2.13%) 1.80%
Withdrawal Rate (W.R ) (W.R x90%/ W.R. x 110%) 585 571 426 420
{%a change compared to base due to sensitivity} 1.56% {0.87%) 0.71% 0 71%)

ix. Asset liability matching strategies

The Group contributes to the insurance fund based on estinated liability of next financial vear end. The projected liability statements is obtained from the actuarial

valuer
% Effect of plan on entity's future cash flows

a) Funding arrangements and funding policy

The Group has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity 1o the employees. Every year, the insurance company camies out a funding
valuation based on the latest emplovee data provided by the Group. Any deficit in the assets arising as a result of such valuation is funded by ihe Group.

b} Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

The average outstanding term of the obligations (vears) as at valuation date is 3.95 10 4.10 years.

Cash Nows (T} as at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

127 0.76
2nd following year 104 0.66
3rd following year 087 0.60
Ath follawmy, year 70 0.53
Sth foliowiny year (78] 047
Sumofvears 60 10 211 1.83
The future accrual is not considered in ammiving at the above cash-Mows
The expected contribution for the rext vear is T 1.04 Crare

{C) Other long term employee benefits
As at As at
31 March 2024 21 March 2623
Discount Rate T15% 7 30%%
8.00% 5 00%

Salary Growth Rate
Mortaliry Rates base Indian Assured
Lives mortality

{2012-14)

Indian Assured
Lives mortality
{2012-19)

The Group has not funded its compensated absences hability and the same contnues to remain as unfunded as at 31 March 2023
The labilny for compensated absences is T 0 29 Crore t31 March 2073 017 Crore).

Code on Social Security, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Secunty, 2020 which subsumes the provident fund Act and the gratuity Act and rules there under. The Ministry of Labour and

Employment has also released draft rules thereunder an |3 Nosember 2000 and has mvited suguestions fiom stakehold
Labour and Employment The Group will evaluate the rules. asscss the impact, of any. and account for the same once th

become effective

under active consideration by t
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41 Financial instrument and fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received ta sel? an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.. an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

In erder to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques.
This note deseribes the fair value measurement of both financial and non-financial instruments

A Measurement of fair values

Fivancial instruments - fair value

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (B) below have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. Fhe hierarchy sives
the highest priority to quoted prices ir active markets for identcal assets or liabilities (Level 1 Measurements) and lowest prionity to unchservable inputs (Level 3 measurement).

The categeries used are as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active market is determined using valuation technique which maximizes the use of ebservable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. [Fall significant inputs required to fair value on instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2;and

Level 3: If one or more of significant inpu is not based on observable markel data, the instrument is included in level 3.

ii) Traosfers between levels 1 and 2

There has been no transfer in between level | and level 2
iii) Yaluation technigues

Loans
The Group has computed fair value of the loans and advances through OCE considering its business model. These have been fair valued using the base of the interest rate of kan disbursed in
the last month of the year which is an unobservable input and therefore these has been considered to be fair valued using level 3 inputs

Investments measured at FY'TPL

Fair values of market linked debentures and muiual funds have been determined under level | using quoted market pricestunadjusted) of the underlying mstruments. Fair value of investment
in alternale investment Funds have been determined under level 2 using observable input

B. Accounting classifications and fxir values

The carrying amount and fair value of financial instrurments including their levels in the fair value hierarchy presented below

A ar 3 Murch 2024 Carrying amount Fair value
Amortised cost FYOCI RTPL Level § Level 2 LeveE ¥ Totul
Financial assets measured at fair value
Loans mepsured a1t FVOCT - TA48.93 - - - TA4R.93 741893
Danvative finangial snstrunests - - 2492 0?2 - - 2402
Investments measiread st FVIPL - - 3045 6.14 5331 - AR
- TA448.93 Q147
Financial assets nol measured at fair value'
Cash and cash equivalons 21167 - - 21267 - - 25267
Bank halan other than cash and cash eyuivalents 66583 - - 66583 - - 6GES3
Track: roccivabhes 654 - - - - 654 .54
Loans mepsurad at amortisad ard 270.51 - - - - 27357 27157
Investment measured at amortisad cost 666.7C - . - ' - 667.04 6704
Other Numelals zssd 76.84 - - - - 671 76.71
1.899.10 - -
Financial iabitities not nteasured at Gair + ulue'
Trde pavables 213 - - - - 2115 2115
Uthur pavables i 1.8% - . - - t.39 1.89
Toebi securitics L2686 - - - - 64384 G643.B4
T3ommings {oder thae debt secuniti o) 6.496.8% - - - - 652447 63524.47
Subowdinated labililics LA - - - - JL0.90 J10.50
Ddwr financial lisbd)itics 258.36 - - - - 23836 pi R
7725 - -
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41  Financial instrument and fair value measurement (Continued)

B. Accounting classifications and fair values (Continsed}

As at 30 March 2023 Carrying amount Fair value
Amortived coat FYOoCI FYTFPL Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tuotal
Finuanciul assets measured al Tair value
Luans measural al FYOCT - (UK. 30 - . - 6,038 39 G358 39
Invesiments measured at FVTPIL - - 23190 18143 5045 - 2350
- 6,033.39 AR

Financial asscts not measured at fair value'

Cash and cash cquivalents 236 - - 23807

DBank batanc: other Lthan cash and cash eguivalans 363.29 - - 3329

Trad: receivahles 430 - - . - 430 430

Loans meusunad al amontisod cost 207.83 - . - - 20766 207 66

Investmaont mensirad ob anwtised vost 33214 - - - - 33953 35933

Other financials assat [%3x] - - - - 01.36 61.56
1,4636.83 - -

Financial Eabitities not measured 2¢ fair value'

Trade pavables 1468 - - - . 1468

Other pavables 184 - - - - 184

Dbt seusitics 62726 - - - - 634,56

Domow ings (oiber than debl securities) 524737 - - . - 5217344

Subordinated liahilines 23270 - - - - 260 .00 w00

Other financial Labilithes 31034 - - - - 31034 31034
6A51.39 B N

' The Group has not disclosed the fair values for cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, investment in debt securitics. interest acerued but ot due on loans and advances, bank deposits and
investment, trade payables and other financial liabilities as these are short term in nature and their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Reconciliation of level 3 Mair value measurement is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

i} Loans

Balance al the beginning of the sear . £,079.90 467378
Addision during the vear 589532 178249
Amaount derecognised / repaid during the vear (4,430.86) (3,309,033
Amount wriiten oY (43.13) {42.63)
Gams/{losses) recognised in other comprehensive income 19.08 (24.69)
Balanee at the end of the vear 7,515.31 6,079.90

* The above chussification alsa includes balance of spread roceivable on assigned portfolio. (Refer note 10)

Sensitivity analysis to (air value

Amount, net of tas
Increase Decrease

31 March 2024

Loans

Interest mtes (30 bps movementd (2297 19.52
31 March 2023

Loans

Intzrest rates {30 bps movement) (14.68) 1697

42 Capital

The Group maintazns an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capiial adequacy requirements of the local banking supervisor, RBI and NHB.
The adequacy of the Group®s capital is monstored using, amany other measures, the regulations issued by RBLand NHB.

The Group has complied in tull wath all s externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period. Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpase of Group's
capiral management

421  Capital managemeni

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management policy are to ensure thal the Group complies with externally imposed capital requitements and maintains strong credit ratings and
healthy capital ratios m erder ta support its business and 1o maximise sharehalder value.

The Group manages s capital siructure and makes adjustments to it according 1o changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities, In order lo maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amaunt of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives,
policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's prniacipal financial liabilities comprise borrowings and trade payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations and 1o
support its operations. The Group's financial assats include loan and advances. cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Group's board of directars has an overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Group’s sk management tramework. The board of directors has established the risk management comminee, which is responsible for develeping and monitoring the
Group's risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on ils activities.

The Group's risk managenient policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence to fimits. risk management policies and systems are reviewed repularty 10 reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities.

The Group’s tisk management committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter-party 10 financial instrument fails to meet its contractual abligations and arises principaily from the
Group's receivables from customers and loans.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Loans and advances

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, However, management also considers the factors thai may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the mdustry.

The Group has established a credit policy uader which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before sanctioning any loan. The Group's review
includes external ratings, if they are available, financia! statements, credit agency information, industry information, the loan-to-value ratio etc.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk for loans and advances by tvpe of counterparty is as follows

Carrying Amount

As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Retail assets 444314 331258
Twao wheeler loans ' H3.02 317.60
Micro enterprise loans 1,396.33 124059
Salaried personal loans 3343 4794
Small and medium enterpnse loans 1,606.62 108011
Commerciad vehicle foans 37578 17004
Housing & non-housing loans 40321 28630

RAC loans 3.348.00 297936

Total 7,791.14 6.292.14

Narrative Description of Collateral
Celiateral primarily inchude vehicles purchased by retail loan customers and machinery & property in case of SME customers. The secured exposure are secured wholly or partly by

ypothecation of assets and undertakiny to create a security

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstanges existing on that date to idennfy expected Josses on account of ime value of
money and credit risk. For the purposes of this analysis, the loan receivables are categorised into groups based on days past due. Each group is then assessed for impainment
using the ECL model as per the provisions of Ind AS 109 - financial instruments

Staging:
As per the provision of Ind AS 109, afl financial instruments are allocated to stage 1 on initial recognition. However, if a significant increase in credit risk is identified at the

reporting date compared with the initial recognition, then an instrument is transferred to stage 2. Ifthere is objective evidence of impainment, then the asset is credit impaired
and transferred to stage 3.

The Group considers a financial instrurnent defaulted and therefore Stage 3 feredit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due
on 1ts contractual payments.

For financial assets in stage |, the anpairment calculated based on defaults that are possible in next welve months, whereas for financial instrument in stage 2 and stage 3 the
ECL calculation considers default event for the litespan of the instrument.

As per Ind AS 109, the Group assesses whether there is a sigmificant increase in credit risk at the reporting date from the initial recogaution. The Group has staged the assets
based on the days past due criteria and other market factors which sigmificantly impacts the portfolio.

Group's internal credit rating grades and staging criteria for loans are as follows:

Days past due status Seage Enternal grade Provisians
Current Stage High Guality assets., negligiblc credit nish i2 Months Provision
1-30 Days Srage 1 High Quahty assets, negligibic credit rish 12 Months Pravision
3150 Days Stage 2 Quadny asscts. low credit sk Lifctime Provision
61-90 Days Stage 2 Swandard assets. moderate ¢redit sk Lifetime Provision
%1-180 Days Stage 3 Sub-standard asscts, relatively high credit risk Lifctime Provision
=140 Dms Siage 5 Low quality assets. veny high eredii nsk Lifetine Provision
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Grouping:
As per [nd AS 109, the Group is required to group the portfolio hased on the shared risk charactenstics. The Group has assessed the risk and its impact on the vanous
portiolios and has divided the portfoiio mio following groups

a. Two wheeler loans

b Alicro enterprise loans

<. Salaned personal loans

d. Small and medium enterprise loans
e. Commercial vehicle loans

£ Relail asset channel loans

g Housing & non-housing loans

ECL:

ECL on financial assets is an unbiased probability weighted amount based oot of possible outcomes alier considenny risk of credit loss even if probability is low. ECL is
calculated based on the following components:

a. Probability of default {"PD "}
b. Loss given defaalt ("LGD™)

<. Exposure at defauit ("EAD")
d. Discount factor {"D")

For RAC loan portfolio, the Group has developed internal rating based approach for the purpose of ECL. The credit rating framework of the Group consists of various
parameters based on which RAC loan pontfolio is evaluated and credit rating is assigned accordiangly. The credit ratmg matrix developed by the Group is validated in
accordance with its ECL policy

The Group has developed its PD matrix based on the external benchmarking of various extermal repotls. ratings & Basel norms. This PD matnix 1s cakbrated with its historical
data and major events on regular time intenval in accardance with its ECL policy.

Probability of default:
PD 1s defined as the probability of whether barrowers will default on their obligations in the future. 1listorical PD is derived from internal data calibrated with forward looking

macroeconomic faciors.

For camputation of probability of default ("PD"). Vasicek Single Factor Mode! was used 10 forecast the PD term strugtuie over Lifetinte of loans. As per Vasicek model, given
long tenn PD and current macroeconomic conditions, canditional PD correspanding ta current macroeconomic condition is estimated. Group has worked out on PD based on
the Last five vears historical data

The PDs denved from the vasicek model, are the cumulatse PDs. stating that the borrower can default in any of the gnen vears. however to compute the loss for any given
yeor. these cumulative PDs have to be converted to marginal PDs. Marginal PDs is probability that the obligor will default in a given year, conditional on it having survived
ull the end of the previous year.

As per Ind AS 109, expected loss has to be calculated as an unbiased and probability-weighted amount for m ultiple scenarios.

The probability of default was calculated for 3 scenarios: upside (11%5). downside (21%) and base (68%). This weightage has been decided on best practices and expert
Judgement. Marginal conditional probability was caleulated for all 3 possible scenarios and ane conditional PD was arrived as cond:tional weighted probability.

Loss given default:

LGD 15 an estimate of the loss from a transaction given that a default oceurs. Under Ind AS 109, lifetne LGDY's are defined as a collection of LGD's estimaies applicable 1o
different future periods

Vanious appreaches are available to compute the LGD. Group has considered workout LGD approach. The following steps are performed to calculate the LGD:

1) Analysis of historical credit impaired accounts at cohort level
2) The compuration consists of five compenents, which are:
a) Outstanding balance (POS)
b) Recavery amount {discounted yearly) by effective interest rate.
¢) Expected recovery amount {for incomplete recoveries). discounted to reporting dute using eftociive interest rale.
d) Collazeral {secunty) amount

The fonmula for the computation is as below:

% Recovery rate = (discounted recovery amount + secunity amount + discounted estimated recon ery) / (total POS)
% LG = | — recovery rate

For RAC loan portfolio. the LGD has been considered based on Basel-11 Framework for all the level of credit rating portfoha.
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Firancial risk management objectives and policies (Continued}
Credit risk {Continued)

Exposure at defanlt:

As per Ind AS 109. EAD is estimation of the extent to which the financial entity may be exposed to counterparty in the evemt of default and at the time of counterparty's
default. The Group has modelled EAD based on the contractual and behaviousal cash flows sl the lifetime of the loans considering the expected prepayments and
assignments of loans.

The Group has considered expected cash flows for all the ioans at DPD bucket level for each of the segments, which was used for computation of ECL. The exposure at
default is calculated for each product and for various DPD status alter considering future expected assignment which is not at risk. Moreover, the EAD compnsed of principal
component, accrued interest and also the future interest for the owtstanding exposure. Further. the stage 3 EAD for the purpose of the ECL computation is considening when
loan became Stage 3 for the first time (for retail loans)

Discounting:

As per Ind AS 109, ECL 15 computed by estimating the timing of the expected credit shortfalls associated with the defaults and discounting them using effective interest rate.

ECL computation:

Conditional ECL at DPD pool level was computed with the follow ing method:

Conditional ECL for year (y1) = EAD (y1) * conditional PD (vt) * LGD (vt} * discount factor (vt}
Conditional RAC ECL for year (v1) = EAD (¥t) * conditional PI} (vi} * LGD ivt)

For RAC loan portfolio. the Group has calculated ECL based on borrower wise assessment of internal credit rating as per the framework of the Group, while for retuil loan
portfolio, the same has been calculated on collective basis.

The calculation is based on provision mairix which considers actual historical data adjusted appropriately for the future expectations and probabilities. Proportion of expected
credit loss provided for across the stage is summarised below:

As st As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Stage | 0.40% 1839
Stage 2 21.21% 17 3%%
Staye 3 38.71% RPN
Amuount of expected credit loss provided for 13530 108 24

The loss rates are based on actual credit Joss experience over past 5 years. These loss rates are then adjusted appropriately to reflect differences between current and historical
economic conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expecied lives of the loan receivables. Movement in provision of expected credit Joss has been
provided tn below note

Management overlay

The Group holds 2 management and macro-economic overiay of T 21.79 crore as al 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 ¥ 23.03 croces).

Modification of finaacial assets

The Group has modified the terms of certain loans provided to customers in accordance with RBI notification ot MSME restructuring dated 6 August 2020 and 5 May 2021
Such restructuring benefits are provided to distressed customers who are unpacted by COVID-19 pandenic.

Such restructuring benefits inciude ¢xtended payment term arrangements, moratorium and changes in interest rates. The risk of default of such assets after modification is
assessed at the reporting date and compared with the risk under the original terms at initial recognition, when the modification is not substantial and so does not result in
derecognition of the onigina! asset (refer note 3.5). The Group menitors the subsequent performance of modified assets. The gross carrying amount of such assets held as at 31
March 2024 is T .41 crores {31 March 2623 T 4.99 crores). Overall provision for expected credit loss against resiructured loan exposure amounts to ¥ 0.26 crores as at 31
March 2024 {31 March 2023 ¥ [.4] crores). The Group continucs to monitor if there is o subsequent significani ingrease in credit risk in relation to such assets

Cash and cash equivalent and bank deposits

Credit nsk on cash and cash equivalent and bank deposits is limited as the Group generally nvests in erm deposits with banks which are subject 10 an insignificant risk ot
change in value.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk 1s the nsk that the Group will encounter difficults tn meeting its oblations assocated with its financial lizhiliies. The Group's approach i managing hquidin
18 to ensure that 1t will have sufficient funds to meet its labilites when due
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidicy risk (Continued)

The Group is monitoring its liquidity risk by estimating the future inflows and outflows during the stan of the year and planned accordingly the funding requirement, The
Group manages its liquidity by uautilised cash credit facility. tenm loans and direct assignment.

The composition of the Group's tability mix ensures healthy asset Liability maturity pattern and well diverse resource mix.

The toral cash credit limir available to the Group is T 1703 Crore spread across 14 banks. The utilization level is maintained i such a way that ensures sufficient liqutdiry on
hand

Over the years, the Helding Company has maintained around 2025 to 25% of assets under management as off book through direct assignment ransactions. It is with door to
door maturity and withou recourse to the Holdiag Company. This further strengthens the liability management.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cashflow of the Group's financial liabilities:

1 day to 3031 days  Over one month  Over 2 months  Over 3 months ta 6 Over 6 months Over 1 yearto 3 Over3yearto$  Over 5 years Total
(one atenth) to 2 months  up 1o 3 monihs months t0 1 year VeRrs years

As at 31 Marech 2024

Db sceurities 247 240 1116 34.63 173 58 47096 5375 - FEE ALY
Bomowings 122,07 126 22 380,85 650,74 LM 3.054.70 61163 2349 722440
{Other than debi sceurities)

Subardinated habilities 27% 273 278 %39 1656 6F 63 30190 5i.48 43330
Payabks 21 . - 113 - - - - 234
Lease Luabiiy 00k (3 00K 024 (Xt 153 110 0.08 3z
Other financial liabilities 20799 0. 013 0.36 43401 143 0.02 - 3344
As at 3] March 2023

Debt sccuntes 026 652 02} 459 600 24 0w 39 - - 5% 20
Borrow ngs AR o7 5% 244 Tir 43324 ERRES T IR M 1788 1809 AR
1Other dhan debt securitks)

Subordmated habihtes 2 23 234 T 1297 3300 1530 13 16%.00 402 82
Pavabks 39 286 633 ihr3 [tR] - - - i A2
Lease Labihin Qo3 [ t03 hEl 019 R 0.29 - 1.47
Orther financaal habilines 23883 620 | [ RRRA) 343 - - R

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial insmument witl fuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk includes interest rate risk
and foreign: currency risk. The objective of market risk management is 1a manage and control market risk expusures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the

Interest rate risk

interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to
the aisk of changes in market imerest rates relates primarily to the Group’s investment in bank deposits and variable inerest rate borrowings and lending.

The sensitivity analysis have been carried out based on the exposure to interest rales for lending and borrowings carried at variable rate and investments made by the Group.

Year ended 31 March 2024 Year ended 31 March 2013

Chanye o interest rates SUbpincrease S0 bp decrease Sdbpiacrease 50 bp decrease

Ini estments RURA 93 176 73 17 T8
Impact on profit before @ for the vear ns (G 25} 038 [UR A1)
Varabk rae lending isin 37312 326386 3265 86
Impact on profit befor: tax for the vear 1811 LA 1584 (13 R4y
Varable rate borrow ings 601308 661308 31515 573731
Impact on profit before tax for the vear (297 »02 28 .40) 28.40

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the nsk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rales. Foreipn currency risk for the Group arises majorly on
account of foreign currency borrowings. The Group's foreipn currency: exposures are managed in accordance with its Foceign Exchange Risk Manageinen: Policy which has
been approved by its Board of Directors The Group has hedged its foreign currency risk on s foreign currency borrowings as on March 31, 2024 by entering into forward
contracts with the sntention of covering the entire term of foreign currency exposure The counterparues for such hedge ransactions are banks.

The Group's expesure on account of Foreign Curcency Borrow wgs at the end of the reporting period expressed i Indian Rupees are as follows:

Foreign currency As ot Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Temm koan from Bank in Forcign Curency USD 60218 -

Since the foreign currency exposwre is completely hedged by equivalent derivative instrument, there will not be any significant umpact on sensitivity analysis due 10 the

possible change in the exchange rates where all other s ariables are held constant. On the dare ef mamriy of the devivativg justiyment, considering the hedging for the gntirg

- . - - . - — - b

term of the foreign currency exposure. the sensitivity of profil and loss to chanyes in the exchange rates will be Nil. - _T-\ >
-3
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Lease disclosure
Where the Group is the lessee
The Group has entered into agreements for taking its office premises under keave and license arrangements. These agreements are for tenures between 1| months and 19 years

and majonty of the agreernents are renewable by mutual consent on m uivally apreeable terms. lease rentals liave an escalation ranging between 5% to [5%. Leases for whivh
the lease term is less than 12 months have been accounted as short term leases

Contractual cash maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Not later than one vear 097 049
Later than cne vear and not later than five vears 293 098
Later than five years 0,08 -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 3.98 47
Lease tiabilities included in the balance sheet
Total lease liabilities 3.38 1.28
Amaount recognised in the statement of profit and foss account Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest on lease liabilities 0.22 0.1¢
Depreciation charge for the year 0.67 (32
Expenses relating 1o short term leases 4.70 3.83
Amount recognised in statement of cashflow Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31[ March 2023

Cash outflow rowards lease liability i (0.54) (0.28)

For addition and carrying amount of right 10 use asset for 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, refer note | I{c}

Title deeds af all immovable properties of the Halding Campany are held in name of the Holding Company. Further all the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
Group for properues where the Group is the lessee

Transfer of financial assets
Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety

‘The following table provides a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that pant or all of the transferred financial assets do not qualify for
derecognition, together with the associated liabilities:

As at As al
31 March 2024 3F March 2023

Securitisation

Carrying amount of transferred assets - -
Carrying amount of associated liabilities {Borrowings - other than debt securities) - -
Fair value of assets (4) - -
Fair value of assoclated habilities (B) - R

Net position at Fair Value (A-B) . -

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirery

The Group has assigned loans by way of direct assignment. As per the terms of these deals, sinee substantial risk and rewards related to these assets were transferred to the
extent of exposure net of MRR to the buyer. the assets have been de-recognised from the Greup's Balance Sheet. The eable below summarises the carrying amount of the
derecognised financial assess :

As at As at
31 March 2024 3t March 2023

Direct assignment
Carrving amornt of de-recognised financial asser 2,063.89 1.259.86
Carmy g amount of retained financial asset 22417 167.26
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Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety but where the Group has continuing involvement
The Group has not transferred any assets that are derecognised in their entirety where the Group continucs to have continuing invelvement.

No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder. as at 31 March 2024 and 3| March 2023,

The Group is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve
Bank of India, dunng the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

The Group does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the year
ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

All the charges or satisfaction. as applicable are registered with ROC within the statutory period.

The Group has taken borrowings from banks and financial jnstitutions and utilised them for the specific purpose for which they were taken as at the Balance sheet date
Unutitised funds as at 31 March 2024 and 31 Muarch 2023 are held by the Group in the form of deposits or in current accounts till the time the utilisation is made
subsequently

There have been no wansactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts, that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year ended 31 March
2024 and 31 March 2023, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act. 1961 There have been no previously unrecorded income and related assets which were to be
properly recorded in the books of account during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

As a part of nommat lending business, the Group grants loans and advances on the basis of security / guarantee provided by the Borrower/ co-borrower. These transactions are
cenducted after exercising proper due diligence.

Other than the transactions described above.

(2} No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the Group to or in any other person(s) or entity{ies) including foreign entities {“Intermediarics™ with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in a party identified by or on belalf of the group (Ultimare Beneficiaries):

(b) No funds have been received by the Group from any parny(s) (Funding Party ) with the understanding that the Group shall whether. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Group {"Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. ’

The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the vear ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,

The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Comparsies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules. 2017
for the financial years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

The Helding Company and a Subsidiary have used accounting sofrware for mamtaining its books of account for the financial vear ended 31 March 2024 which has a fealure
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all the relevant transactions recorded in the software excepl that, audit trail feature
was nat enabled at database Jevel for accounting software to log any direct data changes. Further, there has been no instance of the audit trail feature being tempered witli in
respect of such accounting software where such feature is enabled.
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56  The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement.

57  Events after the reporting period

Ind AS 10 "Events after the Reporting Period’. requires an entity to evaluate infonmation avatlable afier the balance sheet date to determine if such information constitutes an
adjusting event, which would require an adjustment 10 the financial statements, or & non-adjusting event, which would only require disclosure. There have been no events
after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statemnents,

58 Figures of previous year has bezn regrouped / reclassified. wherever necessary, (o correspond with the figures of the current year.

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Mukesh M Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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